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ferfa wTga el TwIioTd 9 |

AT grever SrafemT Sfehehr wrfaes geit 2.3 ufaea @R S|
aefterr StafemT shehr =y yrefes §Sf tguTd fRrmEeRrRy
AT UTeT T Sfehel dlehehl STIUTT <.% UTARTd =T 0.¢R
gfaeTder SEl Wbl B, STeTe Aehen! faiiar feufq grea et
THTT & |

e

gefterr STafmT Sehehl A MEAT B 2cuck I WH G,
I TG AT kT GEHHT 4. Ro UfadeT g & | et
ST ATITSe Sehg®eh! ST It R 3. < TfaTd Wehr
T | GEtET STataHT Seher Hedl TTarTT 2w, 32 wfdeTder Beshr
T qT g9 e w3.u) wfaed gfg afaer mr 3 w3
siReRT /e FTEITHT W 24, Ro TideTder g aTfeel el & |
sSR! TTHfAeh ATSHT STTAR 7 Sehct 3T a R0c2 /< WY
ST Sord G aT T GiaeTe® qiETsia Tt aret T2t
ATSHTEE THT AT FRIT | STEehT T sfehet STfoeetl adeht
I @TATehT AT w2, %R Ufastaer gig T T 833,28 T4t
T WIATEE Wied Soh el UG § | STATHY J¥eewT qud
T 78T T S=d @rar gig 16 S WEtqenrs T fer
SRRl T B | THTET FHeR! STIWT Skl A F=d @Il
HEAT ¢,5%3,5R% WHT B | Tehehl Fodt T Said ETT FHot
fAEuenT uR. 3% wfawrd feedm et ®, I SAfaedr av ¥e
yfcreTer Teeht ol |

TR AU FEET wo lAvId FEH Teg UHAT Sehel
ST T HEITT 8T STgaTd dreheRl EmT

A T Y e s wm e B

SR 98T T 1= ©%.%3
e 8T R0.00
??Tf%é*q 900
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Tl AAT FAT AFHHT TqEqT

sehehT et ahetl thy JTeeell TNl gTaT 22,43 UfdeTder
gig wor oeter stafmr €. ¢ @d xo o1 g 3 | G
rafemr AT SeheEeh! Ed Jig <.x Uiawd W B |
TTHIATS s €T Thed 3TWTE THT=d OFT &, .23 oTel
fau=t ot et yaTe TRl B, 7 et o1kl 4. 22 HfasTd
wH B | I T Fohed faq=T ot ol ThRT THT F
TITHIRT « UfaeTd gu FemT diehentaT I Sfehehl 3th HoTiHT
.22 UTETd ST Teohl & | ETeqT STaferaT sfehet asehl STeemT
FTOTS Sehg®ehl Fet hotiehl *.% % Ufasrd fewdr 3TTeT dther
qTHT B, I Aot ¥ . < Tlaera Qe form |

qeiterr TafemT SehehT et Fell AFEHT T AT auhT
F 4.0% e AC TS &. U.%% T ohl & | I ATRIH THAT
F UQ.SO HUS ol AT T Techl TIAT ATGTHT
B | bt GuifeqT STATHT STl AT STTTAT/ 3= AFaTt
(Impairment Charges) 3¥=ia Srilankan Bond aTdqa T
SaETETe fhdl & 22.6¢ HUSATS T SHITHT T | Sehehl
Feieor MRt deF Shhe T A SITEHIT el RTHIATS
TTATHRATAT TEhl | @Rl WHITG STeT Hia=mT 3=
&1 T HSIl SINEUeTs Teds) Ta Sehehl @S sl qoT
FsTl AFHIATS AT T IeTAHT AT ol ITged! qor
AT AFHATATS U7 Y3& qT TeIeT IR B |

T

TTeT STATEHT SfohehT et THTHT STfeeall auehl JoHTHT 6. <%
faeTder gig wE & 4.2 3Te Rl S | FH AT T TR
foreT T FoTT AT 31T TIHIA® HEI: ]2, 3% WAV T <.%%
AT ST el & | bl TTHITRT ThTehT 3 TguT,
T fafauar SIS auT HeEr SRl HfdtheET 24T
e femmeer oo Udehdr Taerr T STHET SHTRT GTRT
HUTRA! T3S TR & | THIET STaTHT et RGHA HUS
AT IPAT & 2%, _¢ IS AT TEhT & | Yoit ST mheeehr
TATHT R AATIISTehT &9ET ST Wfawher fe e saeht
FIIAEEHT ehT S T ool THieT STafemT 3% aHiesare
&, R.¥R P TG ATHIT HTT Tl B |

ST AT

aiffer sTafeHT SeReRl SATST ST ¢R.% Uidwidel ®X
.2%.4¢ 376 TRl | GHYET ST Seheh! FHofidthel TS
FTFETT 24, Sy HiaeTael BT &. 2R.24 316 Jehl & A FHell
JTEeh T AHIAhehT SATST SRHT 2. %3 Ufaeraer Iig % .
R.¥3 3T Tl 3 |

gfterr srafmr fafr= wRoT Skl FeTiamen! AT fad
Tfaher 2.3 forgel BT <. % SATSIET HREH & T |

= IERCE]
gHferr STafMT Sehehl SATST @ ¥ Ylavae HT &, <.¢R

1 TrRr T | aefter srafumr Sl fraame saTST @
4.0 JidEIdeT HT §.0.%0 T T T | Sohel STaetred
TehT STl WHITA FTET Shehl T THEITHT ot T
O @R STTATTAT (g Ta ST A& STFET siehen! faf=T
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Y FEd TRt ASHIEE THd JTesh AT UhT & |
FGEITE AT TETeEHT Sehenl THEIThT TRTAHT 55 ek G A1
T SfhehT HIShT ATTT T g favare Sehet ferwent | e
STafrmT Shehl fTETathenT SATSIET T ATk ST AN 2.3
farrget 51T . o TTaRTa R & T |

TT AT AR

q AT G

T STt Sehehl 3 TodTeH T 3.%2 Uiastael gig
0§ & ¢¥.%¢ FUS A G, I AfTeall a9 & <.0¢ HIS
wl PR | 7@ o depent FaEEAT ghg e T e
STTET TETT TGt ATHT MU Shrfe® qur 3= fafy=r
FRUTEE Tl el TodlTeT @ Jhg TTHT & |

qeffeqT STITHT SATIR IAERHET qUhT Jhg T Shehl FHI
TS Gg SATST TR STfoeal Tuehl oM 24, %2
gfasTaer gig S &. U.\oW ITd HIEW qUHT T | JANTHT feTeenr
3UASY IR STCATTIF TGIANTHT ATHT short aom e
STITART 3T AT TUT G& SATSIE TS (a2 SIS
T wrifa et Taee T |

G ek qAT HIHIA AR

sfeReRT T ShIVHT STTUTNG T TSI HIde® g ok aeT
FHITEH SATETEE it §7 | 79 a9 Sehcl GT I[eeh qT AT
SR T &. 2.3¢ 3T TS T Tl HUeh! S, S Afeear
kT JOHTHT 2<.2% WlasTaer gig HUshT & | Sehel TS T
gg YATHHT YA TAT ST GoaTe AT 6T Sers
WHITT STIET sehet Tuiter srafemr fafe=r Tefmae dar qur
e faear et a1 foremm et ufy gue amey aimrstT
TR 3 |

I GATAA AT

Sohehl 31T FodTad T gHterr srafumT 2<.<¢ giqerde
TR E. %.%% S Pehl B, I AleTeadl a9 &, ¢ FUS Wl
forar |

FHAR @
SehehT et RUERT Tl GufterT STaferT 2<% wfasrder Iig g
%, R.¥% 3T Pl B, I foeal ¥ &, .oc 37ef Weht ol |

sl o e T WA 2 %oy AT wHiET St
200 ST FHHART 9T WS HH{ET THAT ol FHART HEAT 2,4
T B | TS T SAehohl Thihd GIM, R0, fdH .
2(%)(R) e & FUERI @l 3% T HHARIH!
qTfers T gia faerTeshl SN @ T T-HT iHeT STafmT &.
3.4% IS W T T Mk T &, 2.0¢ FHUS HUART &Tar
TIE FHITHT FEATTHRT S | FHART = SFohehl TorT=aT oI
qrafe g1 W= HTIATATS STCHETT TG sfehehl dEehRTel 0Tt
ITET Fhells U7 FeIel T HEH SIS IETAHT AT FehedTS
AT I SHIh TT FHARIhT Goar o dq ifrgfgrr
AT TiUehT TS Sohel eTTHIhT EUHT fAushr & T 3Tmdar
feTeEHT JThT Ufathet e T GHTHT Jigeh! EIUT UTed g
enet Tavame fewent & |

ASGRIEE KT
Sehehl BT TUT AU T GHIET FFTHT o.*¢ Hiasael
Jig W% & ¥R.00 FE Pl B, I Afoeal a9 & ¥2.5%
FUE TEeh! foram |

2R  www.machbank.com

dcehTeTehT ATHT 3t T 3o SNGT qT1 Sfohed TehT T I
AT fawr Sfehenl e gigaT a1 g qr Fwrifafy
HTHTARTOT T S 1oRUT WS el QAT HIST T3 Siohehl foiar
FITSTTHT TR ST U5 STUETT Sehel TRl & |

gFafAT gfawe
Sfoheh! FFITHT Ufdher THTET AT o.clo Hfawra e S,
S 1fereat It 0. ww wfasTd went forlY |

HTFHT TAT FIAHT FIHZT 6 S TR SR

el IIERT TSIYT HhedwHT ANEH 6T GHIET STatemT
FIAHT L el T & 2.2 HUS TAT TR I & 9o.4E HUS
T /A & 2.5 T8 YT T S |

ATRT/ A atghte faawur
et TG AT THHT & 2.cc 3Tel G YATHT TS el B T
I FATHIERT ASHI faawur fm STTER &l & -

T &. HUSHT
BT T T
T ISR Hiwrd TR (3w.R¢) | 2¥¥.ey
FHTES (o.00)
ST (3«.R¢) 2¥%.9¢

R fyfermae afoaent

I YT TATHT 2¢C.3% | 20%.4R
ST FHTRIST I

S| 2UR. 3¢ ¥R.3
SrEHis

HTETROT SHIST IS 30,50 R0.%0
TS AT ©.2¢
U garaT ity I 2.¢ (0.4¢)
AT T ST 23%.%%
HE Tgeae I 2.%3 2.33
T GRS TG Iy 9. 2.0%
TUTIS BT T ¥R.C% 92,03
T (0.2%) (R.23)
frea F (4. %¥%) Yo.4%
STHAT 45.9% 5¥.R5
qfsaa qAwRT/ (Re) 3.3 (U.R%)




Sohet TH a¥eRT Gg ATHTERT R0 FiASTd oTdTd & 30.%9 FIS
HTTOT ST ShISHT TAT T2l T2 hIW, T HHTISTh It e
HITAT SHATT: 2,53 HUS T 2.¢¢ HUS TSHIS Wbl S | @
FrmTrTt FINETE & 4. ¥ Y HUS T I T |

T T ke TdvH amifs gg ATErRr ¢ wfaerd W
TSR ITLGTICT ShIMHT STHAT 7T U STawelT T7&Y, Sehal
% 9.cc FHUS 3th HITAT THATAL T B, | 3T FHITEE Sohel
T IATRIR TUAT U Aehel Aok SHITSH =T ATHTISTR
IALETICT HRMET @ TR AT qHTieTeh JTETIIahT HRIEE
IS FETH AT B | Aehel FUTISERT THIHT HITHT e
Jrafuehl T IHAT 9T & ¥R.¢% FAS T TNhT S |

GEICREISIES

ATSIey dehel UTEshehl ATTTIhRATSIHR AfaH, WTUal, T
ORI 8T &M T4 TSR & | 8Tl Sehehl J9T9T 284
T, R03 TEUH, 22 URIHT 32T T << IMARIEd Sfehe
HATEE WHT B, STE TaT ATehelTs Alsel Tge FaT TR
T | ITfE aF Roc?/¢R W Sehel T IM@T Giegw-=aT ait
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U NI TATSRHT S | THT TNOTHEEY, 2feh T &Y
TTEhEt TefeTeat YThT-1ehT SUSUTEEEhT T ITHT STTeh i HETashT
B | GEATT UTeheeehl ook &1 Todleals [T, TATahRl
T TEHfed SIS 3eydet HISIY=y sehel Tefsieat HuTefiaT 3nh
T HTITT TTEeheadTs THST STTAT ST TEehT |

A T dRae g AT fafieT el SET ek
HeTeE (PSP) €T dnberl Ta, Heaidwe siehehl ek a9
Sehel AT TEheeas Tefoled JONClHT dHeT Thet
Ul I | Credit Card Flametrs auzramrer aftshd TRt |
STt aaT Ry gfear afedeer srdar st faxfrr dar
HEATATHT T3 FTSHT Wbl S |

sfeen! AaTSe sifeh® T (M-Smart) e &= @TaT @ied e
T fefSeet areamae @ wanT 1 @ferd M- Smart srerd @rr
3TV GRCTRd TR TTeshilsT STSUeT © | J@eh! T Ui SeTEa
AT e TNEUHT & | USTIRT qo Teeeh! faafaamr
fergemT et SeheRT UTEshEE AHAY TaQIfT HiemSer TR W
T 99 Seheh! WIS Sfehw (M-Smart) T gfaem 3Tt T

T STETERSTE AT GUTHAT ST hivgd Teh! R | Sk
ST ITRET HoSTTeTelTs giTH T ATHioT arsmT faear w faxfer
TR RTHT JTET faUshl & | dohet T fefseat sfws
RICHAATS UM gg@ aIee HieRd dAfehs, e dfew T
FJ AN IS YFAH! ST HaTee 3Ueied TU ATeshalls o7
TESTAT Y& TR & | ST ohl fafvr=T smmar aer fefsrea
HaT GiTTetsh! ATEHETe ARy el 29 AT Wil &l
TTEehEealTs HaT fagteeh! §, STeet HUTeHT 3TTefes uge T fafas
ATERATeRT T Hecayut gfreh Sfefgsl & | T af
02/ ¢R TN dhel T, Jcpe T Taedmied o= JoT TRt
SATCHTETY 714 Seheh! ITRATEEATS 9 TWTEehI, UTesh Bft T
FEIGE S13Q TTeehen! T TTeT et ol & |

et Afaraw dan gfaemex

el TTEhEEeh] STEYIshdl T HNTAATS SAHT Tt Ui
T ey Hfa Fereesh! qut aTeHT Te geterd, Teiad,
gfTsid, Yaet, T URa™ 84T Y& 716 STUehT & | J[EaTdr
fetafa 3 sfoet TTEshers UfEshd T 3 daT fa wfaegar
Sh 114 SSTGhT HTaeqeNicHe WIT g fafv= fadier asmres
IS TS HATTH & | T8 yiaergarents e fag smis
T R0¢2/ <2 AT fafv=T wfafeerr 3w 18 o areREET faxier
AT GITTEE 3Ty TIUH S | digear aad faxfr e
TR Sfefed aREd qur giataen! faemme Aeg=s o
ufy fefsteet afehs ST g stese wfud wd emfe
afedehT dwaxaT 8 R0 e vt wfafdst Smart Bank s
TasiehTierT ereenr famaT e fmat omeR & | fefsee ot
T e yuTreftens fefsergst nd, faxfrr ugr, faeir aremar, T
farefter urateraT gig T SEwmT ATy S uideg Tl B |
fefsrea foar Samewen! S=mT, Miarsd Afws, w1, §-w0d, T
FIITR STEAT T TUITATATS 3TF ST F90T T 7d aefee
T Y& T TR bl & | T a1, oot ol ug=meme
et Rt TTesheeants Ui fefsed sopt T S omefiar

fed T A dfew (M-Smart) @1 uitsha TR
T | TG HFEAT BTl 3% TAT ekl ATecheeel AISTS SAfhs
(M-Smart) T J=IRT 7+ Tee] T faaem st arergeey Skl
Hiamse sfehs uT (M-Smart) HThd 6 %L, ZU3TT, el
ArE, TN YT ST el FRIaNEE gest T T |
AT Telt e ST 3 dfedl Uesh AT e sohel ool
Hiamser afes (M-Smart) T derrse 1T fefsieet HRIAR mat
3T~ gTaa Dispute T8 £2I=HT Tres Dispute Management
System HaT I U7 THT B | TE JITHTG TTeehetel ST S
QTATHT YT HRTRAT o TATHT JUHT HieTgel sffehs qeT
JTHTSE ST F TET-Ed HRISERT THTOTHIIT ST FHRISTT
T |7 grarft Sfed TETe T St SAgAY W g | AT
giaqe A= Ty TR Sehehl HiaTse Sfehs dar
s fedrefal, favaafa T giaumar— W | aede
ST ST TNGhT HTHTE%eh! EES-EHT Hsh! JTIdehT 1T 31Th
TSRS a7 Ahsirel T THow SaeT Hianset afss (M-Smart)
A7 TATSUeRT B, STt et SohehT UTeeha® AT SehanT fefiear
A Ui TRIET T SATHfavaTs Tehl S |

TSIey dhet el Sfhs 32T & gfeedr qeh EMV
Standard @ 3menfi@ Tokenized wfafesrr w&wT T diemger
dfehw fesbemT Contactless Offline ‘Tap and Pay’ @
e T ® | Tokenization &8 favamm § dehw=r o&t
e T vRuat wfataehl &9uT fa TS | ST aTesheean!
@rar faawmeRr g foen SHEe dledr FREN gIgal
TTEheh! feararor ey T geferd & |

TSgey dehcl U dfedl wesh POS HigWT Instant
Payment Voice Notification faferent 5= ekt & | I wfater
ST HTSIY= SehehT POS T=i~eg%er Card, QR (Nepal Pay
ar FonePay) / NFC (M-Smart) TTha S[hTHT T TTaf shRe
b YU STHFHHT &t ATha I T T | ardr Jurerdy
gfeedt weeh QR AT Sound Box Serefl S=THT STuehT I Sehet,
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g Sedehent FIHN A=< (Fonepay @ Nepalpay) &<Ts QR
HI%d g FRIETERT T T T8 HUh! S | THUHTH HThd
ITed g BRI SFeAdeedT fafaer fgfeem werr faemm stawemr
T yferefier HeireaealTs STETST HTthd qond SITHeRRT JTed g §aT
gt ¥ favawrtT arfad vt © |

TSIy ekl AUTeT T, Sehehl f1ameweh! qof T 4 NCHL
AT 3uatsy TsUehT NPIx woret #r%ha P2P Inward Cross
Border Payment &7 gfaem sf-= T Tehehl & ST a1
TTBTey Sohehl R YeToh UTeehetel WA ARTHGReT
USTUhT THH HATHT QTATT A% Yo T4 Tz | arer NPIx
gurelt ATohd M-Smart o deree P2P Outward Cross Border
Payment T U &1 YS! & ST9 A1 HTSTY= SSRAT @TAT
qUSHT WRAT ARTHReT UP| SeashuT 3TTeg, RIaRT ek @TaraT
TR TTREheTTs FEetersal 90T U3TsT da & | Igeht e
sfshet Fone Pay @@ Nepal Pay el @rgeshriat P2M (Person
to Merchant) Cross Border Payment T gferem 9f 3ucies
TOUHT S | A7 JUEAET UPl JeaedT 3T/ag R ST
QAT UehT ATeshee T At AliPay+ J2ashar Eg e T
ey, afegor i, omgeaTUe, STHT) @i SeheRT TTEshaeel
74 Skt Fone Pay (UPI / AliPay+) @ Nepal Pay (AliPay
HTH) Hei-egeaTs QR AThd Hest ST fo Te saare i
framsTE 3 |

IJH dehel T RoRo @ AUTEHT fafHaT wHewdrs T
gefsteror 7 WeChat Pay fysmusr oy | @y o seret
aTfeleh o 02/ <R T TS T sehehl ATaveh Tl ferg
WeChat Pay &I Zecii=e s i YUH! & STHel TaT dTeft
WeChatPay QR Merchant g fafar wiesat WeChatPay
T TR fefsieet qemmT T 7T JEfsTehoT Yuan! & |

a9 e QR quT POS weieeEd fefSed Aremare
g foiger | Ieteten! alfeqme gEagesd Ued eanT
AT Hish Ufehepd HaTg e 5&r g+ T Unified Merchant
Management Systems (MMS) & shTi=ara MU & | T
QR TS Tlehsha T faf=T Jeaenerr Standees & TET
FRZATE b T4 Uhdhd QR TH= §aT o ao i &
(el © | &t Nepal Pay T Smart QR & Tfshshd QR &aT
T g UTshaT STfd SIoTHT ekt & |

gargear  qur  foumffane wuw fadw oreRdrerse
st faareor T sTiyuTIer T A Seher FearmeffET TRy
FRIHA ThardIadeh TFd~T Tjehl arr Digital Comics Book
7 Animated Cartoon Series i TehTeT TRT ORI |

TS T ket Digital Lending 3T AN 1T ATST=e)
sfehehT TIETSe Sfeh® (M-Smart) a1 g ss1l ured 7 et
MBL Smart Loan @I gfaermes od ymaeshit s13s T MBL
Smart QR Merchant Loan &r &¥qul SfshamTa @ 9 R
Ffaeh! SAf-qw =XomT @ehl B | Digital Lending & fifq
T WRTHYH aF1E Felinl SToeAerE &iepfa Temmehs

UishTeTTs Tl OTeaee ava=T g STawIT 3 YT
T3S AT IF Sehehl WHITT Bl B |

POS SATIRHT 3cshe FHTHIHHITE Tamdd VISA §RT @Tar R oy
(T R0R3 T 0% HT) HHTHA HTSIY=S s POS HSIeTers
TR FHT Taredt Y TSRt TS agar fad e Faer
I Jewl B T FHIE G GHy Tagdia YT SRR
TIHTE Ta ool STrTHY WiAifa Seheht el & | |13 Al/ML
T JART T ST SATenied foter s T fafoer wmst aar
U TS YHANTT 1 Ui SRRl & | AT fammr
HTeTg=y dhel Smart Bank s @&y weEmse o afersmm
quq a1 g W TefSergsaT stivwmesr amEmT av gvs 9w
STTET I & | U1 FHISHTST IUCAHT T 1T 378 fafvr=
TetEEnT Smart Hub ds=rer 1T omeehetts Self Banking TTeha
fefsteetr stgva e 716 gefera qem swuet Sar 3uctsy Mgy
B | qae fava i fefsreet ufarsmT efenushr adur aftremT
Ty giee JATETS 9T FUTRUT T qE AYET SIEE AT
e Sehet TeTusht 3 |

HEAWTA AHTWE IS

(Corporate Social Responsibility)

S qur o< g, reidemT faxfier aeerdT far yee ™
ILTIT TATIAT HUHT EaT Gegehen! Tart fahrem farfter deerment
fRT HEEqUT g TTES | WS, |THIiSTeh T STed aTaraureh!
HTEIT &7 WhAT W foiar & Hfq Seeraruren favaefiar
stfvgfa g, Taxier wenfoca s g T Heemes stfafes somT
rEeRTeTar e FoaTe T 88ST g 50 | foriia HeTel SRt
&fep Taxflar FRITESaRT ATeMT GUhRETATeRT fad qeiT STeomT
UG T €A fag 0§79 | AfE T HETRT HEATTA |TH1iSTeh
ITETICh! FIHT & 6 | ATHISTh qT aTed ATATauTelTs
3TV Lo, guTaett, fent aarg areft qedrent it aud s Ay
TS T TR, ATHTISTeR STRIAAT T THTSHT bt ek
FNTIERRT WU ST THTSTHT ST sfeh @it farefier seument a8d
FAT g TSS | THTST T Yok Rl ISR ITaTiaed g
T & A qur faxiiT deurer frem, ey, faxfi amewar,
forftr ug=r @ frssteushT anfent ScommT AEM THu §9 |

T g AU T Sohel ford #Er aiifa amiiee
e SFeaiq faxiiar amerdrers wrufrerdr feuant o= T
HIBT=y dehel UM T8 T3 ITTET fafv= arerar sRiEnee
T ATRiR IYAT et TR TR | T 3nfer adAT et
TIST T TIT FATeEHT T 1T BTt hTeishH FoaTelT TR
Py | @ fafv=r wwuw e, amfster gester T fefstea
ACHHATRT T fereier SreraT areft SemoT T GeareuTeTs
T TS AN sohet TomTer Teh! R |

TR forTeraasent qate g, Sifess arft foauor, e
HAT GUTRHT ATHT STEIATCTEECTS STTaYaeh YHTT TG TR
T TTTIeRT g HTHTISTSh hries JoaTer Tehl fomT |
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anffer o Roce/er W e aE qur ufelene difeq
ifehgean! TedrTe TeH-T T8d HISHT JedT J=ATSTH
oy, &y feeamr S| gfetae ywifad afemesans
STCATaYsh AT farawor T TganT q=rweRT o | e ferar
&A% Sehel TRt AT TR faaerres T qatar gur
qr St arElt YoM T AEeEqul AnTeE gRmeET R |
Jq oF-atd, denat off afeutiersr sTumd faemem, aromT
T a3 iRt wHa witwenT © | 9, ot goorr |re o Aty
TEIATS ARAT fheet yam Tiwawr ol s off awadt
ST Taarer, e fefsed ai€ STem MR G8dnT TRl
oIt | e smiea fegset Yot wwTar Maw wreafaes farmers
(FaerE), ft wiasr fmtor wreafien foamer (Freht), qor
o ST fererer TaemT Si=me wHa Rl aFd= T
orir | ot Flier smaTT faemer, FueadmT var faaur
afa et yRweh 3 fafu faameraseaTs geefam faator
AT HiTeATe faemer, guidas TavTe Sifereh arafies sSehet
Y& TehT ToRIT |

qT WRTeRTCAT UTGfeTeh STeudTetals aret faer UaH et a1
311 e wonfier waTee SiteheeaT STTaveeh TTEe JUHUTEE
Sehel TG TR R |

frmforerr afr e TganT weM T |1, EorEt meed
Tt TEIdeRT eHeh TeTe®en! qaraR fashmamT aod e
eI TRt PR 9 3 ST, meriyety ST eeaqut
Tk T G1HE ATSTae® SC&T ToT TaaAuT fara=T S
USRS Hesh T JTeH J=Amusht fom |

qfeT THTERT 3. AT Sheh! TEITTA ATHTSTds JTRaTIe
HITHT STEHT YUY T HE FHild co UTaerd T W TehT
Rt o Sifer e oTeRl TIfeR AT W THEE TR TS
STIST TEeh! & | siehet ATTeT STaRwT STt T, ehehl Tehdhd
TrdfeTeRT STJOR USRMT =" 20 WiavId §WRI @ T
TS qUT ETHT THHT TN & |

FFa Ta fE SuHT GEANE qEe IO<Eied ed
TR T faawoT |
35.11.‘

faaor ‘ THH ()

?

ek areie (3. F. Roco/ <2 &l
g ATHIhT 2%)

20,%¥%¢ .00

R

3T, Roc¢o/ g AT RAHFIT
NUHT T

2,043,2R2.00

3 |FA T (2 + R) 99 40%,9223.00
¥ | 3G HET R0¢R GHHT T ?,39% ¥4, 0
FiRT TEHR THH 3,35¥,9%9.35
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YIINTT @ fFaT0T (M., Ro5q/5R)

4. ‘ Rk ‘ il ‘ wfcra
e |l 93,0,¢R% | 22.33%
IR 22,63 42|  20.2%%
3 |aEmEdr 2%,¢R,202 | 20.3%%
¥ |TUshT 22,444,232 20.04%
w | et 22,05 ok |  20.33%
% |uriet 22,%0,%0% |  20.08%
o | gguiem 23,00,%¢|  20.%¥%¥%
STHT R, R,R¥%|  50.9¥%
T @EH! [qaXUT (3.3, 059/5R)
.9 ‘ &= ‘ THA ()
2 |Terem R,€%%,10¢, 20
R | STATeoT HL&TT 39,000,00
3 |To<diT grerar CUE,E2U.CR
¥ |y 2,404 0%, 3%
Y |HEE SR JUT 3G1 3,93 K%0.00
T | 2,230,344, 42
ST T R, R9R,R¥Y.\9]
fardrooT @t

Ty S fafred favar Rer AuTelieeas 79 At
eew gmEr T fefSea wmegmere ae qur sA=fey ffq
ferEEeRT QUi UTeET T ES, YUar 1 gied e gar
T 716 SR & | bl 3B Tauwor Far “MBL REMIT”
9fT TeHTe Q. ATUHN & | AU e g fausurers
T T, AT favahl 31T Jgeheware  fauwuT HaT Jame
FEOTEEHTTeRT TEehIT fOeoT S yaTe M8 T & | favsor
AT 9T T T 7Y 37T T=ied Yoehewele TaT foei
¢ ST e sfehel TWHT S |

Jalt fafi=T I9EEETe USTSURT T Shehl TFIUT ITTETEE
T SERfed Shge® AT 23T BRTL @ 20,000 W=l daT
YT hEeeale TGH TGN & | THHT 1Y Sohel ST
AThER FHIOETEE SEd ATT Remit — Western Union, Money
Gram, IME, Prabhu Money Transfer, City Express, Himal
Remit, Samsara Remit, |-Pay Remit @Trra €T GFpraT Ty

T FHT THwuT YehTiehT saaree faams Rl |

a9 &t Exchange House/Bank =& femisor amprar mi
FAR T T IR Wl & | fova aomr fefsea
afEemT @feshumnt ada gftemT ey amars fefsea
FIT=A0T fad IO TTUET SIT3S AT 8T Sehel ToIUuanT & |
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= gfafe

sl & TedTenaTs des, gifed T AWEsHl e
faferehT Stga-e / faerramT S Rt Hiwd B TR & |
Al HI3eT T IEEr Hifad € &l Techeh! gTaHT o7
TS a7 HFISTHhT Tas! IUeTeH G HaTT TRUTT YUl & |

srfectomy Sehet AT YehReRT TaT fefseaest T oresmaTer
T TRl © | TR sfehs faskeusr T §-Sfs,
tfeww Fam, Sfae w1, Hfee w1, 30ar, iy daT, 3-
JTee THIATES S fhaenTRIGeRT HaTeeel 3TN sfehe HRERATS
ga, UNEsft T gEierd ST © | ETeiehT aSeEHT I[E TR
Self-Service Kiosk, Smart and Integrated Point of Sales,
various Online Platform T Digital Loan ST &aTe® sahet
JTUATUHT FaFadfieT gReshIvTRT 3qm@wr g1 | AT ddrer
UTeehehl B0 T 9 s=d T | 818, Yamiden favam T
SRR TS U e STl © | AT femr
e Arfefrdye womeft, enféfwfaaer sfas=r (Al) @
i Wt srfaweee, fefsear fremmfiw s,
TR HATATIRAT STJAR STJHeH T @i faeiier wwmet
(Personalized Financial Advisory), ey fefseet amere,
I Sfeh wiewH T araraRusft faxier @4t (Green Finance)
ST AT IcaTe T HaT TEGA T ATSHT AT S@TgUaRT
T | A TecTeEcT TTEshells ST faxiia AT |fsha et
FARHRT AT SAfhwels el HRISRRT AT T SfamsT
FiehT ST ST SIS W favame soet faus! 3 |

T, FfafadT ST daT fodmenT Iof SR 3 d15eK
HREAThT Faciiehr &1 | fefseat wiewiar g4 Udis HRIEK,
T ST2T AEH-UEH { TTesheh! SATHTA aTarTs Gierd Tet
TIg-ERIT L& §&=HT (Multi-layered Security Architecture)
AT T & | ST BRRAT, Intrusion Detection and
Prevention Systems, sfspr ufafy, T faer-zew Aiftefs
TUTTCAHTh . FRTed HTgeR SRR TR dfgem T e
el TiwsRT & | @t frafaa Vulnerability Assessment
and Penetration Testing (VAPT) X JuTiefishl shusiities
gfger T deshTel e T Tk fm Sferdshl |

T, FFATEERT Qg G ST gl T At
AT P STRITH ToaTel UG §, STHel TaT shael Tfared
TS 813, AT T&IaTe Ui Gt 3o ashdl I T
T | HTEER LT AT g halel TEINTA aTieed 0TS AW, ATeh
Tawamer THATvTERT H%aUE & =T HUHT e 3¢ Teohl S |

et oTThes fefSea-wreivaer senifawen fmfor
ST IS TSTEHb! & | TH FohITEEANTT Ycdsh UTeshel
ST BT Taxii ATITIRAT, eT T SR ET Hel @

AT U1 | TEHATIEATS 3o ISR AT HaT UG Ta
SRS Ao 31Ul TATE Seheh! & woifua 7 fewmmr S
ST TH T |

HFE AR SHAGEATIH

R0¢R IATVTE THITHT SHHT BT T EALehT FHHATIH]
HEAT 232 ST T 3T FHHARIGER] H&AT 2,%%3 S W HaT
FHART TEAT ¢, 4cx SHT Tohl & | THTeT auaT I3 ST A4t
FHART TG T 220 SHT FHARIEE Sl TaTaTE ST
qUHT S | FHT FHAGEHE ¥ SHT (¥ ufaera) wfear
FHARIGE WohT B | FHANCER] FH A HATEA T
qAT TSI ool T HATFITE STEITIHT ST HoaTs
yuredt (Performance Management System) @T§ @ T
AT B | T YuTTefiel wHU=riRT HrihT a&ga (Objective)
@ "AETeHe (Quantifiable) FeamesT T TES |

sepaTs deret, Tfaeaell, TRl T dhal ST Hav=aT TgE
HTaeh ST FHART G | Tl FHARIGER! g faehm,
FRIGETAHT THI(F T ATfeTHer  Sehohl Hhardren! TR fmior
TS | TR TIIAT STTHR ool HHe THTeaRT T, garar qur
ATCTRATATS 3T% AGTE T FITs Iof TTITHeRaTHT TEhT
T | G, dohel AFE GHTEART TR foemmd T fadenrt
feRTeIeT ATeneh et HomlTer @aehl 3 TTaeTaet g 3713 ThHehT
HHTEATS ~AaH ST fet$ QT e et 1 Aifq feruspr 3 |
STE T ST-ANeT UTITeor arferd fFH=iieeaTs YaH e
T | STATTHT T 9f FHARIGEATS TaST qT TaasT ST
g el anfer deorm MrieeaT wevmt mrsT T 3Hieken €T T
AT Afglg M wrieTs e fagas |

T, Tl Ufqeqelicheh  JOHT IR  WqHT B
HITERT HEeaq0T FHeRT L& {0 Hia Sk TSI Wl & | TJEHT
frafe T T T A FHERIATS SRl AT HEH T
3ANT T Uideg & | HHT ST awias diq AhEhg
T T ORI SAATCId T T ehehl T SHTEH ErsTeedt
TovoreeaTs T9 AU GUR T8 ANHS | SRkl ShHARIEwh!
qTTieTh REITATS 3=y UTAfHeha™T URg JuTel TRehRer
AT T, TIT TAT AHITSTR G Sl ISR Terd
TRIUShT HTHTTSTeh LaATeRT ATSHTEETs =[TaH HATET A ST
FHARIEERT AR LTS qORETHT T THUEH |

FHAT Fa1 a1 i afafa

dfers SJouT Aage® gIHT 1Y Faferd Shifay ferd
ST & | el Ipe AT UG T T SiifeHeh! 3fad
SEATI THeRT SATHT e T ST STHITchoh! STTTvIhdT
4D | TEH ST o ekl Sferdl TR JUshlel TURGT
SR JTEHNT A, ST SFTEATIAATS THISRRT 13
FAEITITHRT TagT T dfehw STTHIRT TITERRT ToaTerTen
AT TR &7 e gAaee T SHRSH THREg
T §9 | TH SRAT W FRAHHT Toarerhen! darsisheawl
SHTiST ter Teefier et e aur gfawr afafa @ 3 |
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.. qaw L
2. | weaTereh, ot giter TRET O BRISED
R | Temreten, ot fager weRTeT Maw e
2, |3 il e
© | off g sigter
“ W fa qo ArsT fanmr S
BE i RCic-RE)
ST ST famT
. Eiﬁaarrgaﬁﬁﬁrﬁ e gie

FHERT FaT qT Giaar AH{aRl THE 38T Shanl S
ST G-l Hifd qUT qTIgUees aar T Goalersh atafd
HHET YT T QT SR B9HT I8 Hinfdel TRt fHolagsent
ar Tuler afe WUt SdeenT STHERT Teards atgfa
HE T T TS |

IMF. R0c?/¢R T FHART TaT TAT Giaem afafashr S
F. o4 NG S 7. o TET T ST 3 9T A3F ThT TR |

fau= =t #w=it

Sohel TUT T sehehl THEehT STRIFHT W& UeTeT T A
FHT Ta=T FIHT SHeil YaTE Q. AR & | TH Sehel T4TT T
Sergr it faa=T afehr afee T gy &qwm fafe=
STRET HT%hd TRISTTRYET &9 30 T el JaTE Ta STTELeah!
@ | TR agferrayet Feit wriifadienr stiaur & a9 St
forfera gar wSPR &wif, Aeferew TSTTRIETE Weheht g
afESHT et afee IgAfaerar @i, afad qga™ sFew™
forerrr shtt, wifafersr fererr aum sga@Tfas arfam et ol
TATE T4 SMEehl & | Sohel SATGHITHR T qoT TIEfT=
AT Taa T Ieared ua Aorr stfafg 1 segaer
Tafaer sTaaRr GoaTe THeT At TaERiEeaTs agfaayet
SATSTEWT SATSHTIR HY qor ugue &<l Ja1 WM 18
LT B | I Tgferaayul Fweit forer st=arfa dammeieser
¢ UqeIqEr AT ST U TG HTEed WOl § | Af
FHelletsh! ATEANETE TR 89 9T df¢ TTedhel Hgiedd &
ST TaT ITANT TG 3TTE WIHUeh! & | Tarasht STffeh o ar
JeuRfierdr T TRISHTRERT Jaad T Jarars AT s e
Tfgath TR RIS TRt AT Ul Fa ufewg, a7t fewrer
TuTferehT, agaT T AT S o= fvafrr amber T
T O GTheRl UvETd, 3t (SUTICiehT fafaer |Terdr Sishd
O T SHT1ohT FHIASHEAT FEHTNT 1 AicdTe Al | IR
St foRTamT TeH- TG g BIEATE qUT ST ST
TUTeTehT TEHTIAT S31hT Tty fereatt dThd aTe miushT Hiv
e AfeaT Sutiestt ey feaar fog ST @ |

ST ATCHET TIHT 31T HTATEHHTTehT TR HHT THA fora= ot
Tl T8 §a MLl & | T8 Fwqia a9 fafi=T argfed qur
TG3TT HEhHNT HEATEE, JAT TAT HHT TSR 1T STGATS
Tora=r STHT o] ST T HTHT 0T AT 3T TS hiedTs
FHq T fee TSR T |

GEAWTA JmaA
T ORI g qRenT S quT fodid Ger aree
FATAd M, O T SehgiT ST v o aivoseesh!

203 arffies ufidcer Q0Ta/TR

TUT FIHT YTEHT TRUGRT & | el dEaRTel dhatarerl i
TSl SEITTT Gemer STufEr Wil doarash arafa
TIT T AU T Aehel ST LRI Tehepd QI
OIS Y@ STIATHT AT AqcadT HEITTd gurma
FIT T qAT AU T Fh T 31T F1ameh Tehrreegmr
Femmaett, fafremmaett T srifafuean! qremT T STuTe T
HITTE TavmTer ATides SHT STPTH 716 SATTERT T ehel HEATTA
GUTTHehT TUTTRIT HRITaT T LTI FHARIEERT SATHT
faeqa e fedT e Ml @ | T8 W HHARIgERT qarar
STGReg T T T TRITSRTERT AT HET T ITeehet Ui et
SIS EEATA GO TG AT &HAT HATlg dreet
e FHeRIEETs HaM TRUERT, e STIUTe qur HEImTd
U favTTel STawIehal STTHTR STTTHAhT SATHT ITETe%sh!
guT T TR |

TS T Sehel STRI TEhT Tehishd TTH, Roc? T Fafed
U, T SHITTH STkl el ] U SeREE 39
SfReRT HeTeThgeel TTeTT Tkt Ter Ig Uid Hedreish atafd
ot yfders Wehl & | Tt T ek T Jurer fodios e
afafeeT ITeHT TehT AT siheRT IRReHTEE Ufd gearere afafa
T &OHT STATheRT T ITEET ol & | Sohel TUhRATATEhT
STHehRIeRT FfeT STTavaes gt qor STHeRies fRafad qater
Tfes g-ufsrert qur Online Media T SaerT 319 Website
AT TSR T8 ST & |

I AT WHIA T T AU T Sehehl 3,97 e .
%/ 02 T AT T \© THITSH T FHIRIRRT HeTeTehen] HATSTREHT
eraTRYegor afnfa, S srewemeT afafa, FHert dar giaer
afafa, ardta JrEieRoT famer arsweht afaf qor afts wrfwrt
aguT FEiert afafa (EXCOM), saaema= agar AML/CFT,
TR T afidt, et/ atfaea sraeema afafa (ALCO)
aEder fafu=r affaes fSramfser @t o | Ieaifad
afafaeeet QifRTHT S, e T ITETI HTHAT SRR
7 Tt TraTE 1S STIUHT S | R Sehel YEHT-ToR q T
TATET ST SATHT 3o SATEITI THT ATHT STaETo
SIfreRTt @I T goT STiudiies g TRUHT & | 991
T sfeent Hifq fraemenr aftdrer o1ged ek Trqul &m
FNATEREs To7ey, Ralyf T foar suuT deve W
HEATTA GIME HTT T S TaT SRt Ee U S |

arafesw fae=tor gureft

STEHEEATS ~[eRTUT 718 ATEeharTatalTs T HaT gfee aem
TR EeelTs STudH Tidthel Y& T Heel 3= iieh =T
UTTEA! GIUHHT S Hadl Hides W&l 3T B | Sefhel ST=NH
Fra=or guredt T FEeRT uMTaehTiareRT TEler T fS ey
TS HHIGHT & | ShaT T 3Twaieh =T Sy
U] Hodielsh HiHia, SINEH SJawo |ifd, damadreror
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Qw3 arffes UfdigeT Q0Ta/TR

gtafa, grafa srEieREr famer afafa T e faft=
Management Level @fifdeme trwafter fram=or yorefient
TR GARTEeATeR T TREAT & |

ITTET 2wy T Wt Fet Aifa, T qur wrffafuse agfar
AT SHITSTHERT & T SR BATIRT FATITSHCT Soheh]
HTCTTHT SREIHEEeTs = {eRT0T TREhT & | ST, Shll, TodTe
AT 3T SNEH T 3 STGHATE SFeATS U Ha ST,
SEFTEAT TAT GUIH STELEEATS WIS Ta Soheh! AT
=TT YuTTedt T et TR dTeRT GHiETT Temretes afiidet
TTd SR B |

SehehT fariar 3w UTieehT ATHT ST STe T U STTavaehaTelTs
T 718 SITEHeRT SAeqehTiaH, fasehTierT mTaeears =T
THa% Tediesh @idlq dod Uldag @l © | JGHT AT
ATEATF THEHRT AT =0T qonedt Tmuame =ne
FRfafee TR T FEEET THT T8 ITHT & | J&T

@I teTEanT et

SRRl SesTET AT ETETOT EvTaTe TReh eramareren ot Sft. .
TSTaTEh WS HiTHT, TS UHISUSUSH Sehehl RIS qoT
gifeameeh! faeqa &9aT ST@TaREeT T gugd uideed Jucree
TEfe] HUHMT HoaTersh GHTdRl ThaTe glidsh g=ag faT
AN | AT S TSETEd W FEHT AR ThSUeTHT
SIRERT T 02/ <R AWTINEIT THHTHT T FHITHT U, R0%3
T QT 222 T 29R qUT ok T faeia HeeT grareft U, o3
T THT &R T &2 Farted I 7 g7 95 g5 |

oA ATHIT T ToaTeieh QIafaaT WOHT ZTHT

ehehT ToaTeteh ATHIqHT HEITTeh JRRUIEERT dheaTe 3 ST,
FEHTT S IEEhT ThaTE 3 ST T Ea-T goeTeidh ¢ ST
TR ST \© SHT ToaTeTohe® (o ST & | HEITTeh SIEeHT T
STHehT $Iele Uug Y Iferam aearrar ot e, ame fatfe m
& TeaTereh off gfeh fareiel geaTere afufa awer Teees
vgare feguuent TSAmMIEs fafd Roc2/o0c/R0 W a¥ERT
SohehT HelTeteh GfHTaehT 12y 3T S3ehet Teflopd TahT qoT Hife
SSHATE TEATIH T TEwehT TS Th Woh! TeTeteh YSHT

Frifafgeet Tt T STfEweR! gie=m, TeoT, Joars
T e 7 Operation Risk Department, Credit Risk
Management Department T Integrated Risk Department
@eT TRgenT Tre GxTehT faem FIes, 3.7, Seheht TR
T HeareRt =i ifd fawee aftarererr @t AML/CFT
Department, Compliance and Governance Department g&et

TEaqUT AT T3S TTUHT S |

grafa fgaoT (W arevefcs) framor

qrfd YIGeRtuT qT HTdshaTal SRRt TaHT faeie =T e
T IR U TRIoT uey FRIvERT AT | et
ot yfgaor FemoT W, Ro%y, wwfa yfgsor femor
TrRrraedt, 03, uTeT T S T fadiaeTHehrT SehTser ST e
T o uftsier dres smier STraEes Hifd, UfHaT T snarenT
TSJHT 7Y SR 71 STTUGRT & | SiehehT HelTeteh #ff AT SUSTiehT
HRATSToheaHT TRt YETeRT TaROT qe STTderadl feameraramT
Torftr TR &mT STEwEE Hifd T GER T EEiEET e
T 3ETART TTY HEA GEIROT T SAIqhATal T foaie
AT Tamor gl |fbfa et it ® | a9 affaer meRr
Frotaee qer Tl st WUkt FRieEsT STHeRRT Hetetes At
FET T T TRUShT | AT Eife e T ShRigesh! STTHH TTHeRT
ATAT Sfehel hi2d HRIAEHT Ush 37emT AML/CFT Department
GET THUHT T Ueeh ST hrieradr KYC/AML stired dvehr
ST faeT fag Trafe gfgeror (T esve i) famor Tl
UT T FIGTTeRT IR 716 ST & | JUTeT T, Siehehl TG,
veIferd T qIT ST=rifes JEem 37387 AML and CDD Policy,
AML and CDD Procedures 3Trafies T shi-== TRUHT & |
R, SHTEATTRIT TIRHT Ioel HETTehe® Teohl Traf gy
T HTcAhATE! THATRATIHT T T THEROT ST STaeTa
Ffafq a0 T MU |

HEATIS IRRYHT T ST ST e USiem aeelr
wr.fq.@r ahate off g "ed T Hes St ot st
are T g7 w8 fafd Roct /0’ /¢ T sent % 3if arfien
HTERT qTeT &1 fgiehants sTqureT merr fomr | | aife
Fitfeh HTROT TS FEETROT SRREHT §Y8 a% o ST
goaTahee ot S g &, off giaa IR o T
HiaT YRt fratfad g weermT geeers afafadT adarmor
RRRYAT AeeTe Hiattaca gl dearad ot S e
G fauenT TSiAmMTeTs fafd RocR/02/0% AT SHeH!
sfhen! HeaTeTeh |ATGeRT uRe Iff Seshel Efiehd T U¥=ETq
aefterr starefir gearerss afafarr e sHifSHeRT dedTershee

TS Tl |

(
(

q) reweT it T F €.
(HETIH SRREEEahT Thae)
R) T T qHee g
(HEATIR JERETEEhT qhaTe)
(3) TS T T TS Tr@d
(ST g=TeToh)

(%) g=aTean sft sifr ang
(HETIR JRRETEEhT qhaTe)
(¥) T it g AT TS
(FEETIROT SRR EEhT qhaTe)
(¢) T=arer sft wfon wogm
(TETETT SEREEERT dheTe)

HoaTeteh ATAfquT TSHTIROT SRIEHTehRT dhaTe b § Mushr
T IeHT fafd o</ 0% / o AT STHehT TodTersh Aiafdshr
w33 3ff Jashet oft fava werTer Mawes fpeh ™ aveTd Seheh!
gTeTeh! TodlTeteh HTHTdeRT HTEHT ETIER @ 3 |
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(q) stemet sft Vo &4
(HETT IR dhaTe)
() T S qFe e
(HEATI IPRETEEeRT dhaTe)
()a=area =it fawa g daw
(S ETEROT SRR EEeh! ahale)
(¥) TaTEE St T9A TS TrEe
(ST HouITeteh)

(v) T=arern sft s @
(GITI SRR EEehRT TheTe)
(%) Tt *ft e TIIEeT v
(TETETT SRR TEERT dhaTe)

(\9) Tt =it AfFET WUIT
(EETETT SRR EERT dhaTe)

SehehT oaTeTh ffas! dae o= U TEuH STgET
Trafua soar s Mepr © | Hver AafHT FeaTers dtafaeT

T W T IS THhI T | FodTcAh TIHITRT FSHAT SohhT
TG FRIHHT 3Tfershd SR 8] WUh! & | Seaiad Jeareish
qiAfaeRT TFqul SoheeT ATEwI TR Gedm it ava=T

T foret | 3% Seeeh FofemT Y 9f EsTeree foy
A g ST T | fa At eerers fatan dadE
HoaTeToha®ah! Ut T FeTa®er Ut TNehT WiTeh! Toreror forey
HPAR T S :
HIEUER
ey #ff Uv .6 Ry ¥,40,000
e INCaP IS R R CERCEI
(fafd R0¢3/ 09/ 0% FE) %¢ R,9% 000
goreteh At gd
(Tafer ?ocg/gijo ) 3¢ 3,188,000
e ot gt farea
(fafd Rocg/0c/R0 GH) & {3,000
” oA T T e R 3,%¥¢,000
HodTereh #t A ||
(fafd R0c2/0¢/R0 gH) % R,8% 000
A e e e R R,02 Koo
(fafd 202/ 0% /3¢ TH) 2,
HoeTereh oY aweHT ekt
(fafd Roc2/0R /3¢ THY) 23 2,02 400
FoaTes #T GHe T S
(Tafq R0t/ 0% /3¢ 3T 2 2,00, 400
godTere AT HiuT Yusi
(afd Roc2/ 0% /3¢ St R 9,¢%,000
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yafed ST Ud Skl ATtk fifq frem smfsm fafv=r
SfEmEs quT 3T FRIEE SEd dohohl YSilehIoeRl 3T,
HfeTa HeaTuTes, TN gTeE, Hofl, dele qor ae]
ST TR sehet T faqu STTavae grgu esrert faves
IRy TRfIT FTHT BAHS T SRl 3T bl T Tael a3
HoaTerd ifael 3w fvfaes T T A @ STy T
HouTetsh AiHfd Tt afsha @l 3 |

HodTereh fffder TheT Tfeeelr dashare Mert futree T ar
fruloenT Fiaaen! feerdienT TraamT Yclsh SSahAT T
T T T | A1, STt SHTee AATIHT HouTaisd diHiqere
U Foiageehl st feordt arememT aiq SaThaeh &aT
aftyeqr T TR T | SohehT T Aifqese MehT fHulags
AT FoTaeh ATHIqeh! SSHAT UST T SAha qeil STawh
fouter e TTiweRT © | ST feeEAT it wRe Sepent fedes
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T Affdaent Tid S3 T &. ITETET — §.2¢,000/ -
T — §.24, 400/ -

7.9, 30T HTelsh HiHTqeh! FHet A3 T &. Y, 03,400/ -

3. GATAHhT ATATUT TFaeft saaedn qm 3= faawon

GTcTsheh! STTEUT FFeI-aHT FReTfeard SEATeRT 3TN EfgdT WU/ 9T : WU

THTER INERERT Ush 9eaT Jal Heleish T 87 drarft faaor THUHT

HATTwETR! ATMoH TT RIS qAT qRATTHoT FRishe wvaeell foaor :

| m o fw e e e s s e

Executive Leadership R0¢R/0R/ 2%
2. for Corporate Governance afa 2
and Sustainability Ro¢R/0R/RR

Athens, Greece
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ek HeTeishel 1T HeTeiehehl UGHT Tgwh aT WA WUehT Ty
fe Ry JEmeRT AT Al SR TRITET/TRITRT T diehT
Fereror -

o HLIWT A9 9T FASTR! THTERHT URERHT Y T He

ToRTemeRT ST TREhT &7 T @TTehT WU & et feferor, FE 0T 063, 3 FoT faeir HeT R 37 003 UF TS

o TS fSTeRT UshTERERT UTETERT 5 HETIeT W AT §T HETehT o T ST R AR AR A9 T S
T AT TR FHFIHT feTueh! 31 o fearermeht faawoT, — e

o TIST 317 B WIS HEATRT AT IR AT HelTeTsh Toohl
T ey feaor,

o oot TRl UG FT HER HEAMT SRR &
FHTTIRT STERIqHT T TRGeh! 9T Hieh feraor

HeTeTehel 3T Fhfdeh! 3ev WU giaepd HeTeh] HeTeish, qote | T¥ULHT |
TETiershT, IR THE aT HEART 9 T TR T HiehT faawor -

HaTeheeds e T qem o Tieheetae §Y FRATRT | Rl HRATRT HUehT - faatur STeTer STHeRRIHT F3TTUH |
TTWERT T GrehT foremu

3. WEYTHT SIRGH STTEATYH qAT AT (HI==0T JuTTeft Tvareeft faror
(%) STEH TR ATHT FT FHATT TST qT /THUHT TS THUHT T HIhT HRIT : T HORT | STGH FaeToT dfafa
(@) SiEw FeeaT giafd arere SRt

¥) iR AT (FUSF TAT IEUZEHRT A JAT 19)

%.9. T« afafa g

? oft S Topre G ¢ CRISES ERIED

R ot goge Hed g EeIED

3. oft farvarr = e ghaa TR T IR HAfshd SieH e sifadhd
¥ At gier @idaer ) TG G AfaeRd

* ST ST AfafashT G Goatee 3 S o5 GHTetel TagUshl TS fafd o</ 02/ 0% HT SERT sfdhahT
HoaTersh affasl wRe 31t Sehel Tl T IETT Wt Wbl SITEH ST Aifden! Harserar ffd 0cr/0% /24
Td sfg @ g T fAfd 0¢R/ 0%/ 2% AT SERT SHERT ToaTersh AATGRT w3y 3 SSware ToaTas off fave yemTer
Tawers g TR |

M) FffaT S T : © TEF (AT R059/5R)

(3) afufasr w0 araedl ot faavor « afafarr e arewd Ser faawr - sifen e afbfaer geud: Jue 1=
SRl STRY TNehT Wfehehd QT Tfds ThT 1, el T TG T8 TTd AT ST=di-ied qoT iasmT 13 To fafa=T
SifEee (Feil, HaTeH, SoTX 3TTE) T afea STPTHT T ST TR Hateish afafa Tmey gfaae Uer T qur ar grswemT
S HTTATIATS ATTTIH GIMeE fo T THTIRIT FHT 71d SR

(1) STl =T FwRifata 9T /TR : AgER
(%) 3Tr=afier f=IoT yoTTefiehT ATiT 5 wffa TeT W /USRI ST TR T GIRT T - TS ATHT
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(3) ATaieh =T yurreft afafa araet faawr
%) 9. Al ATREGH AL

wE. ‘ i afufd ]

2 off farvamt =i SRISED TR TG IR AT STEH T STgaTe
R #ff ufeg Tt st qaeT T U@ R sTfadhd

3 #fT GITT SRR qe EIRCRI P CEoED

¥ ot YT HHAR VTS o eI HEI9a-4eh, QT ad

q oY feant eUs e eI T4, ITET ST

T #t o e @it qe TE TR Trata saeema favmr

o, | ot feceftm Y qeeT TG FQTT T, T ¢

¢. | ot o e qeeT T YT SATehd, UQST 35, 37T T 39

. |t faues wETE amer qa=T TG USSR, FATT &, & T o

0. | ot fafad == wr CES) THE YATHR T FAN e s farmT

22, | off foemer wek SAreft qa=y TG YT MR, U 3T, ¥k T ¥ T

9. | oft afw e o) TG TSI TR, WaQTT R

3. | off AR FaTd qe= TG T, STTHT T SATIR Qiewhiferar famr
e, | off g% omr e ghaa T SiiEw e famr

o, | ot fog argeRat qa T fehehd SIITEH faaamT

2%, | oft TomT SR qaeT T St e fava asR famr

3. afafaenr So% @@ : & TTE (.9 R059/5R)

3. afufar w1 vt DT faawor
qfafaeh! sl Gt BT faawor : sl SHTEH HaEATI diafael Feil STEH - 1ehtor gra-t e Hiq fem
T ATYe] AT GIETSI T SITEH SawToT SiHfd SHey Taase UST TRl are SATataeh S9HT &S st
SfEy afgeT T TTEATIHaTs HATEavdsh qhaes fa |

(@) 9. gaTe Sfew afuafd :

2. | ot favamm = TG TS FHTEHRT SATehd STEH T STgaTer
2| off gy SRS qaey EIRCR P CESED

3. | ot giver @iderer gy U@ G TR

¥, | oft 3= amar e @ SifeH aema favmr

w. | ff fag amgerer qae gie U@ UfeheRd SITEH T

3. gfufa®r 5% &7 : ¥ 9@ (3.d R059/5R)

3. atafaer F araeel Bet faEwor
qfafaeh Rl arereft Srer faereT : Hare SieH Saeae aiifdel dere STEH J[wuT graw STy
fafa ey awer arder FquT 9fTsie T STieH Saeae atifd awe TEaraes UeT Tt AT STTatde S9HT &
HTEehRT SITTEH AfFeT TR SaeTIeTs v HavHes fal

(=) amifeler weTree fafRmTEEt WU /TR - e d fathee ot e fafemreef, Rowvw
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¥, AT qAT AR JATE gt faawor
(F) EATS TESIeh TReT GEAT qUT SRR Jareeh! faaror :
famm ‘ HETH ‘ TSt T fafd
Fiten HTLROT ETeRT T RERIEED] Rocg|o]|og, Roc?|0]|2]
TSI EreTeT TRy e T |
Fiifer ufdae Website, Book | a1 TTgeHT TT@THT, R0<8|0%12R
S e S Roc¢?|olol, R0c?|20l0w,
Ro¢R|02|0% R0cR|0%|R0
fordTosTenT oo INTE I o Haasie T sfopeh Tafaer faeroree frafaa e
AT TRTTSTA T TTHCUeT |
Agq

(@) AT TSR FNEhT AT 3T HROT FIarTs a1 @ 31T THehIaTe. ShRETEHT Tieh! T AT qrarvefl STHehRT : TR
() ufeear arfier qur far aremor aur gra=T wuent fufd : Rocg/0%/R¢

Y., WEIRTT @TAAT T FwHAT avaedt faawor
(F) FHORITERT GTeT, TeY(d, Ja faenrer, aTfer, dore, ST T 377 GierT, JTher T f9aT, STamEtedr arTeIashT Huee
gifeushT A= T ST fafaTHTEeT / STaET T 9T : HUEhT |

(@) iTaHE FEEAT ef T : G TR 3 |
(TT) 3= SHSEATIT TEHT FHHTRIEEehT T4, STfereh TRt qIT ST Fraref faemor -

H.9.

oY T HISTAT

fferr
DIEDRIT

g fa.q

SRGE]

)

UT GheHT £.9.223¢ 3f@ 000 GHY
o 3TF FHISSATS! 5.9, 000 2 00% T
arfmT ¥ .9, Ro0% 3G 093 TET

TSTge e 3.8, 2023 i reraH]

ot wferg, Tt erfer

TS UG HriEE
FAfereRd

g fa.q

Wﬁ@?éﬁg é.ﬂ'. ooy MG ool AT
TS & £.7. 000 G 008 T
fafvrer S 3.9 020 gf@ 020 T
HTBT=Y % §.9. 00 G AT

oY fagar T =g

S TS FHRIRT
srferepa STty qem
ST

g fa.q

T J §.9. 2330 aig 293% THT
THATSHT S 5.9, 2238 g 00% G
TR e §.9. R00¥ I BTeTar

T G ST

ATdd HelAdelh

fg.u.

T wg for T &1 £.9. JATE Rooc 3@ A R020 T
e fas@ S .9, W, 020 G ST R022 T
TR e §.9. SHaRT 022 3G grerer

At 9T HAR AFETA

TR HRTIeEh

wH.fa.0g

TFATSHT S §.9. U Rook G ook T
TR S §.9. A R00% 3G ey

ot feehr =T

ur fa.uy,
TH.Q
Tl O] W™

e T T 318 e €.9. 7 R00% IfG SHART Ro0c T
THTEHT Sk §.9. SHail Roo¢ 3@ I 020 T
TS S §.9. I 020 3@ I 0¥ T
HTBIY=Y o §.9. I R02% 1@ Serar
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(er) FHAT aFaeelt 3T faa<ur

HTEAT STIAR HHERT GGYfd T TN /TR - T

T T ERhT UEY(d TaT TR YT : fafaa derm srdemaf

R EdLehl °h‘-i‘°ll{r\l°hl qedT - 2R

@WE@T 2,xe%

FHATEEDT TFHT A qT/ THUGHT : qUHT

HLE. R0¢?/ ¢R AT FHARIGEATS 3T ATCTH HEAT T TR HEdT : Uy

TR U T HEAT T SHHRIShT H&AT : 3,200

ST, R0¢?/ <R U HHAR qTiaH T & : 34, %3%,20%

Tl TEHT HEENT Geeh! TiawTd : 20.0% % (FHA T AT 4.3% %)

A FHART GHAT FHHART T Wreiohl Ffard - 2.%% % (3. . R0<2UeR FH FA FHART Teh)

<. GEATRT AGT qAT AGTIEIUT TFareeft faawor
(%) argT araeeft e

HEAThT qfgeell 3.9, ol fafcer faewor NFRS 1€ IR T /-WRehT HehT RO | TEhT

et afifdere afcatr fafdr faeror s e fifd - R0¢R|ok|23

Jifees fafaer foemor weprer et fafq 0¢3]0%|R0

fe SraTHRrEreT ra=T seent fafq RocR|o4|23

ATITROT quTeTe fafaer faeror e wushr fafd Rocgo’IRe

HEATeRT AT I JLEuT qraet faawoT :

(37) 3TT=afeh FTHT T TEeaoT 1 TTRehT o ared fagr s ™ e, HEITERT AT T TIETehT AT
(31) arre farst Freh TTREER! WT Hienl forerT, ey st fgeh s,

(3) Arafieh SRaTaieroT siq tafererr T TiwenT (Sutiaes, SuTiaes ar srefaTfye )

(@) st getor gfufa areret faaor -
GUSF TAT GIEUgTHR! AW, U T JRIAT :

At g weq
2. off YeTET TS TRt ey CEiED qrr.fcr.q
3. off gt Teh geey gfed G AT aTa e fa.w.
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T qqFT fafa qar Jufkua agew den ¢

mm

ook @R Tafa IUTErT FaeT e Sk @ Tafd 3UTErd HeEeT HEAT
2 Ro¢R /0% /8% 2 22 RoeR/2%/% 2
R Roc¢/0%/Ro 3 2R Roc¢?/8R/ %0 2
3 R0cg /04 /2% 3 23 Roer /0% /04 3
% RocR /0% /%% 3 ¥ Ro¢R/0%/0R 2
« RocR /09 /0% 2 (& Ro¢R/03/RX¥ 2
i) Roc¢/0c/R% 3 2% Ro¢R/03/3IR 2
) Rocg/oc/Re R
Roc?/0R/2% 2
] Roc¢/%0/0% B
20 R0¢2/%0/ 3¢ 3
ufq Sah =T % TaTeTeh AiAfd FEIel &, ¢4, koo T Afed
SETEeT Aifael ST T FRATERRT Uidaad HeTereh | RETIenT difdel JTHAT T HRATRhT Uiaded T Tcdeh Hiaiden! S3ehehl
affaar T ment fafq - Froteree wemerer afafamT 9T 15 TR |
). 7 faawor :

Sk T faciier HeraTe SoT 9T JT9E ST ST A FIHT WY T /Afeusht
yaIferd I THITSTH TRl HeTetsh, SPRET, =R, TodTehl, TIT-ETOTT U7 TR |
THRIETATSRT RTEIAHT U3 GiaeT a7 ATy STeeh iashd diiad
Gerent fareiier Tl sushT A s, B, SHEHT, AR, HealTgehi aT
THRTETATeT HEITehT S qrdfd s feRfawer Wimeret T /AR

TRl T SSTSTd U= ST TTet diehehl STde®eht TeAT TUhT

T 9T /TR

Frermerit fehraer deermeht fame feror am gafieramor maf T STThT

HEATeTTS Taguaht ST ITeeT WU /THTehT

TEAT T HeTeTeh fa%g STSTATHT FHt JET Afeiiaehl 9T fers ETT T T WUk Gt fafaa st

qrehT faaor T T STl HRISERT AT HeTHT T Ukl JeT
TATRF AT Tt IecTQ T GeT TLLHT |

gee: TamerrY faehraer fefara m sfem o TiaenT |

gfaTe sTfuspaet I - §g 3G qFehIT
qq : IHE U AR
faia : RocR|on|2¢e

gfaaeT derers afafqare wiea fafd : ocRlowIgR AT S@=T HaTers afafaenr w3v 3ff d&

Annual Report 2024/25 3 2




Qw3 arffes UfdigeT Q0Ta/TR

dUcil Vol 2053 dY GWOT 90 3UGWI 8

3TRIR®Y AU SR

F) famaswr avw FOETCR g
HaTeTsh affdaent aTfter FidaeTdT Scoid MU 3 |

@) ey qan seadiey afifeafiare Swat FOEarE ®9 @Y T8R! WY &1 €T
T TR AT UTeTehT TR STefdmsiet S fhwahTISTRAT Hearel THTa JIehT & | 3TTTfe Jig &t it 3.4 wiaeranT difea
TERT HTOT 3cATeH, THTOT, Tefe T FHsil ST Hacdqul arsie® STUTerd ®quT Taedi g Hehe | I8l T-1SiT &1l T T
TSIl AITHT FeeT FOHT HHT T | GEEhITA STad «-< HTaeTa=aT o & i STHIhHTeh! ST Soei@H T EUHT TagaT
FT=ATh HITHT qaTed GO SREU | b Hrger Geriicish Tegeht ardr faaeft g1 afeata 3o TataT JiehTel aiardT qagst
e, T TEeT ol YATEHT STUTerd gig o3 T |

ST ST SATSIE 20 UTARTAN=aT et ¥y U aTedfesh &= STt fareaaT AT srem e | Je, NPL 3Tqamd 3
TaeTae=aT TTTY JaT shstishl TURERHT FTEE STTUhT T Fel sfhehl SHTEH STaETI=HT 9T gaTel Tasi-T TRl 3= | ahrr
st @eent fears, Seferer a=iaT et 1§t emeh! Ged Tidet Ii SThserRisaT ST JaTel JUehT & |

ar, argar uiqent, ufafer T arger grerrdrert T, a7 SHTitheRl T, T TR STIUTCTTHT hST8 STedT Jafe®e
Sfere HRARATS AT STieet ST S | T qRiefaaT, Sehel STeTshieli aietdTeh! TesTdTelTs ShIaW ks dreenTe I faxdia
werTere, STINET STTEITITHT G, TT aTediaeh S=HT AT Y@ T WHIfd STaersd T afe=s |

JET, STqifed aiEsT oft a9 ST AU S § | THE sTddIeEh! Jhg X e T Hifad wer ard
f-Tsiifdeh aHTd, STy STRAT Tifveaar, T fade aemar fie 3ar-9ede axy dfyaes araerers st
TR B | I qAT STTATA- T e Hoor STReeRdTer STRITd - Pt YoTehaenT SThIHT St aT GalTel U He SITEw e
T | AT, ST SfersTawaT SRaush! FET3 T HTgeR AT Jgal Gl favaeard! sfersarsmT o7 JHId R EHT J@T
T B |

M gfddew qar o fafa @ A st auet Juestt T WIS T FHITRT SFEEEHT FSATed AT ST
wmmemwmmmmmmmm|

fufd R0c2/0% /32 T (T & FHUSHT)
__
95,R54.09
R. FPTFﬁ ¥, ¥%R.\9%
3. oIt T 9r9eT 9¥,%99.%5

SfoRehT ITThT AATHT eI T O ShTHehT Fel-eHT HoulTeTeh HIH{deh! SRUTEhT HieTe faerer fTgar el @ -

Vv forfir SIsTienT sTawermeRl |fe Tieher TR JEehT LT Tdeh FHT ST T |

V STt auT AT STEHATS S THT T Sdhel UTHTHeRdTITS &5 SIadTaaTs faedi 71¢ oei= & | @19, Green
Financing T STIRUTT 31T STATa0T STeheT il HaTe Hifd SHUT: et Ta i & |

v TEhIHT STTHTNT FRIGRATS g T a1 fafaeferor ™ |

v Jurer U kRl Capital Adequacy Framework, 2015 smtfer St grafaesent fasorers faem e fag gt wafedar

ST AT HGUANT g THY Fft JaTe e |
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STST STEETHISRT AT Processing Fee AT faeiw €41 faux Spread Optimize 7T ST ST{UR &1 3TTTE T3 S |
Retail Deposit Schemes g4 Digital Product &g Bundling 71< Deposit Base @=3gert @& Digital Sales «Ts uft
refHeRdTeRT AT SATTET SQTe wed Tersua |

SheTTs §.6. 00 TTHT Smart Bank T &THT EUT=X0T T-ehT SATHT &TeT STaeTra THUshT WiHfdeears et fag T
Smart Bank a-T3 3t¥ 313%T Neo Banking STarRUTHT ST SaT i o 7d o Wt fereent |

e shetfean! STeAeTs 3o UTafeRaTT e |

fresarst steeTT (Non Interest Income) 3T 3t Gde® Ui TRY sgehl GATHMT Jig T |

21T ket feedT MR Corresponding Banking Relation @S o7 3@ T aXfererd i |

TomroT AaTETE TITEIERT SIS 9T FHATE TS e T g ag13e ST |

sSR! STARTIhATTS UT ST SIS A= ATCTHEEHT TR TIg RIS TRl FaT T |

SeReRT ST=ATR TR JuTTeft qer HEImT gaHeTs 3T 93¢ TH |

el wfatuerTs sterara e wRivsaTed TeaT faqerfiar arfae T |

HEATT AT JTRETIIe ST fafi= SrishHesaTs T fée Taeht SrRrers 3nh HAfshall ST |

giafdd HEImTT TEIeTs TTEehRT §9et a7 |

Sfoheh! HRIERET Graf-aq fafaer Siaw JfaRoT TRl AT STawI Id Jashdles ST |

< <

S

R T T

o) SRRt SRR QT saTaTiisd araey
Siehel AT STeETTIe AT RIEEaTs T T6e Bleh HIISTCHTT Tcdel o STHeeT SUHT reli-erd HTeeh, STaTar, e,
o=t s o faxiiT geTRE, TN qT ST S-HEET YRERidr, SIET favare T geenrienT SATHTHT JFes]
ToreaT & STTTHT @ | HEATRT Wfd, 3T, faehra o faedRaT Tl RaTeTeR! Teqayul Ae & favareeht arer Sehet
ST T SATCHIIATeRT THTHT ST TE-aeTs STTHT SEehTet 0THTTdeh gfeshluTeRl TE ST SHITHT & |

FAETIR Ty g, 950 T qUEe ©IUe 9 HTIareTiey dehehl HaEITI qT fearaes afd it ufdas
&S AT B | TH GaoinT, Sehet ifq, fram qem aeare Iihar aar Urel suadis: ver, Slehrarareh! fea T deenrel
TS TfRargees faem T ureett, et T SEER @er st T aRurdt staere Ten |

A, el ST SIS FFT(EId AT e 3ETeh UideH, -5 T 3 grai-ed Meaesd Tehicis
T ETeehTel = BTHhaRIaTs Ja% T HTUHT 3| Jgare fatsia gagT T favamaqul areraer sehals ST, smaeriash qor

TS &13fehl dlq{lcdl'g a7vp faeam HEINT JATTHRT B |

FRIAR TIEqR T GH STATET MM TS HEca Ul TR FIHT ITAN T T Afq ST THe | Fel, dohet
TG STTE JoTiett, farMomeT ST WHifa T ST Teshiiels JgE TR H1E SrEhTel Jo fasiT 7 3181 feushl |

) AT AT WORT ZTHT T GIHT FHTLOT,
Tk HiHident A1iSes FidaeTqT Sooid THUH 3 |

q)  WRENSATE G T JeH HIEE
sfehehT HRITREATS STEX I T HUEE T SHITSTH &bt & :
aTifeR, Hifash arm faxfier fifqar Toer goemT g7 afEdeTe g Siienes |
ST FFTehetTamT SREuhT TeTfreTaTehT ST Shell ATt STTEITHT Jig TUshT |
THEITehT g STIET FHoTTehT T TEET STTST He e |
difer® THTET g AT Tfaedeieh! T 33T T FHIAEE |
FRRA 387 FH=HIEEeh! AT U5 & FHARI 6 BT g g SHiE |
qrafe JETeRoT FaroRiT Aife sterat sTrwies T T fermror ufssamr ffed sifem |
SRETE JATE g Tl qT Sehale HaH T IERISHT ST HaTesdre g Ja qeTiad Siiem |
i, T T SgEEAT g Uiad-el 3ca g Te aRTiad STEweEs |
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v ufafent aftad s19ed sfarent iatsrer aiede g1 FHe SrTeT |
v freifea auemr et sgeft T8 3c0 g7 T SIemEs |
v OsHifden STfeeRdrare st T 9al 36T g1 e SIITEHEE |

B)  AQURIEUT TfET T e RRTT Jea@ WOH WU | JUT qaTed afafaent gioerar

SIShehT ATHTT SRR faeTfaet™T af@uent A= feequft aeer @ Widehet fewquft eramateror gfaaemr & | eraratagor
AiaaEHT Seaiiad PTEaEETs AaTeahdTehT T SehHT ShTT=aa T & |

§) i atgwte T Rrwtted T e
AT T, Sfohoh! Tep(d TT=T 3T R0£2/ <R I AT IATIHITEATS Sehehl STeTehl bl Uit &. 22,%R2,340,330 & ¥
giaeTd Tfd &, %<, %< 9%, 3%0|%R AT S-E T qT ¥ HTGTd 3TATd &, %<, %< %%, 330|%R TSR] TG ATHIIT
(ST ST AT 7T AT A 6L Tfed) Ua 7 fabriee miwent & |

W) U Ahd WOH WT TR HURT SR EET, el T Afsa qed, et DAY ARG gIWRET ST &1 ST S I
TR TEHAT THA T TET AT A% WU @7 Ao fosht T St g Tt TR a1 SR WORT T a0 T oRa
T WU "Rt faagor
aefteqr STafemT Sehel -t AT ST TEhT & |

(o) fomar anfiier e S T THET TEHE FEORIRT TR Gl T @Y i quy steamr et feafas geaeRn SE
SRRl HETIeh HFUTehT HRIeTehT JTid faaor 8 ufaae qerm faxfier faammr 3fad srdeenT Gamsus |

(@) S T TEHT TG FEAAA AT TEHT TR TR TTE FILEIER ¥ G SHATAT S @A ST Forl HEequT aaee
sfeh T IGhT TETIH HTIIehT STISTRT Tt ferawor 8 ufqaes ot faxftr faawom staq srdeear gy |

(@) o snfiier AT ST ATEMTHA AUTUHIERS SheTE JUAH TLTRT FAHHTL
qeiterr aAT yaferd wET Sy fRfea SRRt T3 U T aTesh 31T STHeRRT UTed THUEhT |

(@ o s awn Seent s a1 TRTUHTERA Rt FUTR! ETficat fHa¥ut T St U ST fege dond
TEHRT WY Y T FAITEeane Sl qTed TR ST
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G.P.Rajbahak & Co.
Chartered Accountants
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

T0 THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MACHHAPUCHCHHRE BANK LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Machhapuchchhre Bank Limited., which comprise
the Statement of Financial Position as at Ashadh 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025), and the Statement of
Profit or Loss, and Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and
statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the Financial Position of the Bank as at Ashadh 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025), and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Nepal Financial
Reporting Standards [NFRS].

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing [NSA]. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Bank
in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in Nepal, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in

our repaort:
5. No.] Key Audit Matters __Auditor’s Response
a) Interest Income: Our audit approach included:

The Bank has implemented MNRB's
Guidance MNote on [nterest Income
Recognition, 2025 effective from |
Shrawan 2081. The guidelines require |
| staging of loans (Stage 1, 2, 3) with |
| different recognition methods - accrual |
basis for Stage 1&2 based on coupon |

interest rate and cash  basis | 1, 2, 3) for sample loans based on ECL

(incremental) for Stage 3 assets. The guidelines and tested stage migration

transitional arrangement involves reports

complex quarterly tracking at account

level and reconciliation between

interest suspense, accrued interest, and

actual collections.

Given the significant system changes,
| manual interventions during transition,

a. Obtained understanding of the
Bank's implementation framework
and tested quarterly interest
computation processes at account
level

b. Verified staging classification (Stage

€. For Stage 3 assets, tested cash basis |
approach by tracing collections to |
bank  statements, recalculating
interest suspense movements, and
verifying that suspense doesn't
exceed accrued interest

| and risk of misstatement in interest
| income, we considered this as a key | d. Performed reconciliation between
[ audit matter. CBS interest caleulations and GL

Kamalpokhari, Kathmandu, Nepal, t: +977-1-4515682, 4515823, e: info@gpr.com.np, w: wWww.gpr.com.np
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b)

Investment valuation, identification
and impairment:

Investment of the bank comprises of
investment in government bonds, T-
bills, development bonds  and
investment in quoted and unguoted
securities. The valuation of the aforesaid
securities has been done in compliance
with NFRS 9 and NRB Directive number
8. The investment in the government
and NRE bonds and T-bills has been
done on Amortized cost and rest have

been valued through Fair Value through |

Other Comprehensive Income. The
valuation of the investment requires
special attention and further in view of
the significance of the amount of the
investment in the financial statement

| the same has been considered as Key

This was a key audit matter due to

Audit Matters in our audit.

Impairment of Loans and Advances:

As per NFRS 9 (carve-out issued by ICAN

). bank shall measure impairment loss

on loans and advances at the higher of:
a) Amount derived as per norms

prescribed by NRB for loan loss
|

provisioning or;

55 of NFRS adopting the

expected credit loss model

As per the norms prescribed by the NRE,
provision at the prescribed rate shall be
created on the loans and advances based
on overdue status of loans and advances
as well as utilization status of the
facility, status of security etc. Hence,
assessment of availability and accuracy
of data impairment under NRB
provisioning norms is regarded as key
audit matters.

for

Expected credit losses of loans and
advances measured at amortized cost as
disclosed in Note 4.7, is determined by
management based on the accounting
policies described in Note 2.10 (E) to the
financial statements,

v.machbank.com

entries  and  verified quarterly
interest income aggregation

Ouraudit approach regarding Investment
of the bank is based an the NRB Directive
and NFRS issued by the Accounting
standard Board of Nepal.

For the investment wvaluation that are
done at amortized cost, we checked the
EIR and amortization schedule on test
basis.

I-'ut'rhuinves:mﬁntx'aln{'dt]||--:::,|ghl:}-:,'[i.g-.
for quoted investment, we relied on the
Last transaction price in NEPSE as on
16.07.2025. And for the wunguoted
investment the fair value has been taken
a5 NRs.100. Further the income and
bonus have been cross verified from
Demat statement of the bank wherever
applicable.

Our audit approach included :

Reviewing the overdue status of loans
and advances by obtaining data from
the system and matching the same
with NRB 2.2 report

. i [ b. Sample credit files were reviewed for
b) Amount determined as per para

the purpose of assuring the utilization
of loan & advances for the intended
purpose, and
account turnover.

account movement

¢, Assessed the alignment of the Bank's
Impairment for expected credit losses
computations and underlying
methodology including responses to
current economic conditions with its
accounting policies, based on the best
available information up to the date of
our report.

d. Evaluated the design, implementation
and operating effectiveness  of
controls over estimation of expected
credit  losses, which  included
assessing the level of oversight, review
and approval of impairment for
expected credit losses, policies and
procedures by Board
management.

the




involvement  of
management judgements,
assumptions and level of uncertainty
associated with estimating future cash

« Th e

flows to recover such loans and
advances; and
* The materiality of the reported

amount of expected credit losses.

Key areas of significant judgements,
assumptions and estimates made by
management in the assessment of
expected credit losses for loans and
advances  include forward-looking
macroeconomic scenarios, associated
weightages and considerations that
indicate significant increase in credit
risk. These are subject to inherently
| heightened  levels of
uncertainty.

Information of such key estimates,
assumptions and judgements are
disclosed in Note 2.10 (E)

significant |

estimation |

€. Tested the completeness, accuracy
and reasonableness of the underlying
data used in the expected credit loss
computations by agreesing details to
relevant source documents and
accounting records of the Group.

f. Evaluated the reasonableness of credit |
quality assessments and related stage
classifications.

In addition to the above, the following
procedures were performed:

g. Forloans and advances assessed onan
individual basis for impairment:

# Tested the arithmetical accuracy of
the underlying individual impairment
calculations. |

# Evaluated the reasonableness of key
inputs used in the impairment for
expected credit losses made with
economic conditions. Such evaluations
were carried out considering the value
and timing of cash flow forecasts
particularly relating to elevated risk
industries and status of recovery
actions of the collaterals.

h. For loans and advances assessed on a
collective basis for impairment:

= Tested the key inputs and the
calculations used in the impairment
for expected credit losses.

# Assessed the reasonableness of
judgements, assumptions and
estimates used by the Management in
the underlying methodology and the
management overlays, Our testing |
included evaluating the
reasonableness of forward-looking
information used, economic scenarios
considered, and probability weighting
assigned to each scenario,

I. Assessed the adequacy of the related
financial statement disclosures set out
in Notes 4.7 (Notes forming part of F5)
and 4 (Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements) 50
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d) Information Technology: Our audit approach regarding
As most of the information of the bank is | Information Technology of the bank is
digitally stored and transactions are | based upon the Information Technology
carried out digitally/e y | Guidelines 2012 issued by NRB and it also
without minimal manual intervention, | included:
we considered  information | a. Understanding of IT process, m
technology status of the bank as our key of application and control mea
audit areas, adopted by the bank such as users'

access and ;|l|t|‘.-.‘.|'i:‘:-.' across operating
| systems.
E b. Verification of the interest income

and expense booking regarding loan
and deposit on test basis with the CBS
of the bank.

. Reliance on the IT audit conducted by
the bank.

d. Verification of the provisioning of the
loan and advances based on ageing on
the test check basis

Other Matter

We did not audit the financial statement and other financial statement of subsidiaries namely
Machhapuchchhre Capital Ltd and Machhapuchchhre Securities Ltd. The financial statements
and other financial information have been audited by other auditor whose report has been
furnished to us by the management. Our opinion on the financial statement so far as it relates
to the accounts and disclosures included in respect of the subsidiary is based solely on the
report of other auditor,

The auditor's report is intended solely for the intended users and should not be distributed to
or used by other parties.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the preparation of other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report but does not include the
consolidated Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon

QOur opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statement does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon

Our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so, consider whether the
Other Information is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated Financial Statements or
our knowledge obtained in the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with NFRS, and for such internal control as management determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatermnent, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial

o ) 2
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to gofie
J =] =] 0 I Syna
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statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank's,
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concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless mana gement either intends to
liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Bank's financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Finaneial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements as a whaole
are free from material misstatement, whether caused due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists.

As part of an audit in accordance with N5As, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, international omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the group’s internal contral.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on company’s ability
to continue as going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosure are inadequate, to modify our audit opinion. Qur
conclusions are based on the audit evidences obtained up to date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease as a going concern,

¢ [Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statement,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

* Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
Group's Activities to express an opinion on Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance, regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal controel that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We have determined to communicate following matters in accordance with the requirements
of BAFIA, 2073, NRE Directives, Company Act, 2063, and other regulatory requirements: -

* We have obtained all the information and the explanations, which, to the best ot j\\\\
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of our audit. \
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Based on our audit, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the
Bank.

The Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive lncome, the Cash Flow Statement, and the Statement of Changes in Equity
dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of accounts maintained by the
Bank.

Returns received from the branch offices of the Bank were adequate for the purpose of our
audit though the statements are independently not audited.

The capital fund, risk bearing fund and the provisions for possible impairment of assets of
the bank are adequate considering the Directives issued by Nepal Rastra Bank.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations and
from our examination of the books of accounts of the Bank, we have not come across any
case where the Board of Directors or any office bearer of the Bank have acted contrary to
the provisions of law, or committed any misappropriation or caused any loss or damage to
the Bank and violated Directives issued by Nepal Rastra Bank or acted in a manner, as
would jeopardize the interest and security of the Bank, its shareholders and its depositors.

The business of the Bank has been conducted satisfactorily and operated within its
jurisdiction and has been functioning as per NRB Directives.

i

Ashesh Rajbahak, FCA
Partner

G. P, Rajbahak & Co.,,

Cha

rtered Accountants

Place: Kamalpokhari, Kathmandu, Nepal
Date: 31 August 2025

LD

N: 250831CA0027B6WBKN
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Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Assets

Cash and cash equivalent 4.1 7,756,641,078 7,815,387,018 7,725,871,509 7,790,318,696
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4.2 8,326,202,371 6,340,167,398 8,326,202,371 6,340,167,398
Plagemgnt with Bank and Financial 43 1,731,959,352 404,770,066 1,731,959,352 404,770,066
Institutions :

Derivative financial instruments 4.4 - 4,541,338 - 4,541,338
Other trading assets 4.5 - 13,272,822 - 13,272,822
Loan and advances to B/Fls 4.6 5,809,651,703 5,101,443,477 5,809,651,703 5,101,443,477
Loans and advances to customers 4.7 141,436,048,905 126,605,243,298 141,436,048,905 126,754,174,782
Investment securities 4.8 45,751,427,884 35,846,361,774 45,513,259,938 35,597,019,374
Current tax assets 4.9 764,584,625 935,648,006 742,429,982 919,481,176
Investment in subsidiaries 410 - - 400,000,000 400,000,000
Investment in associates 411 - - - -
Investment property 412 594,364,388 1,201,902,408 594,364,388 1,201,902,408
Property and equipment 413 1,559,556,114 1,599,778,853 1,541,172,932 1,585,982,262
Goodwill and Intangible assets 4.14 124,669,556 130,047,962 120,883,962 128,014,808
Deferred tax assets 4.15 255,170,471 157,434,488 255,958,854 154,282,111
Other assets 4.16 3,442,988,331 3,362,264,194 3,256,161,018 3,215,414,907
Total Assets 217,553,264,778 189,518,263,102 217,453,964,914 189,610,785,625
Liabilities

Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 417 2,679,864,355 3,128,492,210 2,679,864,355 3,128,492,210
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 418 - - - -
Derivative financial instruments 419 9,984,287 - 9,984,287 -
Deposits from customers 4.20 184,134,746,200 158,438,188,462 184,176,049,901 158,646,909,170
Borrowing 4.21 2,143,480,557 2,091,129,011 2,143,480,557 2,091,129,011
Current Tax Liabilities 4.9 - - - -
Provisions 4.22 — — — -
Deferred tax liabilities 415 - - - -
Other liabilities 4.23 4,074,069,374 3,155,880,717 4,038,928,883 3,135,039,988
Debt securities issued 4.24 5,498,289,706 5,495,481,481 5,498,289,706 5,495,481,482
Subordinated Liabilities 4.25 - - - -
Total liabilities 198,540,434,479 172,309,171,881 198,546,597,689 172,497,051,861
Equity

Share capital 4.26 1,621,357,273 1,621,357,273 1,621,357,273 1,621,357,273
Share premium 30,881,765 30,881,765 30,881,765 30,881,765
Retained earnings 942,826,278 (357,785,606) 936,365,847 (359,804,768)
Reserves 4.27 6,323,122,209 5,824,615,930 6,318,762,340 5,821,299,494
Total equity attributable to equity 18,918,187,525 17,119,069,362 18,907,367,225 17,113,733,764
holders

Non-controlling interest 94,642,774 90,021,859 - -
Total equity 19,012,830,299 17,209,091,221 18,907,367,225 17,113,733,764
Total liabilities and equity 217,553,264,778 189,518,263,102 217,453,964,914 189,610,785,625
Conttingent liabilities and commit- 428 38,789,120,934 36,393,626,895 38,789,120,934 36,393,626,895
men

Net assets value per share 162.79 147.31 162.70 147.26

As per our report of even date

Khagendra Paudel
Head-Finance & Planning

Roshan KC
Chairman

Santosh Koirala
Chief Executive Officer

Ashesh Rajbahak
Partner

Mukunda Mahat Bishow Prakash Gautam Peshal Raj Pokharel

Director Director Director G.P. Rajbahak & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Anish Shah Sunil Narayan Shrestha Manisha Bhandari

Director Director Director

Date: 15/05/2082

Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
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Machhapuchchhre Bank Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended 32 Ashad 2082

. Group Bank
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Interest income 4.29 14,556,766,898 16,602,004,586 | 14,580,766,036 | 16,598,693,546
Interest expense 4.30 8,792,943,443 11,595,286,036 8,824,049,942 | 11,610,500,770
Net interest income 5,763,823,455 5,006,718,550 5,756,716,094 4,988,192,776
Fee and commission income 4.31 1,650,591,534 1,393,735,487 1,590,832,317 1,361,141,856
Fee and commission expense 4.32 322,961,416 287,056,830 305,655,573 273,515,325
Net fee and commission income 1,327,630,118 1,106,678,657 1,285,176,744 1,087,626,531
Net interest, fee and commission 7,091,453,573 6,113,397,207 7,041,892,838 6,075,819,307
income
Net trading income 4.33 332,153,025 230,382,782 332,153,025 230,382,782
Other operating income 4.34 95,209,658 88,653,754 66,628,272 79,965,526
Total operating income 7,518,816,256 6,432,433,743 7,440,674,135 6,386,167,615
Impairment charge/(reversal) for 4.35 556,657,045 1,398,187,605 556,657,045 1,398,187,605
loans and other losses
Net operating income 6,962,159,211 5,034,246,138 6,884,017,090 4,987,980,010
Operating expense
Personnel expenses 4.36 2,500,067,603 2,112,290,566 2,465,781,640 2,085,352,325
Other operating expenses 4.37 866,386,502 837,295,248 849,896,533 820,119,318
Depreciation & Amortization 4.38 428,202,514 422,287,570 420,697,168 416,619,226
Operating Profit 3,167,502,592 1,662,372,754 3,147,641,749 1,665,889,141
Non operating income 4.39 52,428,294 85,318,448 52,428,294 85,318,448
Non operating expense 4.40 478,326,565 97,371,670 478,326,565 97,371,670
Profit before income tax 2,741,604,321 1,650,319,532 2,721,743,478 1,653,835,919
Income tax expense 4.41 846,213,405 609,341,942 838,099,990 608,636,732
Current Tax 901,201,006 680,098,799 901,201,006 680,098,799
Deferred Tax (54,987,601) (70,756,857) (63,101,016) (71,462,067)
Profit for the year 1,895,390,916 1,040,977,590 1,883,643,488 1,045,199,187

Profit attributable to:

Equity holders of the Bank

1,890,497,384

1,040,955,409

1,883,643,488

1,045,199,187

Non-controlling interest 4,893,532 22,182 - -
Profit for the year 1,895,390,916 1,040,977,590 1,883,643,488 1,045,199,187
Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share 16.27 8.96 16.21 8.99
Diluted earnings per share 16.27 8.96 16.21 8.99
As per our report of even date
Khagendra Paudel Santosh Koirala Roshan KC
Head-Finance & Planning Chief Executive Officer Chairman

Mukunda Mahat
Director

Anish Shah
Director

Date: 15/05/2082
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
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Bishow Prakash Gautam

Director

Sunil Narayan Shrestha

Director

Peshal Raj Pokharel
Director

Manisha Bhandari
Director

Ashesh Rajbahak
Partner

G.P. Rajbahak & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 32 Ashad 2082

o | Gow [ Bank |
_ Current Year Previous Year Current Year | Previous Year

Profit for the year 1,895,390,916 | 1,040,977,590 | 1,883,643,488 | 1,045,199,187

Other comprehensive income, net of

income tax

a) Items that will not be reclassified to

profit or loss

Gain /(losses) from investments in equity 5,317,857 (4,963,116) 5,317,857 (4,963,116)

instruments measured at fair value

Gain /(losses) on revaluation - - - -

glc;:::mal gains/(loss) on defined benefit (133,903,612) 14,846,104 | (133,903,612 14,846,104

Income tax relating to above items 38,575,726 (2,964,896) 38,575,726 (2,964,896)

Net other comprehensive income that (90,010,028) 6,918,092  (90,010,028) 6,918,092

will not be reclassified to profit or loss

b) Items that are or may be classified to

profit or loss

Gain /(losses) on cash flow hedge - - - -

Exchange gain/ (losses) (arising from

translating financial assets of foreign - - - -

operation)

Income tax relating to above items - - - -

Reclassify to profit or loss - - - -

Net other comprehensive income that

are or may be reclassified to profit or - - - -

loss

C) Share of other comprehensive income of

associate accounted as per equity method

Other comprehensive income for the (90,010,028) 6,918,092 |  (90,010,028) 6,918,092

period, net of income tax

Total comprehensive income for the year 1,805,380,887 1,047,895,682 1,793,633,460 | 1,052,117,279

Total comprehensive income

attributable to:

Equity holders of the Bank 1,800,487,356 | 1,047,873,500 | 1,793,633,460 | 1,052,117,279

Non-controlling interest 4,893,532 22,182 - -

;Z:ia;?mpre'“ens“'e CEoSiogns 1,805,380,887 | 1,047,895,682 | 1,793,633,460 | 1,052,117,279
As per our report of even date

Khagendra Paudel Santosh Koirala Roshan KC
Head-Finance & Planning Chief Executive Officer Chairman

Ashesh Rajbahak
Partner

Mukunda Mahat Bishow Prakash Gautam Peshal Raj Pokharel

Director Director Director G.P. Rajbahak & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Anish Shah Sunil Narayan Shrestha Manisha Bhandari

Director Director Director

Date: 15/05/2082
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 32 Ashad 2082

Group

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Bank

Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Interest received

12,426,480,926

14,675,297,937

12,450,480,064

14,671,986,897

Fees and other income received

1,650,591,534

1,393,735,487

1,590,832,317

1,361,141,856

Dividend received

Receipts from other operating activities 455,561,921 392,694,956 426,980,535 384,006,728
Interest paid (8,291,326,188) (11,095,146,304) (8,322,432,687) (11,110,361,038)
Commission and fees paid (322,961,416) (287,056,830) (305,655,573) (273,515,325)
Cash payment to employees (2,500,067,603) (2,112,290,566) (2,465,781,640) (2,085,352,325)
Other expense paid (1,344,713,067) (934,666,918) (1,328,223,098) (917,490,988)
Operating cash flows before changes in operating assets and 2,073,566,107 2,032,567,762 2,046,199,918 2,030,415,805

liabilities

(Increase)/Decrease in operating assets

(19,433,275,838)

1,721,942,591

(19,443,724,094)

1,599,516,553

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

(1,986,034,973)

2,968,940,299

(1,986,034,973)

2,968,940,299

Placement with bank and financial institutions

(1,327,189,286)

1,053,544,116

(1,327,189,286)

1,053,544,116

Other trading assets

17,814,160

471,689,590

17,814,160

471,689,590

Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions

(708,208,226)

(637,199,206)

(708,208,226)

(637,199,206)

Loans and advances to customers

(15,387,462,652)

(1,865,748,105)

(15,238,531,168)

(2,014,679,589)

Other assets

(42,194,861)

(269,284,103)

(201,574,601)

(242,778,658)

Increase/(Decrease) in operating liabilities 26,094,550,762 2,140,264,098 25,912,833,991 2,088,042,352
Due to bank and financial institutions (448,627,855) (976,575,445) (448,627,855) (976,575,445)
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank - (13,000,000) - (13,000,000)
Deposit from customers 25,696,557,739 4,526,448,550 25,529,140,730 4,467,277,349
Borrowings 52,351,546 (1,303,873,550) 52,351,546 (1,303,873,550)
Other liabilities 794,269,332 (92,735,457) 779,969,570 (85,786,002)
Net cash flow from operating activities before tax paid 8,734,841,030 5,894,774,452 8,515,309,815 5,717,974,710
Income taxes paid (774,481,364) (824,753,878) (764,320,897) (820,178,002)
Net cash flow from operating activities 7.960,359,666 5,070,020,573 7.,750,988,918 4,897,796,708
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of investment securities (9,899,748,253) (8,234,366,133) (9,910,922,707) (8,183,453,194)
Receipts from sale of investment securities - - - -
Purchase of property and equipment (388,733,631) (436,549,233) (175,642,121) (340,087,059)
Receipt from the sale of property and equipment 753,856 2,287,953 753,856 2,287,953
Purchase of intangible assets 5,330,141 2,500,671 7,082,581 3,415,634
Receipt from the sale of intangible assets 48,265 2,068,735 48,265 2,068,735
Purchase of investment properties (75,241,150) (799,981,811) (75,241,150) (799,981,811)
Receipt from the sale of investment properties 682,779,170 208,016,514 682,779,170 208,016,514
Interest received 2,130,285,972 1,926,706,649 2,130,285,972 1,926,706,649
Dividend received 24,229,056 11,660,028 24,229,056 11,660,028
Net cash used in investing activities (7,520,296,574) (7,317,656,626) (7,316,627,078) (7,169,366,551)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Receipt from issue of debt securities 2,808,225 1,442,536 2,808,224 1,442,536

Repayment of debt securities

Receipt from issue of subordinated liabilities

Repayment of subordinated liabilities

Receipt from issue of shares

Dividends paid

(71,800,089)

(71,800,089)

Interest paid

(501,617,255)

(500,139,732)

(501,617,255)

(500,139,732)

Other receipt/payment

Net cash from financing activities

(498,809,030)

(570,497,285)

(498,809,031)

(570,497,285)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

(58,745,937)

(2,818,133,338)

(64,447,190)

(2,842,067,128)

Cash and cash equivalents at Sawan 1, 2081

7,815,387,018

10,633,520,357

7,790,318,696

10,632,385,826

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents held

Cash and cash equivalents at Ashad end 2082

7.756,641,078

7.815,387,018

7.,725,871,509

7,790,318,696
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Statement of distributable profit or loss

For the year ended 32 Ashad 2082
(As per NRB Regulation)
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Bank
Current Year Previous Year
Net profit or (loss) as per statement of profit or loss 1,883,643,488 1,045,199,187
Appropriations:

a. General reserve 376,728,698 209,039,837

b. Foreign exchange fluctuation fund 16,263,106 13,322,547

c. Capital redemption reserve 428,571,429 710,258,429

d. Corporate social responsibility fund 18,836,435 10,451,992

e. Employees' training fund 10,818,249 (5,784,59¢6)

f. Other - -

- Deferred Tax Reserve - -

- Investment Adjustment Reserve - -

- Corporate Social responsibility reserve through PL (9,219,946) (26,352,843)

Profit or (loss) before regulatory adjustment 1,041,645,518 134,263,821
Regulatory adjustment :

a. Interest receivable (-)/previous accrued interest received (+) 29,096,596 (44,571,576)

b. Short loan loss provision in accounts (-)/reversal (+) - -

c. Short provision for possible losses on investment (-)/reversal (+) - -

d. Short loan loss provision on Non Banking Assets (-)/reversal (+) 461,383,361 (372,938,137)

e. Deferred tax assets recognised (-)/ reversal (+)

(53,811,928)

(71,462,067)

f. Goodwill recognised (-)/ impairment of Goodwill (+)

g. Bargain purchase gain recognised (-)/reversal (+)

h. Actuarial loss recognised (-)/reversal (+) (133,903,612) 14,846,104

i. Other (+/-) (48,239,321) (31,743,325)

- Interest Capitalized Reserve (ICR) (53,557,178) (26,780,210)

- Fair Value Reserve 5,317,857 (4,963,116)

Net Profit for the Year end 32 Ashad, 2082 available for distribution 1,296,170,614 (371,605,181)

Opening Retained Earning as on Shrawan 1, 2081 (359,804,768) 1,448,531,596

Adjustment (+/-) - (729,404)
Distribution

Bonus shares issued 1,364,201,692

Cash Dividend paid 71,800,089

Total distributable profit or (loss) as on year end date 936,365,847 (359,804,768)

Annualised as per Distributable Profit/Loss per share 8.06 -3.10

Annual Report 2024/25 L\g




Qw3 aIffies ufdidicer 20Ta/TR

Cash and cash equivalent

Group

Current Year

Previous Year

Bank

Current Year

4 1

Previous Year

Cash in hand

2,581,284,429

2,720,811,505

2,581,284,429

2,720,811,505

Balances with B/Fls

2,000,872,896

1,924,065,197

1,970,103,327

1,898,996,875

Money at call and short notice

3,174,483,753

3,154,955,742

3,174,483,753

3,154,955,742

Other

15,554,574

15,554,574

Total

7,756,641,078

7,815,387,018

7,725,871,509

7,790,318,696

Balance with BFls includes balance maintained at various banks and financial institutions. Cash held in foreign currency is
subject to risk of changes in the foreign exchange rates. These are closely monitored, and risks, if identified, are promptly
managed. Other items under cash and cash equivalents include treasury bills with maturities of less than three months;
however, there are no treasury bills outstanding as of the end of Ashadh 2082.

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4.2
Group Bank

Current Year | Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Statutory balances with NRB 8,229,890,006 6,253,748,757 8,229,890,006 6,253,748,757
Securities purchased under resale - - - -
agreement
Other deposit and receivable from NRB 96,312,365 86,418,641 96,312,365 86,418,641
Total 8,326,202,371 6,340,167,398 8,326,202,371 6,340,167,398

Balance with the NRB is principally maintained as a part of the regulatory cash reserve ratio required by the NRB. Other
deposit and receivable from NRB includes Foreign Currency balance in Nepal Rastra Bank Account.

Placements with Bank and Financial Instituitions

Placement with domestic B/FIs

Group
Current Year

Previous Year

Bank
Current Year

4.3

Previous Year

Placement with foreign B/FIs 1,731,959,352 404,770,066 1,731,959,352 404,770,066
Less: Allowances for impairment - - - -
Total 1,731,959,352 404,770,066 1,731,959,352 404,770,066

Placements with foreign Bank and financial institutions with original maturities of more than three months from the

acquisition date are presented above.

Derivative financial instruments

Held for trading

Group
Current Year

Previous Year

Bank
Current Year

4.4

Previous Year

Interest rate swap

Currency swap

Forward exchange contract

Others

Held for risk management - 4,541,338 - 4,541,338

Interest rate swap - - - -
Currency swap - - - -
Forward exchange contract - 4,541,338 - 4,541,338
Other - - - -
Total - 4,541,338 - 4,541,338

www.machbank.com
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Other trading assets

Group
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4.5

Bank

Treasury bills

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Government bonds

NRB Bonds

13,272,822

13,272,822

Domestic Corporate bonds

Equities

Other

Total

13,272,822

13,272,822

Pledged

Non-pledged

13,272,822

13,272,822

Trading assets are those assets that the bank acquires principally for the purpose of selling in the near term, or holds as
part of a portfolio that is managed together for short-term profit shall be presented under this account head. It includes
Citizens Saving Bond (Nagarik Bachatpatra) including any interest receivable from NRB thereon. There is no citizen sav-

ing bond as of the end of Ashadh 2082.

Loan and advances to B/Fls

Loans to microfinance institutions

Group

Current Year
5,868,158,617

Previous Year
5,163,163,799

4.6

Bank

Current Year
5,868,158,617

Previous Year
5,163,163,799

Other

Less: Allowances for impairment 58,506,914 61,720,322 58,506,914 61,720,322
Total 5,809,651,703 5,101,443,477 5,809,651,703 5,101,443,477
Loans to microfinance institutions also includes accrued interest receivable .

Allowances for impairment 4.6.1
Balance at Sawan 1 61,720,322 58,422,824 61,720,322 58,422,824
Impairment loss for the year: (3,213,408) 3,297,498 (3,213,408) 3,297,498
Charge for the year - - - -
Recoveries/reversal (3,213,408) 3,297,498 (3,213,408) 3,297,498
Amount written off - - - -
Balance at Ashad end 58,506,914 61,720,322 58,506,914 61,720,322
Loans and advances to customers 4.7

Group

Current Year

Previous Year

Bank

Current Year

Previous Year

Loan and advances measured at amor-
tized cost

147,346,838,815

131,638,368,142

147,346,838,815

131,787,299,626

Less: Impairment allowances

5,910,789,910

5,033,124,844

5,910,789,910

5,033,124,844

Collective impairment

1,241,878,525

1,320,939,594

1,241,878,525

1,320,939,594

Individual impairment

4,668,911,385

3,712,185,250

4,668,911,385

3,712,185,250

Net amount 141,436,048,905 | 126,605,243,298 | 141,436,048,905 126,754,174,782
Loan and advances measured at FVTPL - - - -
Total 141,436,048,905 | 126,605,243,298 | 141,436,048,905 126,754,174,782
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Analysis of loan and advances - By Product

Previous Year

Current Year

4.71

Previous Year

Current Year ‘

Product
Long Term loans 71,488,246,365 68,404,409,081 71,488,246,365 68,404,409,081
Personal 18,183,492,108 18,215,219,922 18,183,492,108 18,215,219,922
Business 38,036,450,722 35,944,162,296 38,036,450,722 35,944,162,296
Working Capital 15,268,303,535 14,245,026,863 15,268,303,535 14,245,026,863
Overdraft (Personal) 1,041,843,758 948,385,654 1,041,843,758 948,385,654
Cash Credit Loan 20,569,754,230 21,043,132,807 20,569,754,230 21,043,132,807
Trust receipt/Import loans 5,529,286,149 3,093,069,898 5,529,286,149 3,093,069,898
Short Term WC/Demand Loan 20,661,238,194 12,736,268,447 20,661,238,194 12,736,268,447
Personal residential loans 6,406,209,067 6,373,354,402 6,406,209,067 6,373,354,402
Real estate loans 1,874,015,007 1,556,314,013 1,874,015,007 1,556,314,013
Margin lending loans 2,531,967,416 467,069,650 2,531,967,416 467,069,650
Hire purchase loans 3,460,953,146 3,999,906,215 3,460,953,146 3,999,906,215
Deprived sector loans 1,262,645,668 1,526,435,885 1,262,645,668 1,526,435,885
Bills purchased 1,646,756,038 436,118,975 1,646,756,038 436,118,975
Staff loans 3,286,353,387 3,092,375,807 3,286,353,387 3,092,375,807
Other 4,733,643,076 5,247,021,039 4,733,643,076 5,395,952,523
Sub total 144,492,911,500 128,923,861,873 | 144,492,911,500 129,072,793,357
Interest receivable 2,853,927,315 2,714,506,269 2,853,927,315 2,714,506,269
Grand total 147,346,838,815 131,638,368,142 | 147,346,838,815 131,787,299,626
Analysis of loan and advances - By Currency 4.7.2
Group Bank

Current Year | Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Nepalese rupee 146,308,486,928 129,762,071,374 |  146,308,486,928 129,911,002,858

Indian rupee

United State dollar

1,038,351,887

1,876,296,768

1,038,351,887

1,876,296,768

Great Britain pound

Euro

Japenese yen

Chinese yuan

Other - - - R
Total 147,346,838,815 131,638,368,142 147,346,838,815 131,787,299,626
Analysis of loan and advances - By Collateral 4.7.3
Group Bajnk

Current Year | Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Secured
Movable/immovable assets 87,005,603,885 78,573,112,960 87,005,603,885 78,573,112,960
Gold and silver 232,799,309 131,371,795 232,799,309 131,371,795
Guarantee of domestic B/Fls - - - R
Government guarantee - - - _
Guarantee of international rated bank - - - R
Collateral of export document - - . R
Collateral of fixed deposit receipt 412,490,615 740,637,017 412,490,615 889,568,501
Collateral of Governement securities - - - B,
Counter guarantee - - - -
Personal guarantee 613,919,346 918,061,081 613,919,346 918,061,081
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Other collateral 58,720,209,457 50,920,562,228 58,720,209,457 50,920,562,228
Subtotal 146,985,022,613 131,283,745,079 146,985,022,613 131,432,676,564
Unsecured 361,816,202 354,623,062 361,816,202 354,623,062
Grant Total 147,346,838,815 131,638,368,142 | 147,346,838,815 131,787,299,626

Allowances for impairment

Specific allowances for impairment

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Balance at Sawan 1

3,712,185,250

2,162,372,590

3,712,185,250

2,162,372,590

Impairment loss for the year:

956,726,135

1,549,812,660

956,726,135

1,549,812,660

Charge for the year

956,726,135

1,549,812,660

956,726,135

1,549,812,660

Recoveries/reversal during the year

Write-offs

Exchange rate variance on foreign currency
impairment

Other movement

Balance at Ashad end

4,668,911,385

3,712,185,250

4,668,911,385

3,712,185,250

Collective allowances for impairment

Balance at Sawan 1

1,320,939,594

1,483,237,148

1,320,939,594

1,483,237,148

Impairment loss for the year:

(79,061,069)

(162,297,554)

(79,061,069)

(162,297,554)

Charge/(reversal) for the year

(79,061,069)

(162,297,554)

(79,061,069)

(162,297,554)

Exchange rate variance on foreign currency
impairment

Other movement

Balance at Ashad end

1,241,878,525

1,320,939,594

1,241,878,525

1,320,939,594

Total allowances for impairment

5,910,789,910

5,033,124,844

5,910,789,910

5,033,124,844

Investment securities

Group

4.8
Bank

Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Investment securities measured at 43,551,598,052 35,396,246,372 43,313,430,106 35,146,903,972
amortized cost

Investment in equity measured at FVTOCI 2,199,829,832 450,115,402 2,199,829,832 450,115,402
Total 45,751,427,884 35,846,361,774 45,513,259,938 35,597,019,374
Investment securities measured at amortized cost 4.8.1

Debt securities

Group

Bank

Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Government bonds

31,277,518,773

26,204,345,968

31,277,518,773

26,204,345,968

Government treasury bills

1,317,561,473

1,317,561,473

Nepal Rastra Bank bonds

Nepal Rastra Bank deposits instruments

10,304,405,479

6,000,986,301

10,304,405,479

6,000,986,301

Other

1,969,673,800

1,873,352,630

1,731,505,854

1,624,010,230

Less: specific allowances for impairment

Total

43,551,598,052

35,396,246,372

43,313,430,106

35,146,903,972

Other includes investment in USD Srilankan Bond, Energy Bond and Agriculture Bond. Development bond and Treasury Bill are
inclusive of Accrued Interest Receivable.Investment in SDF(6.3 Billion) and Deposit Colloection(4 Billion) of NRB is shown under Nepal
Rastra Bank Deposit instruments with accrued interest receeivable.There are no treasury bills outstanding as of the end of Ashad

2082.
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Investment in equity measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 4.8.2

Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Equity instruments 2,199,829,832 450,115,402 2,199,829,832 450,115,402
Quoted equity securities 1,889,164,972 255,450,542 1,889,164,972 255,450,542
Unquoted equity securities 310,664,860 194,664,860 310,664,860 194,664,860

Total 2,199,829,832 450,115,402 2,199,829,832 450,115,402

Information relating to investment in equities 483

Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Cost ‘ Fair Value ‘ Cost ‘ Fair Value ‘ Cost ‘ Fair Value ‘ Cost ‘ Fair Value

Investment in quoted

equity

Nepal Life Insurance 2,480,925 4,904,495 2,480,925 3,570,392 2,480,925 4,904,495 2,480,925 3,570,392
Company (5,768 Ordinary

Shares of Rs.100 each )

Butwal Power Company Ltd 4,839,157 8,318,850 4,839,157 2,693,900 4,839,157 8,318,850 4,839,157 2,693,900

(8,690 Ordinary Shares of
Rs.100 each)

Nepal Telecom(NTC) 19,502,731 17,545,400 19,502,731 17,545,400
(15,000 Shares Traded in
secondary market)

IGI Prudential Insurance 245,834,948 | 220,219,921 245,834,948 | 220,219,921
Limited (395,375 Shares)
Hydroelectricity Investment 245,993,481 285,496,409 245,993,481 | 285,496,409

& Development Company
(1,355,891 Promoter Shares)

AP| Power Company Limited 246,872,692 253,403,102 246,872,692 | 253,403,102
(856,323 Shares)

Sun Nepal Life Insurance 259,520,341 220,212,479 259,520,341 220,212,479
Company Limited

(448,827 Shares)

Chilime Hydropower 247,048,964 | 246,850,787 247,048,964 | 246,850,787
Company Limited (462,744

Shares)

Sarbottam Cement Limited 5,023,011 5,368,022 5,023,011 5,368,022
(6,200 Shares)

Sanima Reliance Life 146,600,405 145,500,000 146,600,405 145,500,000

Insurance Limited
(727,500 Promoter Shares)

Sanima Large Cap Fund 20,000,000 20,460,000 20,000,000 18,580,000 20,000,000 20,460,000 20,000,000 18,580,000
(20,00,000 Unit of Rs. 10
each)

Kumari Equity Fund 20,000,000 19,900,000 20,000,000 19,320,000 20,000,000 19,900,000 20,000,000 19,320,000
(20,00,000 Unit of Rs. 10
each)

Sunrise Bluechip Fund 20,000,000 20,000,000 20,000,000 16,540,000 20,000,000 20,000,000 20,000,000 16,540,000
(20,00,000 Unit of Rs. 10
each)

NIBL Samriddhi Fund-2 30,000,000 26,490,000 30,000,000 24,750,000 30,000,000 26,490,000 30,000,000 24,750,000
(30,00,000 Unit of Rs. 10
each)

Prabhu Select Fund 14,680,900 16,574,736 14,680,900 14,372,601 14,680,900 16,574,736 14,680,900 14,372,601
(14,68,090 Unit of Rs. 10
each)

NIC Asia Select 30 Index Fund 20,000,000 18,580,000 20,000,000 19,200,000 20,000,000 18,580,000 20,000,000 19,200,000
(NICSF)

(2,000,000 Unit of Rs. 10
each)

RBB Mutual Fund-1 (RMF1) 10,000,000 9,960,000 10,000,000 8,160,000 10,000,000 9,960,000 10,000,000 8,160,000
(1,000,000 Unit of Rs. 10
each)

NABIL BALANCED FUND-3 166,800 166,633 166,800 130,104 166,800 166,633 166,800 130,104
(NBF3)
(16,680 Unit of Rs. 10 each)
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MEGA MUTUAL FUND-1
(MMF1)
(436,340 Unit of Rs. 10 each)

4,363,400

4,180,137

4,363,400

3,368,545

4,363,400

4,180,137

4,363,400

3,368,545

KUMARI DHANABRIDDHI
YOJANA (3,000,000 Unit of Rs.
10 each)

30,000,000

30,150,000

30,000,000

29,010,000

30,000,000

30,150,000

30,000,000

29,010,000

Global IME Balanced Fund-1
(GIBF1)
(15,00,000 unit of Rs. 10 each)

15,000,000

16,365,000

15,000,000

13,650,000

15,000,000

16,365,000

15,000,000

13,650,000

NMB sulav Investment Fund-2
(NSIF2)
(15,00,000 unit of Rs. 10 each)

15,000,000

16,935,000

15,000,000

15,090,000

15,000,000

16,935,000

15,000,000

15,090,000

Sanima Growth Fund (SAGF)
(10,00,000 unit of Rs. 10 each)

10,000,000

10,320,000

10,000,000

10,140,000

10,000,000

10,320,000

10,000,000

10,140,000

NIBL Growth Fund (NIBLGF)
(10,00,000 unit of Rs. 10 each)

10,000,000

9,860,000

10,000,000

10,640,000

10,000,000

9,860,000

10,000,000

10,640,000

Sunrise Focused Equity Fund
(SFEF) (10,00,000 unit of Rs.
10 each)

10,000,000

10,040,000

10,000,000

8,240,000

10,000,000

10,040,000

10,000,000

8,240,000

Prabhu Smart Fund (PRSF)
(5,00,000 unit of Rs. 10 each)

5,000,000

5,735,000

5,000,000

4,805,000

5,000,000

5,735,000

5,000,000

4,805,000

RBB Mutual Fund 2 (RMF2)
(5,00,000 unit of Rs. 10 each)

5,000,000

5,040,000

5,000,000

4,750,000

5,000,000

5,040,000

5,000,000

4,750,000

Siddhartha Investment
Growth Scheme-lIl (SIGS3)
(5,00,000 unit of Rs. 10 each)

5,000,000

5,220,000

5,000,000

4,725,000

5,000,000

5,220,000

5,000,000

4,725,000

Citizens Super 30 Mutual
Fund ( C30MF)
(5,00,000 unit of Rs. 10 each)

5,000,000

5,040,000

5,000,000

5,000,000

5,000,000

5,040,000

5,000,000

5,000,000

Laxmi Value Fund 2 (LVF2)
(5,00,000 unit of Rs. 10 each)

5,000,000

5,060,000

5,000,000

4,620,000

5,000,000

5,060,000

5,000,000

4,620,000

Himalayan 80-20(H8020)
(5,00,000 unit of Rs. 10 each)

5,000,000

5,800,000

5,000,000

4,995,000

5,000,000

5,800,000

5,000,000

4,995,000

NIC Asia Growth Fund 2
(Close Ended Mutual Fund)
(5,00,000 unit of Rs. 10 each)

5,000,000

4,760,000

5,000,000

4,100,000

5,000,000

4,760,000

5,000,000

4,100,000

NIBL Stable Fund
(5,00,000 unit of Rs. 10 each)

5,000,000

4,945,000

5,000,000

5,000,000

5,000,000

4,945,000

5,000,000

5,000,000

Garima Samriddhi Yojana
(GSY)
(10,00,000 unit of Rs.10 each)

10,000,000

9,950,000

10,000,000

9,950,000

NMB Hybrid Fund L-II
(NMBHF2 ) (10,00,000 unit of
Rs.10 each)

10,000,000

9,060,000

10,000,000

9,060,000

MBL Equity Fund
(16,800,000 unit of Rs.10
each)

168,000,000

166,824,000

168,000,000

166,824,000

Reliable Samriddhi Yojana
(1,000,000 unit of Rs.10 each)

10,000,000

9,930,000

10,000,000

9,930,000

Mahila Laghubitta Bittiya
Sastha Ltd (304,587 Promoter
Shares of Rs.100 each)

14,000,000

14,000,000

14,000,000

14,000,000

Investment in unquoted equ

ity

Credit Information Bureau
Ltd (166,215 Ordinary Shares
of Rs. 100 each)

1,330,000

1,330,000

1,330,000

1,330,000

1,330,000

1,330,000

1,330,000

1,330,000

National Banking Institute Ltd
(18,348 Ordinary Shares and
54,128 Bonus Shares of Rs.
100 each)

1,834,860

1,834,860

1,834,860

1,834,860

1,834,860

1,834,860

1,834,860

1,834,860

Nepal Clearing House Ltd
(Before Acqusition of

NePS by NCHL no of Share
(NCHL=167,772, NePS=
180,000).After acquisition

of NePS by NCHL at swap
ratio of 1:0.28, no of share
NCHL =167,722, NePS=
180,000*0.28 = 50,400 ), Total
updated share of MBL(NCHL
+NePS) 218,172 .Bonus
Shares (FY 2080/81) of
41,453)

17,500,000

17,500,000

2,500,000

2,500,000

17,500,000

17,500,000

2,500,000

2,500,000
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Nepal Electronic Payment
Systems Ltd(NEPS)

(180,000 Promoter Share of
Rs. 100 each)

15,000,000

15,000,000

15,000,000 15,000,000

National Fund Management
(1,200,000 Promoter Share
and 600,000 right shares of
100 each)

90,000,000

90,000,000 60,000,000

60,000,000 90,000,000

90,000,000

60,000,000 60,000,000

PEVC FUND(National Equity
Fund 1) (1,00,000 unit of Rs.
100 each)

100,000,000

100,000,000 | 100,000,000

100,000,000 | 100,000,000

100,000,000

100,000,000 | 100,000,000

Reliable Private Equity Fund
(100,000 Shares)

100,000,000

100,000,000

100,000,000

100,000,000

Mabhila Laghubitta Bittiya
Sastha Ltd

(304,587 Promoter Shares of
Rs.100 each)

14,000,000

14,000,000

14,000,000 14,000,000

Total

2,215,592,615

471,196,042

2,199,829,832

450,115,403 | 2,215,592,615

2,199,829,832

471,196,042 | 450,115,402

Current tax assets

4.9

Previous Year

‘ Current Year ‘ Previous Year ‘ Current Year ‘

Current tax assets 4,492,783,438 4,329,601,905 4,470,626,308 4,313,435,075
Current year income tax assets 163,181,533 (1,086,302,325) 157,191,233 (1,092,468,494)
Tax assets of prior periods 4,329,601,905 5,415,904,230 4,313,435,075 5,405,903,569
Current tax liabilities 3,728,198,813 3,393,953,899 3,728,196,326 3,393,953,899
Current year income tax liabilities 334,244,914 (1,237,001,528) 334,242,427 (1,237,001,528)
Tax liabilities of prior periods 3,393,953,899 4,630,955,427 3,393,953,899 4,630,955,427
Total 764,584,625 935,648,006 742,429,982 919,481,176
Investment in subsidiaries 4.10
Bank
Current Year Previous Year
Investment in quoted subsidiaries - -
Investment in unquoted subsidiaries 400,000,000 400,000,000
Total investment 400,000,000 400,000,000
Less: Impairment allowances - -
Net carrying amount 400,000,000 400,000,000
Investment in quoted subsidiaries 4.10.1

Current Year

Previous Year

Total

www.machbank.com
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Investment in unquoted subsidiaries 4.10.2

Current Year Previous Year

Fair Value Fair Value

Machhapuchchhre Capital Ltd.

(2,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 each) 200,000,000 200,000,000 200,000,000 200,000,000

Machhapuchchhre Securities Ltd.

(2,000,000 Promoter Share of Rs. 100 paid 200,000,000 200,000,000 200,000,000 200,000,000

up)

Total 400,000,000 400,000,000 400,000,000 400,000,000
Information relating to subsidiaries of the Bank 4.10.3

Percentage of ownership held by the Bank
Current Year ‘ Previous Year

Machhapuchchhre Capital Ltd 69.85% 69.85%
Machhapuchchhre Securities Ltd 100.00% 100.00%
Total 169.85% 169.85%
Non controlling interest of the subsidiaries 4.10.4

Machhapuchchhre Capital Ltd.

Equity interest held by NCI (%) 30.15%
Profit/(loss) allocated during the year 4,893,532
Accumulated balances of NCl as on Ashad end 94,642,774
Dividend paid to NCl -

Investment in associates 4.11

Current Year Previous Year

Investment in quoted associates - - - _

Investment in unquoted associates - - - -

Total investment - - - -

Less: Impairment allowances - - - _

Net carrying amount - - - -

Investment in quoted associates 4.11.1
Group Bank
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Cost Fair Cost Fair Cost Fair Cost Fair
Value Value Value Value
Total - - - - - - -
Investment in unquoted associates 4.11.2
Group Bank
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Cost Fair Cost Fair Cost Fair Cost Fair
Value Value Value Value
Total - - - - - - - -

Annual Report 2024/25 L-\Q‘
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Information relating to associates of theBank

Percentage of ownership held by

the Bank

4.11.3

Percentage of ownership held by
the Bank

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Equity value of associates

Group

Current Year

Previous Year

Bank
Current Year

4.11.4

Previous Year

Total -

Investment properties

Group

Current Year

Previous Year

Bank
Current Year

412

Previous Year

Investment properties measured at fair value

Balance as on Sawan 1, 2081 -

Addition/disposal during the year -

Net changes in fair value during the year -

Adjustment/transfer -

Net amount -

Investment properties measured at cost

Balance as on Sawan 1, 2081 1,201,902,408 609,937,111 1,201,902,408 609,937,111
Addition/disposal during the year (607,538,020) 591,965,297 (607,538,020) 591,965,297
Adjustment/transfer - - - -
Accumulated depreciation - - - -
Accumulated impairment loss - - - -
Net amount 594,364,388 1,201,902,408 594,364,388 1,201,902,408
Total 594,364,388 1,201,902,408 594,364,388 1,201,902,408

The bank has booked additional Non Banking Assets of NPR 75,241

www.machbank.com

%O

,150 and sold NBA of NPR 682,779,170 during the FY 2081-82.
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Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Group

Software Total Total
Particulars Goodwill Ashad end Ashad end
Purchased | Developed 2082 2081
Cost
As on Sawan 1, 2080 195,435,266 195,435,266 169,225,769
Addition during the Year 17,135,055 17,135,055 26,209,497
Acquisition 17,135,055 17,135,055 26,209,497
Capitalization - - -
Disposal during the year
Adjustment/Revaluation - - -
Balance as on Ashad end 2081 212,570,321 212,570,321 195,435,266
Addition during the Year 13,664,574 13,664,574 17,135,055
Acquisition 13,664,574 13,664,574 17,135,055
Capitalization - -
Disposal during the year 2,341 2,341 -
Adjustment/Revluation - -
Balance as on Ashad end 2082 226,232,554 226,232,554 212,570,321
Amortization and Impairment
As on Sawan 1, 2080 60,817,898 60,817,898 26,057,513
Amortization charge for the Year 23,120,281 23,120,281 17,391,331
Impairment for the year
Disposals 2,276,949
Adjustment - - -
As on Ashad end 2081 83,938,179 83,938,179 60,817,898
Amortization charge for the Year 25,411,830 25,411,830 23,120,281
Impairment for the year - -
Disposals - - -
Adjustment
As on Ashad end 2082 109,350,009 109,350,009 83,938,179
Capital Work in Progress 7,787,011 7,787,011 1,415,820
Net Book Value
As on Ashad end 2080 134,617,368 134,617,368 128,053,874
As on Ashad end 2081 130,047,962 130,047,962 134,617,368
As on Ashad end 2082 124,669,556 124,669,556 130,047,962

Annual Report 2024/25 e 3




Q03 arffas ufddiger Q0TI /TR

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Bank 4.14
Software Total Total
Particulars Goodwill Other Ashad end Ashad end
| Purchased | Developed | 2080 2079

Cost
As on Sawan 1, 2080 - 193,379,615 193,379,615 167,685,465
Addition during the Year - 15,509,482 15,509,482 25,694,150
Acquisition - 15,509,482 15,509,482 25,694,150
Capitalization - - -
Disposal during the year -
Adjustment/Revaluation - - - -
Balance as on Ashad end - 208,889,097 208,889,097 193,379,615
2081
Addition during the Year - 10,866,575 10,866,575 15,509,482
Acquisition - 10,866,575 10,866,575 15,509,482
Capitalization - - -
Disposal during the year - - - -
Adjustment/Revluation - - - -
Balance as on Ashad end - 219,755,672 219,755,672 208,889,097
2082
Amortization and Impairment
As on Sawan 1, 2080 - 59,880,439 59,880,439 40,623,696
Amortization charge for the - 22,409,670 22,409,670 19,256,742
Year
Impairment for the year -
Disposals -
Adjustment - - - -
As on Ashad end 2081 - 82,290,109 82,290,109 59,880,439
Amortization charge for the 24,368,612 24,368,612 22,409,670
Year
Impairment for the year - -
Disposals - - -
Adjustment - -
As on Ashad end 2082 - 106,658,722 106,658,721 82,290,109
Capital Work in Progress - 7,787,011 7,787,011 1,415,820
Net Book Value
As on Ashad end 2080 - 133,499,176 133,499,177 127,061,769
As on Ashad end 2081 - 128,014,808 128,014,808 133,499,177
As on Ashad end 2082 - 120,883,962 120,883,962 128,014,808

%¥  www.machbank.com




Deferred Tax

Current Year (FY 2081-82)

Deferred
Tax
Assets

Current Year

Deferred Tax
Liabilities

Deferred tax on temporary differences on following items

Net Deferred

Tax Assets/
(Liabilities)

Deferred

Tax Assests

Current Year

Deferred Tax
Liabilities

203 arffies ufidcer Q0Ta/TR

415

Net
Deferred
Tax Assets/
(Liabilities)

Loan and Advance to B/Fls

Loans and Advances to customers

Investment properties

Investment securities - (1,998,925) 1,998,925 (4,728,835) 4,728,835
Property & equipment - 11,766,305 (11,766,305) - 11,178,807 (11,178,807)
Employees' defined benefit plan

177,209,247 - 177,209,247 176,535,721 - 176,535,721
Lease liabilities

286,562,652 (239,495,166) 47,067,486 | 282,628,850 | (236,590,966) 46,037,884
Provisions - - - - - -
Other temporary differences 57,980,022 17,318,903 40,661,118 57,154,124 17,318,903 39,835,220
Deferred tax on temporary
differences 521,751,921 (212,408,883) 255,170,471 516,318,695 (212,822,090) 255,958,854
Deferred tax on carry forward of
unused tax losses . . . . . .
Deferred tax due to changes in tax ) ) ) ) ) )
rate
Net Deferred tax
asset/(liabilities) as on year end | 521,751,921 | (212,408,883) 255,170,471 516,318,695 | (212,822,090) | 255,958,854
of 2082
Recognised in Profit or loss 253,171,547 251,230,019 | 251,230,019
Recognised in other 4,728,835 4728835 | 4,728,835
comprehensive income
Recognised directly in equity - - -
Deferred tax (asset)/liabilities as
on Sawan 1, 2081 (157,434,488) (154,282,111) (154,282,111)
e Bl e it (97,735,983) (101,676,744) | (101,676,744)

the year

Deferred tax expense/(income)
recognised in profit or loss

(59,160,257)

(63,101,017)

(63,101,017)

Deferred tax
expense/(income) recognised in
other comprehensive income

(38,575,726)

(38,575,726)

(38,575,726)

Deferred tax expense/(income)
recognised in directly in equity

Previous Year ( FY 2080-81)

Deferred
Tax
Assets

Previous Year

Deferred Tax
Liabilities

Deferred tax on temporary differences on following items

Net Deferred

Tax Assets/
(Liabilities)

Deferred

Tax Assests

Previous Year

Deferred Tax
Liabilities

Net
Deferred
Tax Assets/
(Liabilities)

Loan and Advance to B/Fls

Loans and Advances to customers

Investment properties

Investment securities - (6,324,192) 6,324,192 (6,324,192) 6,324,192
Property & equipment - 18,313,021 (18,313,021) - 18,313,021 (18,313,021)
Employees' defined benefit plan 109,061,993 - 109,061,993 | 105,909,615 -| 105,909,615
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Lease liabilities

(248,959,326)

43,320,936

292,280,262

(248,959,326)

43,320,936

Provisions

Other temporary differences

17,318,903

17,040,388

34,359,292

17,318,903

17,040,388

Deferred tax on temporary
differences

(219,651,594)

157,434,488

432,549,169

(219,651,594) | 154,282,111

Deferred tax on carry forward of
unused tax losses

Deferred tax due to changes in tax
rate

Net Deferred tax asset
(liabilities) as on year end of
2081

435,701,547 | (219,651,594)

157,434,488

432,549,169

(219,651,594) | 154,282,111

Recognised in Profit or loss

151,110,296

147,957,918

Recognised in other
comprehensive income

6,324,192

6,324,192

Recognised directly in equity

Deferred tax (asset)/liabilities as
on Sawan 1, 2080

(91,232,820)

(85,784,940)

Origination/(Reversal) during
the year

(66,201,668)

(68,497,171)

Deferred tax expense/(income)
recognised in profit or loss

(69,166,564)

(71,462,067)

Deferred tax

expense/(income) recognised in 2,964,896 2,964,896
other comprehensive income

Deferred tax expense/(income) } }
recognised in directly in equity

Other assets 4.16

Current Year

Previous
Year

Current Year

Previous
Year

Assets held for sale

Other non banking assets

Bills receivable

Accounts receivable 802,489,659 915,595,624 652,014,525 787,394,666
Accrued income - - - _
Prepayments and deposit 135,964,499 84,519,508 135,564,499 84,119,513

Income tax deposit

Deferred employee expenditure

1,646,937,593

1,479,404,232

1,646,937,593

1,479,404,232

Other 857,596,580 882,744,830 821,644,401 864,496,496
a. Stationery at stock 33,007,848 41,439,620 33,007,848 34,632,076
b. Branch adjustment account - - - -
c. Right of Use Assets (NFRS 16) 824,588,732 841,305,210 788,636,553 829,864,421
d. Others - - - -

Total 3,442,988,331 | 3,362,264,194 | 3,256,161,018 | 3,215,414,907
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Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 417

Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Money market deposits - - - -
Interbank borrowing 1,000,075,342 441,270,054 1,000,075,342 441,270,054
Other deposits from BFIs 1,679,789,013 2,687,222,156 1,679,789,013 2,687,222,156
Settlement and clearing accounts - - - -
Total 2,679,864,355 3,128,492,210 2,679,864,355 3,128,492,210
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 4.18

Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Refinance from NRB - , . B}

Standing Liquidity Facility - - - .

Lender of last report facility from NRB - - - -

Securities sold under repurchase - - - -
agreements

Other payable to NRB - - - B,
Total - = 5 -
There is no any due to Nepal Rastra Bank as of Ashadh End 2081.

Derivative financial instruments 4.19
‘ Group ‘ Bank
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Held for trading - - - -

Interest rate swap - - - -

Currency swap - - - -

Forward exchange contract - - - B,
Others - - - .
Held for risk management 9,984,287 - 9,984,287 -
Interest rate swap - - - -

Currency swap - - - -

Forward exchange contract 9,984,287 - 9,984,287 -
Other - - - -
Total 9,984,287 - 9,984,287 -
Deposits from customers 4.20
Group Bank
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Institutions customers: 52,432,273,158 42,069,325,139 52,473,576,859 42,278,045,847
Term deposits 27,988,111,670 24,962,759,565 28,011,611,670 25,157,759,565
Call deposits 13,318,204,133 9,238,122,439 13,329,838,108 9,245,917,699
Current deposits 8,864,879,841 6,449,326,477 8,871,049,566 6,455,251,924
Other 2,261,077,514 1,419,116,658 2,261,077,514 1,419,116,658
Individual customers: 131,702,473,042 116,368,863,323 131,702,473,042 116,368,863,323
Term deposits 43,300,208,855 58,941,631,133 43,300,208,855 58,941,631,133
Saving deposits 86,363,992,378 56,231,757,379 86,363,992,378 56,231,757,379
Current deposits 2,033,535,054 1,182,864,519 2,033,535,054 1,182,864,519
Other 4,736,755 12,610,292 4,736,755 12,610,292
Total 184,134,746,200 158,438,188,462 184,176,049,901 158,646,909,170
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Currency wise analysis of deposit from customers 4.20.1

Group Bank
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Nepalese rupee 181,611,533,317 156,522,831,051 181,652,837,017 156,731,551,759
Indian rupee 5,125,562 5,125,562 5,125,562 5,125,562
United State dollar 2,481,131,045 1,892,992,520 2,481,131,045 1,892,992,520
Great Britain pound 3,637,989 5,433,806 3,637,989 5,433,806
Euro 22,477,736 11,655,003 22,477,736 11,655,003
Japanese yen 9,536,960 29,827 9,536,960 29,827
Chinese yuan - - - -
Other (AUD) 1,303,591 120,694 1,303,591 120,694
Total 184,134,746,200 158,438,188,462 184,176,049,901 158,646,909,170
Borrowing 4.21

Group Bank

Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Domestic Borrowing
Nepal Government
Other Institutions
Other

Sub total - - - -
Foreign Borrowing
Foreign Bank and Financial Institutions 2,143,480,557 2,091,129,011 2,143,480,557 2,091,129,011
Multilateral Development Banks
Other Institutions - - - -
Sub total 2,143,480,557 2,091,129,011 2,143,480,557 2,091,129,011
Total 2,143,480,557 2,091,129,011 2,143,480,557 2,091,129,011

Foreign borrowing includes USD 15 million from Doha Qatar on 26 Jan 2023 for a period of 3 Years. Loan is for the period of 3 years
and interest is payable on semi-annual basis. It also includes accrued interest payable thereon.

Provisions 4.22

Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Provisions for redundancy

Provision for restructuring

Pending legal issues and tax litigation

Onerous contracts
Other
Total - - - -

Movement in provision 4.22.1

Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Balance at Sawan 1 - -

Provisions made during the year

Provisions used during the year

Provisions reversed during the year

Unwind of discount

Balance at Ashad end = 5 - .
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Other liabilities

Previous Year ‘

Current Year
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Previous Year

Liability for employees defined benefit 216,790,933 62,965,624 216,790,933 62,965,624
obligations
Liability for long-service leave 415,997,871 312,823,741 413,752,785 310,847,903
Short-term employee benefits 33,812 9,610
Bills payable
Creditors and accruals 485,432,063 372,249,588 470,730,477 367,894,512
Interest payable on deposit 32,828,016 46,260,084 32,828,016 46,260,084
Interest payable on borrowing
Liabilities on deffered grant income 1,605,172 4,546,640 1,605,172 4,546,640
Unpaid Dividend 49,452,075 66,249,236 49,452,075 66,249,236
Liabilities under Finance Lease 1,023,536,958 974,267,541 1,023,536,958 974,267,541
Employee bonus payable 305,277,359 183,804,335 302,415,942 183,759,547
Other 1,543,115,115 1,132,704,318 1,527,816,525 1,118,248,901
Total 4,074,069,374 3,155,880,717 4,038,928,883 3,135,039,988
Defined benefit obligations 4.23.1
The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are as follows:
‘ Group ‘ Bank
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Present value of unfunded obligations 216,790,933 62,965,624 216,790,933 62,965,624
Present value of funded obligations 735,520,592 683,707,849 735,520,592 683,707,849
Total present value of obligations 952,311,525 746,673,473 952,311,525 746,673,473
Fair value of plan assets 735,520,592 683,707,849 735,520,592 683,707,849
Present value of net obligations

E::Z%i':izﬁ‘l’i::'t?g:g for defined 216,790,933 62,965,624 216,790,933 62,965,624
Plan assets 4.23.2

Plan assets comprise

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Equity securities

Government bonds

Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations

Bank deposit

Other (Deposit with CIT) 735,520,592 683,707,849 735,520,592 683,707,849

Total 735,520,592 683,707,849 735,520,592 683,707,849

Actual return on plan assets 30,938,432 49,547,185 30,938,432 49,547,185
4.23.3

Current Year Previous Year ‘ Current Year Previous Year
Defined benefit obligations at Sawan 1 746,673,473 654,942,142 746,673,473 654,942,142
Actuarial losses 96,621,607 (27,345,222) 96,621,607 (27,345,222)
Benefits paid by the plan (42,091,313) (20,781,478) (42,091,313) (20,781,478)
Current service costs and interest 151,107,758 139,858,031 151,107,758 139,858,031
Defined benefit obligations at Ashad 952,311,525 746,673,473 952,311,525 746,673,473
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Movement in the fair value of plan assets

4234

Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Fair value of plan assets at Sawan 1 683,707,849 646,374,031 683,707,849 646,374,031
Contributions paid into the plan 62,965,624 8,568,111 62,965,624 8,568,111
Benefits paid during the year (42,091,313) (20,781,478) (42,091,313) (20,781,478)
Actuarial (losses) gains (37,282,005) (12,499,118) (37,282,005) (12,499,118)
Expected return on plan assets 68,220,437 62,046,303 68,220,437 62,046,303
Fair value of plan assets at Ashad end 735,520,592 683,707,849 735,520,592 683,707,849
Amount recognised in profit or loss 4.23.5

Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Current service costs 79,739,040 77,383,323 79,739,040 77,383,323
Interest on obligation 3,148,281 428,405 3,148,281 428,405
Expected return on plan assets
Total 82,887,321 77,811,728 82,887,321 77,811,728
Amount recognised in other comprehensive income 4.23.6

Current Year ‘ Previous Year ‘ Current Year Previous Year
Acturial (gain)/loss 133,903,612 (14,846,104) 133,903,612 (14,846,104)
Total 133,903,612 (14,846,104) 133,903,612 (14,846,104)
Actuarial assumptions 4.23.7

Group ‘ Bank

Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Discount rate 7% 10% 7% 10%
Expected return on plan asset 7% 10% 7% 10%
Future salary increase 5% 7% 5% 7%
Withdrawal rate 8% 8% 8% 8%

Debt securities issued

Current Year

Previous Year

>
N
i

Current Year

Previous Year

Debt securities issued designated as
at fair value through profit or loss

Debt securities issued at amortised 5,498,289,706 5,495,481,482 5,498,289,706 5,495,481,482
cost

Total 5,498,289,706 5,495,481,482 5,498,289,706 5,495,481,482
Subordinated Liabilities 4.25

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Redeemable preference shares

Irredemable cumulative preference
shares (liabilities component)

Other

Total
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Share capital 4.26

Group Bank

Ordinary shares 11,621,357,273 11,621,357,273 11,621,357,273 11,621,357,273

Convertible preference shares (equity

component only)

Irredemable preference shares (equity

component only)

Perpetual debt (equity component

only)

Total 11,621,357,273 11,621,357,273 11,621,357,273 11,621,357,273
Ordinary shares 4.26.1

Current Year Previous Year

Authorized Capital

150,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each share 15,000,000,000 15,000,000,000
Issued capital
116,213,573 Ordinary shares of Rs.100 each share 11,621,357,273 11,621,357,273

(Previous Year 102,571,556 Ordinary shares of Rs.100 each share)
Subscribed and paid up capital

116,213,573 Ordinary shares of Rs.100 each share 11,621,357,273 11,621,357,273
(Previous Year 102,571,556 Ordinary shares of Rs.100 each share)
Total 11,621,357,273 11,621,357,273

Ordinary share ownership 4.26.2

Current Year Previous Year

Domestic ownership
Nepal Government - . - -

"A" class licensed institutions - - - _

Other licensed institutions - - - -
Other Institutions 24 | 2,830,521,400 211 2,486,719,200
Public 76 | 8790835873 79 | 9,134,638,073

Name of Shareholders - - - _

Foreign ownership - - - -
Total 100 | 11,621,357,273 100 | 11,621,357,273
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Name of Shareholders

Shareholder holding 0.5% or more share

Current Year

Previous Year

% Amount % Amount

Employees Provident Fund 9.24 1,073,700,000 9.24 1,073,700,000
Prem Kumari K.C 8.69 1,010,474,300 8.68 1,008,489,700
Surendra Mahato 7.74 900,009,900 1.71 198,951,200
PKR Investment Company Pvt.Ltd 6.07 705,131,600 6.07 705,131,600
Ram Ashish Sahu Sudi 424 492,178,200 424 492,178,200
Dr.Dharma Raj Shrestha 2.03 235,961,700 2.03 235,961,600
Krishna Gopal Shrestha 1.75 202,821,300 1.78 206,821,300
Birendra Prasad Mahato 1.58 183,412,400 0.61 70,819,000
Karan Motor Company Pvt.Ltd 1.51 175,986,900 1.51 175,986,900
Roshan K.C 1.48 172,409,300 1.48 172,409,300
Kiran K.C 1.48 172,279,200 1.48 172,279,200
Prakash K.C 1.29 150,283,700 1.29 150,283,700
Ei;”leferEk;linvvaizt[?é?tteg”d Petroleurn 0.99 115,410,300 0.99 115,410,300
Associated Automobiles Pvt.Itd 0.86 100,190,800 0.93 108,190,800
Sun Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited 0.86 100,000,000

Praneshwor Pokharel 0.72 83,145,200 0.72 83,145,200
Shree Himalayan Enterprises Pvt.Ltd 0.61 71,292,900 0.77 89,598,800
Dinesh Lal Shrestha 0.51 59,108,800 0.51 59,108,800
Upendra Mahato Sudi 9.14 1,061,834,000
Ganesh Bahadur Shrestha 0.91 105,691,700
Ajad Shrestha 0.57 66,169,100
NMB Saral Bachat Fund-E 0.54 63,063,100
Total 51.65 6,003,796,500 55.20 6,415,223,500
Reserves 4.27

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Statutory general reserve 3,280,493,152 2,902,630,745 3,276,270,877 2,899,542,179
Exchange equalization reserve 96,699,911 80,436,805 96,699,911 80,436,805
Corporate social responsibility reserve 21,258,198 11,731,983 21,120,602 11,504,113

Capital redemption reserve

Regulatory reserve

1,580,609,512

1,835,134,609

1,580,609,512

1,835,134,609

Investment adjustment reserve

Capital reserve

Assets revaluation reserve

Fair value reserve

(11,033,948)

(14,756,448)

(11,033,948)

(14,756,448)

Dividend equalization reserve

Debenture redemption reserve

1,567,401,286

1,138,829,857

1,567,401,286

1,138,829,857

Actuarial gain (230,812,105) (137,079,576) (230,812,105) (137,079,576)
Special reserve - - - -
Other reserve 18,506,203 7,687,955 18,506,203 7,687,955
a) Employee Skill Enhancement 18,506,203 7,687,955 18,506,203 7,687,955
Reserve (Trainning Reserve)
b) Deferred Tax Reserve
c) Other Reserve - - - -
Total 6,323,122,209 5,824,615,930 6,318,762,338 5,821,299,494
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Contingent liabilities and commitments
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4.28

‘ Current Year ‘ Previous Year‘ Current Year ‘ Previous Year

Contingent liabilities 32,916,383,556 | 30,686,496,086 | 32,916,383,556 | 30,686,496,086
Undrawn and undisbursed facilities 5,420,318,741 5,310,376,111 5,420,318,741 5,310,376,111
Capital commitment 16,117,225 5,312,386 16,117,225 5,312,386
Lease commitment - - - -
Litigation 436,301,411 391,442,311 436,301,411 391,442,311
Total 38,789,120,934 | 36,393,626,895 | 38,789,120,934 | 36,393,626,895

Contingent liabilities

Acceptance and documentary credit

4.28.1

Bills for collection

12,187,470,960

9,487,475,538

12,187,470,960

9,487,475,538

Forward exchange contracts

Guarantees

20,728,912,596

21,199,020,548

20,728,912,596

21,199,020,548

Underwriting commitment

Other commitments

Total

32,916,383,556

30,686,496,086

32,916,383,556

30,686,496,086

Undrawn and undisbursed facilities

4.28.2

Undisbursed amount of loans

Group

Bank

Current Year Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year

Undrawn limits of overdrafts 5,033,410,797 | 4,375,480,046 | 5,033,410,797 | 4,375,480,046
Undrawn limits of credit cards 386,907,944 934,896,065 386,907,944 934,896,065
Undrawn limits of letter of credit - - - -
Undrawn limits of guarantee - - - -
Total 5,420,318,741 | 5,310,376,111| 5,420,318,741| 5,310,376,111

Capital commitments

Capital expenditure approved by relevant authority of the bank but provision has not been made in financial
statements

‘ Current Year ‘ Previous Year‘ Current Year ‘

4.28.3

Previous Year

Capital commitments in relation to

Property and Equipment

Approved and contracted for 7,386,625 1,347,479 7,386,625 1,347,479
Approved but not contracted for - - - -
Sub Total 7,386,625 1,347,479 7,386,625 1,347,479
Capital commitments in relation to

Intangible assets

Approved and contracted for 8,730,600 3,964,907 8,730,600 3,964,907
Approved but not contracted for - -
Sub total 8,730,600 3,964,907.00 8,730,600 3,964,907
Total 16,117,225 5,312,386 16,117,225 5,312,386

Annual Report 2024/25

93




Qw3 aIffies ufdidicer 20Ta/TR

Lease commitments 4.28.4

Current Year Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year

Operating lease commitments

Future minimum lease payments under non cancellable operating lease, where the bank is lessee

Not later than 1 year - - - -

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years - - - -

Later than 5 years - - - -
Sub Total - - - R
Finance lease commitments

Future minimum lease payments under non cancellable operating lease, where the bank is lessee

Not later than 1 year - - - -

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years - - - -

Later than 5 years - - - -
Sub total - - - -
Grand total = - - -
Lease commitments has calculated as per NFRS 16-"Leases".

Litigation 4.28.5

Under the self-assessment process, bank files its income tax returns which is then reviewed by Large Tax Payers Office
usually within four years from the end of financial year. On completion of assesment till FY 2077-78, Large Taxpayers
Office(LTO) has raised an assessment order for disputed tax liability of NPR 436,301,411. Bank has contended such tax
liability and has filed appeal to higher authorities. These cases are under administrative review and pending before
Revenue Tribunal/Supreme Court.

Interest income 4.29
. Gowp |  Bamk |
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Cash and cash equivalent 8,125,766 17,986,273 8,125,766 17,986,273
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank - - - -
Placement with bank and financial 205,794,377 273,785,409 205,794,377 273,785,409
institutions
Loan and advances to bank and 5,183,709 8,400,977 5,183,709 8,400,977
financial institutions
Loans and advances to customers 12,140,171,971 14,390,833,968 12,141,834,739 | 14,390,833,968
Investment securities 1,900,142,196 1,621,908,997 1,930,672,638 | 1,624,758,231
Loan and advances to staff 289,154,807 282,928,688 289,154,807 282,928,688
Other 8,194,072 6,160,274 - -
Total interest income 14,556,766,898 16,602,004,586 | 14,580,766,036 | 16,598,693,546

Loan and advances to staff includes interest income from fair value of staff loan.
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Interest expense

Group

Current Year

Previous Year
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4.30

Bank

Current Year

Previous Year

Due to bank and financial institutions 117,871,071 152,689,134 117,871,071 152,689,134
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank - 375,917 - 375,917
Deposits from customers 7,822,032,735 10,474,312,646 7,854,446,357 | 10,491,244,530
Borrowing 279,268,353 393,898,695 279,268,353 393,898,695
Debt securities issued 501,617,255 500,139,732 501,617,255 500,139,732
Subordinated liabilities - - - -
Other 72,154,029 73,869,912 70,846,906 72,152,762
Total interest expense 8,792,943,443 11,595,286,036 8,824,049,942 | 11,610,500,770

Other includes interest expense on Finance Lease as per NFRS 16 -"Leases"

Fees and Commission Income

Group

Current Year

Previous Year

4.31

Bank

Current Year

Previous Year

Loan administration fees 226,967,708 162,225,842 226,967,708 162,225,842
Service fees 293,523,692 257,995,550 235,424,622 215,614,343
Consortium fees 75,270,838 21,451,184 75,270,838 21,451,184
Commitment fees 974,305 806,702 974,305 806,702
DD/TT/Swift fees 113,074,718 106,147,956 113,074,718 106,147,956
Credit card/ATM issuance and renewal 163,829,045 183,294,118 163,829,045 183,294,118
fees

Prepayment and swap fees 95,620,302 92,992,878 95,620,302 92,992,878
Investment banking fees 14,078,528 14,290,212 14,078,528 14,290,212
Asset management fees - - - -
Brokerage fees - - - -
Remittance fees 15,662,300 23,955,199 15,662,300 23,955,199
Commission on letter of credit 236,003,685 139,894,112 236,003,685 139,894,112
Commission on guarantee contracts 191,228,133 191,774,538 191,228,133 191,774,538
issued

Commission on share underwriting/issue - - - -
Locker rental 17,823,430 16,627,958 17,823,430 16,627,958
Other fees and commission income 206,534,850 182,279,238 204,874,703 192,066,814
Total fees and Commission Income 1,650,591,534 1,393,735,487 1,590,832,317 | 1,361,141,856

Other fees and commission income includes education loan fee, IPS fee, CIC income, CASBA income,etc.

Fees and commission expense

4.32

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

ATM management fees 45,409,515 47,944,021 45,409,515 47,944,021
VISA/Master card fees 130,115,691 109,312,544 130,115,691 109,312,544
Guarantee commission - - - -
Brokerage - - - -
DD/TT/Swift fees 14,643,903 12,561,214 14,643,903 12,561,214
Remittance fees and commission 18,043,912 15,597,569 18,043,912 15,597,569
Other fees and commission expense 114,748,395 101,641,482 97,442,552 88,099,977
Total fees and Commission Expense 322,961,416 287,056,830 305,655,573 273,515,325

Other fees and commission expense includes cheque clearing fee, sms service charges,other bank charges, BLB

Commission expenses,etc.
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Net trading income

Changes in fair value of trading assets

Current Year

Previous Year

P
W
w

Current Year

Previous Year

Gain/loss on disposal of trading assets

Interest income on trading assets

Dividend income on trading assets

Gain/loss foreign exchange transaction 332,153,025 230,382,782 332,153,025 230,382,782
Other - - - -
Net trading income 332,153,025 230,382,782 332,153,025 230,382,782
Other operating income 4.34
Group Bank

Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Foreign exchange revaluation gain 65,052,422 60,665,189 65,052,422 60,665,189
S:ézﬁ:gzss on sale of investment 16,089,790 6,994,755 ) i
Fair value gain/loss on investment i ) ) )
properties
Dividend on equity instruments 25,130,945 12,763,232 24,229,056 11,660,028
Sg&‘é 'r?f;n‘:” sale of property and 186,258 478,381 186,258 478,381
Sfc')g/e'féf on sale of investment (33,634,060) (12,376,296) (33,634,060) | (12,376,296)
Operating lease income - - - -
Gain/loss on sale of gold and silver 10,794,596 19,538,224 10,794,596 19,538,224
Other 11,589,707 590,269 - -
Total 95,209,658 88,653,754 66,628,272 79,965,526

Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan
and advances to B/Fls

Impairment charge/(reversal)for loan and other losses

Group

Current Year

(3,213,408)

Previous Year

4.35

Bank

Current Year

(3,213,408)

Previous Year

3,297,498

Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan
and advances to customer

877,665,065

1,390,812,605

877,665,065

1,387,515,107

Impairment charge/(reversal) on
financial Investment

(317,794,612)

7,375,000

(317,794,612)

7,375,000

Impairment charge/(reversal) on
placement with banks and financial
institutions

Impairment charge/(reversal) on
property and equipment

Impairment charge/(reversal) on
goodwill and intangible assets

Impairment charge/(reversal) on
investment properties

Total

556,657,045

1,398,187,605

556,657,045

1,398,187,605

www.machbank.com
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Personnel Expense
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4.36

Group Bank

Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Salary 691,793,459 622,117,578 672,109,226 604,663,969
Allowances 512,849,122 475,753,099 509,057,777 473,087,519
Gratuity expense 83,541,844 78,437,427 82,887,321 77,811,728
Provident fund 68,828,610 62,217,026 67,095,814 60,466,397
Uniform 24,819,269 20,994,976 24,819,269 20,994,976
Training & development expense 36,077,185 52,625,338 35,424,902 52,279,207
Leave encashment 143,886,009 79,003,434 143,149,031 78,140,980
Medical - - - -
Insurance 42,183,999 22,197,684 41,830,229 21,901,829
Employees incentive - - - -
Cash-settled share-based payments - - - -
Pension expense - - - -
Finance expense under NFRSs 89,084,497 69,554,291 89,084,497 69,554,291
Other expenses related to staff 501,726,250 445,585,378 497,907,632 442,691,882
a. Dashain allowance 98,448,796 92,908,726 98,272,915 92,732,845
b. Others 403,277,454 352,676,652 399,634,717 349,959,037
Subtotal 2,194,790,244 1,928,486,231 2,163,365,698 | 1,901,592,778
Employees bonus 305,277,359 183,804,335 302,415,942 183,759,547
Grand total 2,500,067,603 2,112,290,566 2,465,781,640 | 2,085,352,325

Other operating expense

4.37

Group Bank

Directors' fee 4,530,500 4,324,500 3,503,500 3,263,500
Directors' expense 2,566,147 2,124,099 2,455,362 2,079,011
Auditors' remuneration 3,051,000 2,971,900 2,825,000 2,825,000
Other audit related expense - - - -
Professional and legal expense 21,993,767 14,812,565 21,382,340 14,590,655
Office administration expense 795,123,899 750,643,737 781,310,844 736,753,205
Operating lease expense 29,314,271 36,065,604 29,199,541 34,255,104
Operating expense of investment i i ) i
properties

Corporate social responsibility expense 9,219,946 26,352,843 9,219,946 26,352,843
Onerous lease provisions 586,972 - - -
Other - - - -
Total 866,386,502 837,295,248 849,896,533 820,119,318

Annual Report 2024/25
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Office Administration Expense

Group

4.37.1

Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Water and Electricity 41,406,035 39,386,498 40,968,197 39,386,498
Repair and Maintenance 21,325,549 18,473,087 21,218,917 18,473,087
a) Building 96,412 101,402 96,412 101,402
b) Vehicle 7,556,412 6,230,594 7,556,412 6,230,594
c) Computer and accessories 1,232,397 671,464 1,232,397 671,464
d) Office equipment and furniture 7,643,022 6,432,171 7,643,022 6,432,171
e) Other 4,797,306 5,037,456 4,690,674 5,037,456
Insurance 8,495,902 7,929,362 8,403,843 7,929,362
Postage, Telex, Telephone, Fax 28,485,654 27,549,780 28,383,034 27,549,780
Printing and Stationery 34,489,835 34,933,306 34,048,133 34,933,306
News Paper, books and journals 370,379 307,307 370,379 307,307
Advertisements 43,051,361 40,220,228 42,224,289 40,220,228
Donation - -
Security Expenses 186,578,980 162,739,404 186,165,131 162,739,404
Deposit and loan guarantee premium 75,607,866 66,905,513 75,607,866 66,905,513
Traveling Allowances and Expenses 20,714,502 21,160,361 19,643,868 21,160,361
Entertainment 1,837,462 2,023,325 1,836,102 2,023,325
Legal Expenses - - - -
Annual/special General Meeting 3,498,147 2,891,335 3,296,632 2,891,335
Other 329,262,228 326,124,229 319,144,454 312,233,697
a) Annual Maintenance Expenses 45,340,317 14,776,770 44,948,889 14,776,770
b) Fuel 16,301,435 18,654,382 15,690,737 18,654,382
¢) Business Promotion/Annual Function 12,428,113 16,659,081 11,965,802 16,659,081
Expenses
d) Rates And Taxes 10,920,641 11,117,652 10,920,641 11,117,652
e) Outsource Staff Expenses 89,461,667 75,883,888 87,948,364 75,883,888
f) Other 154,810,055 189,032,456 147,670,021 175,141,924
Total 795,123,899 750,643,737 781,310,844 736,753,205
Depreciation & Amortisation 4.38
Group Bank

Current Year Previous Year Current Year | Previous Year
Depreciation on property and 402,790,684 399,167,291 396,328,556 394,209,558
equipment
Depreciation on investment property - - - -
Amortisation of intangible assets 25,411,830 23,120,279 24,368,612 22,409,668
Total 428,202,514 422,287,570 420,697,168 416,619,226

Depreciation on property and equipment includes depreciation on Right of Use Assets amounting to NPR
176,642,218 as per NFRS 16 -"Leases" due to which depreciation amount does not match with 4.13 Property, Plant

and Equipment schedule.

9¢ www.machbank.com




Non operating income
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4.39

‘ Current Year ‘ Previous Year ‘ Current Year ‘ Previous Year

Recovery of loan written off 52,428,294 85,318,448 52,428,294 85,318,448
Other income - - - -
Total 52,428,294 85,318,448 52,428,294 85,318,448

Non operating expense

Group

Current Year

Previous Year

4.40

Bank

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Loan written off 291,103,962 95,463,054 291,103,962 95,463,054

Redundancy provision - - - -

Expense of restructuring - - - -

Other expense 187,222,603 1,908,616 187,222,603 1,908,616

Total 478,326,565 97,371,670 478,326,565 97,371,670

Income tax expense 4.41
Group Bank

Previous Year

Current tax expense 901,201,006 680,098,799 901,201,006 680,098,799
Current year 901,201,006 577,331,788 901,201,006 577,331,788
Adjustments for prior years - 102,767,011 - 102,767,011

Deferred tax expense

(54,987,601)

(70,756,857)

(63,101,016)

(71,462,067)

Origination and reversal of temporary

differences (54,987,601) (70,756,857) (63,101,016) (71,462,067)
Changes in tax rate - - - -
Recognition of previously unrecognised i i ) i
tax losses

Total income tax expense 846,213,405 609,341,942 838,099,990 608,636,732

Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit

Group

Current Year

Previous Year

4.41.1

Bank

Current Year

Previous Year

Profit before tax 2,741,604,321 1,650,319,532 2,721,743,478 | 1,653,835,919
Tax amount at tax rate of 30% 822,481,296 495,095,860 816,523,043 496,150,776
Add: Tax effect of expenses that are not 4,921,146 9,665,977 2,765,984 7,905,853
deductible for tax purpose

Less: Tax effect on exemptincome 2,229,772 1,543,142 2,229,772 1,543,142
Add/less: Tax effect on other items 21,040,734 106,123,246 21,040,734 106,123,246
Total income tax expense 846,213,405 609,341,942 838,099,990 608,636,732
Effective tax rate 30.87% 36.92% 30.79% 36.80%

Annual Report 2024/25
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MACHHAPUCHCHHRE BANK LIMITED
PRINCIPAL INDICATORS

Particulars Indicators FY.

1. Net Profit/Gross Income % 12.60% 9.96% 7.73% 5.27% 11.33%
2. Earnings Per Share Rs. 17.76 16.44 15.85 833 16.21
3. Market Value per Share Rs. 385.00 254.00 231.80 200.00 225.89
4. Price Earning Ratio Ratio 21.68 1545 14.63 24.02 13.94
5. Dividend (including bonus) on share capital % 14.00% 0.00% 14.00% 8.00%
6. Cash Dividend on share capital % 0.70% 0.00% 0.70% 4.00%
7. Interest Income/Loans & Advances % 9.35% 11.39% 14.36% 10.51% 7.93%
8. Net Profit/Loans & Advances % 1.38% 1.30% 1.26% 0.80% 1.28%
9. Employee Expenses/Total Operating Exps % 16.30% 12.11% 10.83% 12.73% 17.31%
10. Interest Expenses on Total Deposit and % 4.91% 6.74% 8.79% 7.18% 4.72%
Borrowings
11. Exchange Fluctuation Gain/Total Income % 2.32% 1.58% 1.61% 1.59% 2.39%
12. Staff Bonus/ Total Employee Expenses % 16.71% 16.30% 13.94% 9.66% 13.98%
13. Net Profit/Loans & Advances % 1.35% 1.26% 1.21% 0.71% 1.23%
14. Net Profit/ Total Assets % 1.02% 0.94% 0.87% 0.51% 0.87%
15. Total Credit/Deposit % 86.53% 86.32% 81.35% 83.32% 80.62%
16. Total Operating Expenses/Total Assets % 5.88% 7.64% 9.21% 7.88% 5.75%
17. Adequacy of Capital Fund on Risk Weightage Assets

a. Core Capital % 8.67% 8.62% 9.02% 9.25% 9.32%

b. Supplementary Capital % 3.39% 4.74% 4.56% 4.48% 3.82%

¢. Total Capital Fund % 12.06% 13.36% 13.58% 13.73% 13.14%

d. Risk Weighted Exposure Rs. 138,594,584,333 | 154,308,487,168 | 157,659,498, 251 | 158,425,885,626 | 178,833,067,352
18. Liquidity % 27.08% 21.40% 29.43% 29.30% 31.18%
19. Non Performing Loans/Total Loans % 0.62% 1.04% 2.26% 3.86% 3.96%
20. Net NPL % 0.28% 0.44% 0.84% 1.53% 1.19%
21. Base Rate % 7.26% 9.86% 10.74% 8.26% 6.30%
22. Weighted Average Interest Rate Spread * % 3.82% 4.33% 4.26% 3.98% 3.79%
23. Book Net worth Rs. 12,864,132,182 | 14,485,771,130| 16,151,786,049 | 17,036,357,114| 18,907,367,225
24. Total Shares Number 90,530,946 102,571,556 102,571,556 116,213,573 116,213,573
25. Total Employees Number 1,510 1,584 1,558 1,484 1,584
26. Productivity per Staff Rs.'000 1064.55 1,116.99 1026.22 621.20 1269.30
27. Book Value Per Share Rs. 142.10 141.23 157.47 146.60 162.70
28. No.of Promoter Equity Shares Rs. 4,617,078236| 5231,149,346 5231,149,346|  5926,892,209|  5,926,892,209
29. No.of Public Equity Shares Rs. 4,436,016,345|  5,026,006,235 5,026,006,235|  5,694,465064|  5694,465,064
30. Return on Total Assets % 1.02% 0.94% 0.87% 0.55% 0.87%
31. Return on Total Equity % 12.50% 11.64% 10.06% 6.11% 9.96%
32. Number of branches Number 161 165 165 165 165
33. Number of ATM Number 203 207 204 200 203

Note:

1. Gross income includes interest income, fee & commission income, operating income, forex income and non operating income

2. Loan & advances of point no. 7 includs gross amount of loan to customes & BFI's presented in 4.7 and 4.6 respectively.

3. Total staff expenses does not include staff bonus.

4, Weighted Average Interest Rate spread is presented as per the calculation of NRB Directive (Thus Rate represent Ashad month spread)

fAe)
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Machhapuchchhre Bank Limited
Significant Accounting Policies
Financial Year 16 July 2024 to 16 July 2025 (1 Sawan 2081 to 32 Ashad 2082)

1. General Information

1.1 Reporting Entity

Machhapuchchhre Bank Limited (hereinafter referred to
as “the Bank”) is a public limited company, incorporated
on 16 February 1998 as per then Companies Act 1964
of Nepal, and domiciled in Nepal. The Bank obtained
license from Nepal Rastra Bank on 11 Ashoj 2057. The
registered office of the Bank is located at Lazimpat,
Kathmandu, Nepal. The Bank is listed in Nepal Stock
Exchange Limited (the sole stock exchange in Nepal) for
public trading.

The principal activities of the Bank are to provide
full-fledged commercial banking services including
agency services, trade finance services, card services,
e-commerce products and services and commodity
trading services to its customers through its strategic
business units, branches, extension counters, ATMs
and network of agents.

1.2 Subsidiary

Machhapuchchhre Capital Limited

Machhapuchchhre Capital Limited subsidiary of the
Bank was incorporated on 8 Ashwin 2075 as a public
limited company as per the Companies Act 2063
and licensed by Securities Board of Nepal under
the Securities Businessperson (Merchant Banker)
Regulations, 2008 to provide merchant banking and
investment banking services.

Current holding of the Bank in Machhapuchchhre
Capital Limited is 69.85%.

Relevant Financial
Statement

Nepalese Calendar
Date/Period

Consolidated Statement of

Financial Position 32 Ashad 2082

The financial year of subsidiary is same as that of the
Bank.

Machhapuchchhre Securities Limited

Machhapuchchhre Securities Limited isincorporated on
Sawan 10, 2076 with the objective of providing securities
brokerage services in the secondary market of Nepal.

The Company has obtained license from Securities
Board of Nepal and Nepal Stock Exchange Limited
for operation of transactions. Machhapuchchhre
Securities Limited is fully owned subsidiary company of
Machhapuchchhre Bank Limited.

Cost as on Ashad End

Subsidiary 2082 (NPR)

Machhapuchchhre Securi-

ties Limited 200,000,000

The financial year of subsidiary is same as that of the
Bank.

1.3 Group

The Group represents the Bank and its subsidiary.

2. Basis of Preparation

2.1 Basis of Preparation

The Financial Statements of the Bank have been
prepared in accordance with the requirement of Nepal
Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) as published
by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB) Nepal and
pronounced by The Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Nepal (ICAN) and in the format issued by Nepal Rastra
Bank in Directive No. 4 of NRB Directives.

The Financial Statements comprise of:

« Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (SOFP)

« Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (SOPL)

» Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income (SOCI)

. Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
(SOCE)

« Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (SOCF)

. Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
comprising summary of Significant Accounting
Policies and explanatory notes.

2.2 Statement of Compliance

The financial statements of the group have been
prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting
Standards (NFRS) as issued by Accounting Standards

Annual Report 2024/25 PAL)
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Relevant Financial
Statement

Nepalese Calendar

English Calendar

Date/Period Date/Period

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

32 Ashad 2082 16 July 2025

Consolidated Statement of Profit/Loss

1 Sawan 2081 to 32 Ashad,2082

16 July 2024 to 16 July 2025

Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income

1 Sawan 2081 to 32 Ashad,2082

16 July 2024 to 16 July 2025

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

1 Sawan 2081 to 32 Ashad, 2082

16 July 2024 to 16 July 2025

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

1 Sawan 2081 to 32 Ashad,2082

16 July 2024 to 16 July 2025

The Board of Directors of the Bank authorized the financial statement vide its resolution dated 13 Bhadra 2082
and recommended for its approval by the Annual General Meeting of the shareholders.

Board and in compliance with BAFIA 2073 and Unified
Directives 2080 issued by Nepal Rastra Bank and all
other applicable laws and regulations. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented
except otherwise stated.

2.3 Reporting Period and approval of
financial statements

The Bank follows the Nepalese financial year based on
the Nepalese calendar. The corresponding dates for
the English calendar are as follows:

2.4 Functional and Presentation Currency

The Nepalese Rupees (NPR), being the currency of
primary economic environment under which bank
operates, has been used as the functional currency. The
financial information has been presented in Nepalese
Rupees and has been shown in actual figure, unless
indicated otherwise.

2.5 Significant Accounting Judgments,
Estimates and Assumptions

The Management of the Bank has made judgments,
estimations and assumptions which affect the
application of accounting policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses that
is required for the preparation of financial statements
in conformity with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards
(NFRS). The Management believes that the estimates
used in preparation of financial statements are prudent
and reasonable. Estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Necessary revisions
to accounting estimates are recognized in the period
in which such estimates are revised and in any future
periods affected. Actual results may differ from these

(R4 www.machbank.com

estimates.

Any revision in accounting estimate is recognized
prospectively in present and future periods as required
under NAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Error.

Significant estimates, assumptions and judgments used
in applying accounting policies which have material
effect in financial statements is:

o Impairment on loans and advances (Higher of
provision for loan loss calculated as per NRB
Guideline and Impairment loss calculated as per
NFRS)

Expected Credit Losses

The measurement of impairment losses across the
categories of financial assets under Nepal Financial
Reporting Standard - NFRS 9 on “Financial Instruments”
(NFRS9)requiresjudgement, in particular, the estimation
of the amount and timing of future cash flows and
collateral values when determining impairment losses.

Accordingly, the Bank reviews its individually significant
loans and advances portfolio at each reporting date to
assesswhether animpairmentlossis to be recognizedin
the Income Statement. In particular, the Management's
judgement is required in the estimation of the amount
and timing of future cash flows when determining
the impairment loss. In estimating these cash flows,
Management makes judgements about a borrower’s
financial situation and the net realizable value of any
underlying collateral (foreclosure) and expected cash
from operations. Each impaired asset is assessed on its
merits, and the workout strategy and estimate of cash
flows considered recoverable. These estimates are
based on assumptions about several factors and hence
actual results may differ, resulting in future changes to
the impairment allowance made.




A collective impairment provision is established for:

« Bank's homogeneous loans and advances that are
not considered individually significant; and

« Assets of Banks that are individually significant but
that were not found to be externally rated.

Following NFRS 9, the Bank's Expected Credit Loss
(ECL) calculations are outputs of complex models
with several underlying assumptions regarding the
choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies.
Elements of the Bank's ECL models that are considered
accounting judgements and estimates include:

o Criteria for qualitatively assessing whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk (SICR)
and if so, allowances for financial assets measured
on a Lifetime Expected Credit Loss (LT - ECL) basis.

« Segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is
assessed on a collective basis.

« Various statistical formulas and the choice of inputs
used in the development of ECL models.

. Associations between macroeconomic inputs, such
as GDP growth, inflation, interest rates, exchange
rates and unemployment and the effect of these
inputs on Probability of Default (PDs).

. Forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and
their probability weightings.

o Coupon rate of loan has been considered by the
Bank as effective interest rate.

As such, the accuracy of the impairment provision
depends on the model assumptions and parameters
used in determining the ECL calculations.

Further, the Bank has assigned weightages for base
(normal) case, best case and worst-case scenarios when
assessing the probability weighted forward looking
macro-economic indicators.

2.6 Accounting Policies and Changes in
Accounting Polices

There are different accounting principles adopted by
management and these policies are consistently applied
to all years presented except or changes in accounting
policies that have been disclosed separately.

The Bank, under NFRS, is required to apply accounting
policies to most appropriately suit its circumstances and
operating environment. Further, the Bank is required to
make judgments in respect of items where the choice of
specific policy, accounting estimate or assumption to be

203 arffies ufidcer Q0Ta/TR

followed could materially affect the financial statements.
This may later be determined that a different choice
could have been more appropriate. The accounting
policies have been included in the relevant notes for
each item of the financial statements and the effect and
nature of the changes, if any, have been disclosed.

2.7 New Standards in issue but not yet
effective

The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN)
has published Nepal Financial Reporting Standards
2018 (NFRS 2018) on March, 2021. Accordingly, NFRS
14 and NFRS 17 has been introduced with amendment
to existing standards which shall be effective from
Fiscal Year 2024-25. NFRS 14 “Regulatory Deferral
Accounts” and NFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” has not
been applied to Banks and Financial Institutions due to
revenue is recognized as per NFRS 15 “Revenue from
contracts with customers”.

2.8 New Standards and interpretation not
adopted

In preparing financial statement, Standards and
pronouncement issued by Accounting Standard Board
of Nepal has been adopted. Management has used
its assumptions and understandings for preparation
of financial statements under compliance with NFRS,
however, certain interpretations might vary regarding
the recognition, measurement, and other related
provisions where the standards are not specific and not
clear.

The NFRS conform, inallmaterial respect, to International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

2.9 NFRS 9: Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement

a) Impracticability to determine transaction cost
of all previous years which is the part of effective
interest rate

In para 5.4, effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments of receipts
through the expected life of the financial assets or
financial liability to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset or to the amortized cost of a financial
liability. When calculating the effective interest rate,
an entity shall estimate the expected cash flows by
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considering all the contractual terms of the financial
instruments (for example, prepayment, extension, call
and similar options) but small not consider the expected
credit losses. The calculation includes all fees and points
paid or received unless it is immaterial or impracticable
to determine reliably, between parties to the contract
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate
(Para B5.4.1 - B5.4.3), transaction costs, and all other
premiums or discounts. There is a presumption that
cash flows and the expected life of a group of similar
financial instruments can be estimated reliably.
However, in those rare cases when it is not possible to
reliably estimate the cash flows or the expected life of a
financial instrument (or group of financial instruments),
the entity shall use the contractual cash flows over the
full contractual term of the financial instrument (or
group of financial instruments).

b) Impairment and collectability of financial
assets measured at amortized cost

As per Para 5.5, an entity shall assess at the end of
each reporting period whether there is any objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial
assets measured at amortized cost is impaired. If any
such evidence exists, they shall apply paragraph 5 to
determine the amount of any impairment loss unless
the entity is a bank of financial institution registered
as per Bank and Financial Institution Act 2073. Such
entities shall measure impairment loss on loan and
advances as the higher of amount derived as per the
norms prescribed by the Nepal Rastra Bank for loan loss
provision and amount determined as per paragraph 5
and shall apply paragraph 5 to measure the impairment
loss on financial assets other than loan and advances.
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
on financial assets measured at amortized cost has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as
the difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). The carrying amount
of the assets shall be reduced either directly or through
use of an allowance account. The amount of the loss
shall be recognized in profit of loss.

Bank has measure the impairment of loan and
advances to customers as higher of the impairment as
assessed under NFRS or as per the norms prescribed
by Nepal Rastra Bank. The provision is mandatory
where impairment under NFRS and impairment under

R0  www.machbank.com

NRB norms has been disclosed for comparison and
the higher of the two is charged as impairment and
recognized in the financial statements.

2.10 Financial Instruments

Classification and Measurement of Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities:

A. Recognition

The Bank initially recognizes a financial asset or a
financial liability in its statement of financial position
when, and only when, it becomes party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. The Bank
initially recognizes loans and advances; deposits and
debt securities/ subordinated liabilities issued on the
date that they are originated which is the date that
the Bank becomes party to the contractual provisions
of the instruments. Investments in equity instruments,
bonds, debenture, Government securities, NRB bond or
deposit auction, reverse repos, outright purchase are
recognized on trade date at which the Bank commits
to purchase/ acquire the financial assets. Regular way
purchase and sale of financial assets are recognized on
trade date at which the Bank commits to purchase or
sell the asset.

Except for trade receivables not containing a significant
financing component, at initial recognition, financial
asset or financial liability are recognized at its fair value
plus or minus, in the case of a financial asset or financial
liability not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of the financial asset or financial liability.

B. Classification

I. Financial Assets

Financial asset is any asset that is:
a) cash
b) an equity instrument of another entity.
C) contractual rights:
i. to receive cash or another financial asset from
another entity; or
ii. toexchange financial assets or financial liabilities
with another entity under conditions that are
potentially favorable to the entity; or
d) a contract that will or may be settled on the entity's
own equity instruments and is:
i. i.a non-derivative for which the entity is or may
be obliged to receive a variable number of the
entity's own equity instruments; or




ii. ii.a derivative that will or may be settled other
than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash
or another financial asset for a fixed number of
the entity's own equity instruments

The Bank classifies the financial assets as subsequently
measured at amortized cost or fair value on the basis
of the Bank's business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of
the financial assets.

The details of these conditions are outlined below:

* Business Model Assessment:
The Bank determinesits business model at the level that
best reflects how it manages groups of financial assets
to achieve its business objective. The Bank's business
model is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument
basis, but at a higher level of aggregated portfolios and
is based on observable factors such as:

» How the performance of the business model and
the financial assets held within that business model
are evaluated and reported to the Bank's Board/
Board Committees.

»  Therisks that affect the performance ofthe business
model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and, in particular, the way those
risks are managed.

»  The expected frequency, value and timing of sales
are alsoimportant aspects of the Bank's assessment

* The SPPI Test (Solely Payments of Principal and
Interest):

As a second step of its classification process, the Bank
assesses the contractual terms of financial assets to
identify whether they meet the SPPItest. The assessment
of SPPI aims to identify whether the contractual cash
flows are ‘solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding'.

‘Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the
fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition and
may change over the life of the financial asset. The
most significant elements of ‘interest’ within a lending
arrangement are typically the consideration for the
time value of money and credit risk.

In contrast, contractual terms that introduce a
more than trivial exposure to risks or volatility in the
contractual cash flows that are unrelated to a basic
lending arrangement do not give rise to contractual
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cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, these financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortized cost.

Financial assets are classified into the following
categories for the measurement subsequent to the
initial recognition.

Financial assets at amortized costs

2. Financial assets at Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)

3. Financial assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
(FVTPL)

1. Financial assets measured at amortized cost

The Bank classifies a financial asset measured at

amortized cost if both of the following conditions are

met:

« The asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows and

« The contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the
principal amount outstanding.

2. Financial asset measured at Fair Value through
Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)

The Financial assets measured at FVTOCI include debt
and equity instruments measured at FVTOCI:

Debt Instruments at FVTOCI

The bank classifies a financial asset as FVTOCI if both of

the following conditions are met:

« Theinstrumentis held within a business model, the
objective of which is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets.

. The contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of the principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

FVOCI debt instruments are subsequently measured at
fair value with gains and losses arising due to changes in
fair value recognized in OCI. Interest income and foreign
exchange gains and losses and ECL and reversals
are recognized in profit or loss. On derecognition,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognized in OCI
are reclassified from OCI to profit or loss.
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Equity Instruments at FVTOCI
Investment in an equity instrument that is not held

for trading is elected to be classified irrevocably as
FVTOCI at the time of initial recognition. Such assets
are subsequently measured at fair value and changes
in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive
income. Gains and losses on these equity instruments
are never recycled to profit and loss account, instead
directly transferred to retained earnings at the time of
derecognition.

Equity instruments at FVTOCI are not subject to an
impairment assessment.

3. Financial assets Measured at fair value through

profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are classified as fair value through profit

or loss (FVTPL) unless they are measured at Amortized

Cost or FVTOCI The following financial assets are

classified as measured at FVTPL:

« They are held for trading

« They are not held for trading and are designated
by management upon initial recognition or
mandatorily required to be measured at fair value
under NFRS 9.

o These assets are subsequently measured at fair
value and changes in fair value are recognized in
the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Il. Financial Liabilities
Financial Liabilities is any liability that is:

a) Contractual obligation:

i. todeliver cash or another financial asset to another
entity; or

ii. to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities
with another entity under conditions that are
potentially unfavorable to the entity; or

b) a contract that will or may be settled on the

entity’s own equity instruments and is:

i. a non-derivative for which the entity is or may be
obliged to deliver a variable number of the entity's
own equity instruments; or

ii. aderivative that will or may be settled other than by
the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of the entity’'s own
equity instruments.

The Bank classifies its financial liabilities, other than
financial guarantees and loan commitments, as follows.
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1. Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit
or Loss

Financial liabilities are classified as fair value through
profitorlossiftheyare held for trading or are designated
at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial
recognition, transaction costs are directly attributable
to the acquisition are recognized in the Statement of
Profit or Loss as incurred. Financial Liabilities measured
at FVTPL are measured at fair value and all the
Subsequent changes in fair value is recognized through
Statement of Profit or Loss.

Changes in fair value are recorded in “Net fair value
gains/ (losses) from financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss” with the exception of movements
in fair value of liabilities designated at FVTPL due to
changes in the Bank's own credit risk. Such changes
in fair value are recorded in the own credit reserve
through OCI and do not get recycled to profit or loss.
Interest paid/payable is accrued in “Interest expense”,
using the EIR.

2. Financial Liabilities measured at amortized cost
All financial liabilities other than measured at fair value
though profit or loss are classified as subsequently
measured at amortized cost using an effective interest
rate method. Amortized cost is calculated by considering
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR.

C. Measurement

1. Initial Measurement

A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially
at fair value plus or minus, for an item not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue. Transaction costs
in relation to financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognized in the Statement
of Profit or Loss.

2. Subsequent Measurement

A financial asset or financial liability is subsequently
measured either at fair value or at amortized cost based
on the classification of the financial asset or liability.
Financial assets or liability classified as measured at
amortized cost is subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest rate method.

The amortized cost of a financial asset or financial
liability is the amount at which the financial asset or
financial liability is measured at initial recognition minus




principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative
amortization using an effective interest method of any
difference between that initial amount and the maturity
amount, and minus any reduction for impairment or
uncollectible.

Financial assets classified at fair value are subsequently
measured at fair value. The subsequent changes in
fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are recognized in the Statement of Profit or
Loss whereas of financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income are recognized in other
comprehensive income.

D. Derecognition

Derecognition of Financial Assets
The Bank derecognizes a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive
the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset are transferred or in which the Bank
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control
of the financial asset.
Any interest in such transferred financial assets that
qualify for derecognition that is created or retained by
the Bank is recognized as a separate asset or liability.
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the carrying amount of the asset (or the
carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset
transferred), and the sum of
i. the consideration received (including any new asset
obtained less any new liability assumed) and
ii. anycumulative gainorlossthathadbeenrecognized
in other comprehensive income is recognized in
profit or loss.
In transactions in which the Bank neither retains nor
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a financial asset and it retains control over
the asset, the Bank continues to recognize the asset to
the extent of its continuing involvement, determined by
the extent to which it is exposed to changes in the value
of the transferred asset.

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

Financial liability is derecognized when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or canceled or expired.
Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
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modified, such an exchange or modification is treated
as a derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability. The difference between
the carrying value of the original financial liability and
the consideration paid is recognized in Statement of
Profit or Loss.

Determination of Fair Value

Fair values of financial assets and

determined according to the following

hierarchy:

« Level 1 - valuation technique using quoted market
price: financial instruments with quoted prices for
identical instruments in active markets that the
group accesses at the measurement date.

« Level 2 - valuation technique using observable
inputs: financial instruments with quoted prices
for similar instruments in active markets or quoted
prices for identical or similar instruments in inactive
markets and financial instruments valued using
models where all significant inputs are observable.

« Level 3 - valuation technique with significant
unobservable inputs: financial instruments valued
using valuation techniques where one or more
significant inputs are unobservable, where market
prices are not available, then the bank considers
the carrying value and future cash flows from the
financial instruments.

liabilities are

E. Impairment Losses on Financial Assets

During the year FY 2081/82, The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) and Accounting Standards
Board of Nepal (ASB Nepal) has pronounced that full
version of NFRS 9 containing Expected Credit Loss
(ECL) to be effective from 1 Shrawan, 2081 and financial
statements of Ashad end 2082 (including quarterly
financials thereon) incorporates ECL reporting. In
relation to the same, “NFRS 9 - Expected Credit Loss
Related Guidelines, 2024 was pronounced by the Nepal
Rastra Bank on Jestha 1st 2081, providing detailed
guidelines for the consistent and prudent application
of NFRS 9.

In same line NRB has asked BFIs to submit its
implementation progress on adopting ECL and has
issued NFRS 9- Expected Credit Loss Related Guidelines,
2024 dated 1st Jestha, 2081.

Initially, the updated standard of NFRS 9: Financial
Instruments (in line with NFRSs 2018) was pronounced
by Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) to
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be effective from 16th]July 2021. However, due to various
reasons including challenges posed by emergence of
COVID, limited time availability and lack of technical
expertise, full implementation of NFRS 9 was deferred
till Fy 2080/81, for banks and financial institutions.
Hence, the provisions of NFRS 9 that includes expected
credit loss, is fully effective in the bank from FY 2081/82.

The Bank recognizes a loss allowance for expected
credit losses on a financial asset that are measured
at Amortized Cost (AC), a lease receivable, a contract
asset or a loan commitment and a financial guarantee
contract to which the impairment requirements apply.

The ECL approach results in the early recognition of
credit losses because it includes, not only losses that
have already been incurred, but also expected future
credit losses - it is a forward-looking model.

Any financial instrument classified and measured at
FVTPL is not covered under impairment requirements
of NFRS 9. The methods for the calculation of Expected
Credit Loss is classified into 3 broad approaches:

1. General approach

These approaches are applicable to financial assets
measured at amortized cost, financial assets measured
at FVOC!, Loan commitments (not at FVTPL), Financial
guarantee contracts (not at FVTPL).

Lifetime ECL is recognized for all financial assets where
the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition.

At the reporting date, if the credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Bank measures
the loss allowance for those financial assets at an
amount equal to 12- month ECL.

For loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts, the date that the entity becomes party to
the irrevocable commitments is considered to be the
date of initial recognition for the purpose of applying
the impairment requirements. The Bank recognizes in
profit or loss, as an impairment gain or loss, the amount
of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required
to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the
amount that is required to be recognized in accordance
with Standard.

Under the general approach, NFRS 9 recognizes a three-
stage approach to measure expected credit losses and
recognize interest income.
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Stage 1:

The financial instruments that have not had a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition are
classified in Stage 1. The Financial instruments at
stage 1 require, at initial recognition, a provision for
ECL associated with the probability of default events
occurring within the next 12 months (12-month ECL).
For those financial assets with a remaining maturity of
less than 12 months, a Probability of Default (PD) is used
that corresponds to the remaining maturity. Interest is
calculated on the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset before adjusting for ECL.

This stage includes the following:

i. Initially recognized financial instruments (other
than those purchased or originated credit impaired
financial assets)

ii. Financial instruments having no significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition.

iii. Financial assets for which contractual payments are
not overdue or are overdue for up to one month.

iv. Financial instruments having low credit risk at the
reporting date.

For this purpose, instruments with low credit risk

include:

o Allexposures on Nepal Government/Province/Local
Level or Nepal Rastra Bank

o Exposures  fully  guaranteed by
Government/Province/Local Level.

. Foreign Sovereign exposures having rating BBB-
and above from an external rating agency at the
reporting date.

« All exposures on BIS, IMF, EC, ECB and multilateral
development banks with risk weight of 0% as
defined in Capital Adequacy Framework 2015.

Nepal

The Bank determines at each reporting date whether the
financial instruments meet the requirement of low credit
risk. If the instrument does not meet the requirement of
low credit risk, the Bank determines whether the risk of
default on the financial instrument has been increased
significantly or not after initial recognition. If the risk has
been increased, the instruments are classified under
stage 2 and accordingly lifetime ECL is recognized.

Stage 2:

The financial instruments having significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition are classified
in Stage 2. A provision is required for the lifetime
ECL representing losses over the life of the financial
instrument (lifetime ECL). Interest income is continued
to be recognized on a gross basis.




This stage includes the following:

i. Financial instruments having significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition.

ii. Financial instruments having contractual payments
overdue for more than one month but not
exceeding three months.

iii. Loans classified as ‘Watchlist' as per NRB directive
on prudential provisioning.

iv. Loans without approved credit line or with credit
line revoked by bank

v. Loan that has been restructured/rescheduled but
not classified as non-performing loan as per existing
provisions of NRB directives. However, rescheduling
ofinstallment/EMIbased loansresultinginreduction
in number of installments due to prepayments or
change in number of installments due to change in
interest rates under floating interest rate are not
applicable.

vi. Claims on non-investment grade financial
instruments i.e. with a credit rating of BB+ or below.

Stage 3:

The credit impaired or defaulted financial instruments
are classified or moved to Stage 3. A provision is
required for the lifetime ECL representing the losses
over the life of the instrument (lifetime ECL) with the
probability of default (PD) a 100%. Interest income is
calculated on an actual receipt basis.

This stage includes the following:

Financial instruments having contractual payments
overdue for more than three months

The Bank considers that the borrower is unlikely to pay
its credit obligations to the bank in full, without realizing
securities (if held).

The indicators of unlikeness to pay include:

The Bank puts credit obligation on non-accrued status.
The Bank consents to distressed restructuring of credit
obligation resulting in reduction in financial obligation
due to material forgiveness, postponement of principal,
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The Bank has filed for the debtor's bankruptcy or
a similar order in respect of the borrower's credit
obligation.

The bank sells a part of the credit obligation at a material
credit-related economic loss.

The debtor has sought or has been placed in bankruptcy
or similar protection where this would avoid or delay
repayment of the credit obligation.

There is evidence that full repayment based on
contractual terms is unlikely without the bank's
realization of collateral regardless of whether the
exposure is current or past due by a few days.

Loan s classified non- performing as per NRB prudential
provisioning directive.

Credit impaired financial instruments with objective
evidence of impairment.

Definition of Credit Impaired Financial Instruments:
A financial instrument is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial instrument
have occurred. Evidence that a financial instrument
is credit-impaired include observable data about the
following events:

« Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower.

« Abreach of contract, such as a default or past due
event.

« The lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider.

« Itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganization.

« The disappearance of an active market for that
financial instrument because of financial difficulties;
or

. Thepurchase or origination of a financial instrument
at a deep discount that reflects the incurred credit

interest losses.
Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Nature 12 month expected creditloss | 12 month expected credit loss | 12 month expected credit loss
Risk No significant risk since initial Significant credit risk since Credit impaired (With objective
recognition initial recognition evidence of impairment)
Nature Performing Performing Non-performing
Effective interest on gross carry- | Effective interest on gross Interest on Actual Receipt
Interest Revenue | . . ‘
ing amount carrying amount Basis
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Credit impaired financial instruments also include
credit impaired defined by the Bank as per their risk
management practices.

Indicators of significant increase in credit risk (SICR):
Assessment of significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition is required for determining whether
the lifetime or the 12-month expected credit loss is to
be recognized. NRB's guidelines regarding Expected
credit Loss has given the following conditions which are
deemed as indicators of significant increase in credit
risk.

i. More than one month past due

ii. Absolute lifetime PD is 5% or more

iii. Relative lifetime PD is increased by 100% or more

iv. Risk rating (internal or external) downgraded by 2
notches since initial recognition

v. Risk rating downgraded to non-investment grade
by external credit rating agency (BB+ or below) or
by bank's internal credit rating system

vi. Deterioration of relevant determinants of credit risk
(e.g. future cash flows) for an individual obligor (or
pool of obligors)

vil. Expectation of forbearance or restructuring due to
financial difficulties

viii. Deterioration of prospects for sector or industries
within which a borrower operates

ix. Borrowers affected by macroeconomic conditions
based on reasonable and supportable forecasts.

x. Modification of terms resulting in
restructuring/rescheduling

xi. Credit Quality Indicators determined as per internal
credit assessment of performing loans which are
subject to individual monitoring and review, are
weaker than that in the initial recognition

xii. Management decision to strengthen collateral
and/or covenant requirements for credit exposures
because of changes in the credit risk of those
exposures since initial recognition.

xiii. Both qualitative and quantitative factors are
encouraged to be considered while assessing
whether there have been significant increases in
credit risk. Accurate identification of drivers of credit
risk and reliable demonstration of linkage between
those drivers and level of credit risk is also critical.

2. Simplified approach applicable to certain trade
receivables, contract assets and lease receivables
Under simplified approach, the entity measures loss
allowance at an amount equal to the Lifetime ECL
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» Mandatorily for the trade receivables or contract
assets which do not contain the significant financing
component.

o For the trade receivables, lease receivables and
other contract asset which contain a significant
financing component has been applied optionally.

3. Specific approach for purchased or originated
Credit-impaired Financial Asset

These approaches are applicable to loan and advances
swapped, purchased or exchanged by the banks and
has high credit risk.

The Bank is required to include the initial expected
credit losses in the estimated cash flows when
calculating the credit-adjusted effective interest rate for
financial assets that are considered to be purchased or
originated credit-impaired at initial recognition. Hence,
only the cumulative changes in lifetime expected credit
losses since initial recognition is recognized as a loss
allowance for purchased or originated credit-impaired
financial assets.

Portfolio segmentation:

Guidelines under NFRS 9 on the collective assessment

of ECL,

« As per NFRS 9, depending on the nature of
the financial instruments and the credit risk
information available for particular groups of
financial instruments, the Bank may not be able
to identify significant changes in credit risk for
individual financial instruments before the financial
instrument becomes past due.

. For the purpose of determining significant
increases in credit risk and recognizing a loss
allowance on a collective basis, the Bank groups
financial instruments based on shared credit risk
characteristics with the objective of facilitating
an analysis that is designed to enable significant
increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely
basis.

The following factors are considered for Portfolio

Segmentation while calculating ECL:

. Theindividual or collective assessment approaches
is used depending on the ability to incorporate
forward-looking information into the ECL estimate.

« Collective assessments is generally used for a large
group of similar lending exposures, while individual
assessments is considered for significant exposures
or specific credit concerns.




o Grouping exposures having similar risks helps
estimate the impact of future factors like economic
changes on ECL, when individual assessments
cannot consider forward looking information. If
the forward-looking information has already been
considered in individual assessments, additional
assessment on a collective basis is be avoided, if it
results in double-counting.

« Grouping exposures in such a way that an increase
in the credit risk of particular exposures is masked
by the performance of the group as a whole is
avoided.

Individual Impairment

FundedorNon-funded Exposureswith customershaving
significant value equals or exceeding Rs. 1,000 million,
externally rated exposures and borrowers classified
as non-performing as per Nepal Rastra Bank's Unified
Directives are assessed for individual impairment test.
The recoverable value of loan is estimated based on
expected cash flows and/or realizable value of collateral
and the conduct of the borrower/past experience of the
bank.

Collective Impairment

Assets for which no individual impairment exist are
grouped with financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assessed for impairment.
The credit risk statistics for each group of the loan and
advances are determined by management prudently
based on past experience.

Curing Period and Transfer Criteria Between
Stages:

Financial assets are transferred between the different
categories (other than POCI) depending on their relative
change in credit risk since initial recognition. Financial
instruments are transferred out of stage 2 if their credit
riskis no longer considered to be significantly increased
since initial recognition based on the assessments and
also as per the Policy on Upgrading of Credit Facilities.
Financial instruments are transferred out of Stage
3 when they no longer exhibit any evidence of credit
impairment as described above as per the Policy on
Upgrading of Credit Facilities.

The Bank has developed a comprehensive Policy on
Upgrading of Credit Facilities in line with the NFRS
9- Expected Credit Loss Related Guidelines, 2024.
Accordingly, credit facilities other than restructured and
rescheduled facilities are upgraded to a better stage.
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Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1:

Where there is evidence of significant reduction in credit
risk, the Bank upgrades such exposure from Stage 2 to
Stage 1.

Transfer Out of Stage 3:

Though the conditions for an exposure to be classified
in Stage 3 no longer exist, the Bank continues to monitor
for a minimum probationary period of three months to
upgrade from Stage 3.

For Restructured/Rescheduled Exposures:

The Bank monitors restructured/ rescheduled
exposures classified under Stage 3 for a minimum
probationary period of 24 months before up-gradation.
Upgrading of stages for exposures is executed by the
Credit Risk Management department.

Provisioning for other financial assets at
amortized cost

In addition to the ECL for loans and investments as
prescribed above, the Bank also holds other financial
assets such as balances with bank, working advances
and other financial assets. The Bank recognizes ECL
on such assets based on the historical loss experience
measures (e.g. write off rates / provisioning rates)
adjusted for expected losses in the future keeping in
mind the nature of industry (e.g. regulated industry like
banking) and credit ratings of such counterparties.

ECL Calculation:

The Bank measures ECL in a way that reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount determined
by evaluating a range of possible outcomes and the
reasonable and supportable information available
without undue cost or effort at the reporting date, about
past events, current conditions and forecast of future
economic conditions. While estimating the ECLs, the
Bank considers three probability-weighted scenarios (a
base case, a best case and a worse case).

The calculation of ECL consists of three key components
and discount factor:

«  Probability of Default (PD)

o Loss Given Default (LGD)

. Exposure at Default (EAD)

ECL= PD*LGD*EAD*Discount Factor
Probability of Default (PD)

PD is an estimate of the likelihood of a default over a
given time horizon. NFRS 9 requires separate PD for
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12-month duration and lifetime duration depending on
the stage allocation of the borrower.

For assets which are in Stage 1, a 12-month PD is
required. For Stage 2 and Stage 3 assets, a lifetime PD
is required, for which a PD term structure needs to be
built.

PD describes the probability of a loan to eventually falling
in default (>90 days past due) category. To calculate
the PD, loans are classified in three stages based on
risk profile of the individual loans. PD percentage is
calculated for each loan account separately and is
determined by using available historical observations.
PD for stage 1: is derived as percentage of all loans in
stage 1 moving into stage 3 in 12 months' time. PD for
stage 2: is derived as percentage of all loans in stage
2 moving into stage 3 in the maximum lifetime of the
loans under observation. PD for stage 3: is derived as
100% considering that the default occurs as soon as
the loan becomes overdue for three months which
matches the definition of stage 3.

As per NRB Guidelines, PD is an estimate of the
likelihood of a default over a given time horizon. With
regards to PD estimation, the following measures are
considered by the Bank.

i. Derived PD based on historical default migration
rates and/other data, internal and external credit
rating etc.

ii. Incorporated forward-looking PD information as
well by adjusting PD to its sensitivity to changes in
certain macroeconomic factors.

iii. Used at least five-year historical data, where
available, for calculating PDs and validate any
smoothing of data or inputs by the Credit Risk
Management Department.

Irrespective of results derived by the model of the Bank,

prudential floor of 2.5% as prescribed by the NRB is

used.

Loss Given Default (LGD)

LGD is the percentage of exposure that is not expected
to be recovered in the event of a default. The LGD is
usually defined as the amount of credit that is lost by a
financial institution when an obligor defaults.

LGD models are developed based on historical data,
historical experience of cash recovery from defaults
(including settlements), cost and time of recoveries
and all other relevant and supportable information
(including forward looking information).

While determining loss rate or recovery rate for the
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purpose of calculation of loss allowance, expected cash
flows from collateral realization are to be considered
based on latest reliable internal/external valuations.
Bank deploys its internal team or forms a committee to
review the value of collateral as required.

Exposure at Default (EAD)

Exposure at Default (EAD) refers to the expected
exposure to a borrower at the event of default.

This is dynamic in nature and keeps changing when
the borrower repays his debt or obligation or take
additional debt.

For defaulted accounts or stage 3 accounts, EAD is
simply the amount outstanding at the point of default.
However, for stage 1 and stage 2 accounts, the following
elements is considered for computation of EAD under
NFRS 9 at the instrument or facility level:

« Timehorizon over which EAD needs to be estimated.
« Projected cash flows till the estimated default point.
o Residual maturity.

o Deterministic or non-deterministic nature of the

payment terms.

The methodology of EAD varies according to the nature
of the product. The products are separated into three
main categories.

« Funded Loans

In the case of the funded loans made available at the
predetermined moment or where the total amount is
loaned at the initial recognition, the exposure at default
is the total amount outstanding at that time plus any
interest up to the time of default, except for stage 3
where the EAD equals the total amount outstanding.

« Working capital facilities

In case of those loan products of short-term nature

like working capital, overdraft or the credit cards, the

exposure at default is calculated as the higher of limit

or the sum of total outstanding and interest, except for

stage 3 loans where the EAD equals to the higher of

Limit or total amount outstanding.

+ Potential balance sheet
exposures)

For potential exposures like: - Letter of Credit and

Guarantees, the EAD is calculated as the product of

potential exposures and CCF. CCF for such exposures

ranges from 0% to 100%.

If data is not available for off balance sheet exposures,

the Bank uses CCF for the calculation of EAD for off

Exposures (Off-




balance sheet exposures as prescribed in “NFRS 9-
Expected Credit Loss Related Guidelines, 2024."

Consideration of Reasonable and Supportable
Information

The bank uses experienced credit judgment in
determining whether the information used for the
assessment of credit risk and measurement of ECL
is, reasonable and supportable. The information
considered includes the information about past events,
present conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

Consideration of Forward-looking Information
The Bank incorporates forward-looking information
into both its assessment as to whether the credit risk of
an instrument has increased significantly since its initial
recognition and its measurement of ECL.

The Bank also obtained experienced credit judgement
from economic outlook and Risk Management
Departments to formulate a base case, a best case
and a worst-case scenario. The base case represents
a most-likely outcome and is aligned with information
used by the Bank for strategic planning and budgeting.
Quantitative economic factors are based on economic
data and forecasts published by the NSO, NRB, and
other reliable sources and statistical models. The Bank
also obtained experienced credit judgement from
economic outlook and Risk Management Departments
to formulate a base case, a best case and a worst-
case scenario. The base case represents a most-likely
outcome and is aligned with information used by the
Bank for strategic planning and budgeting. Quantitative
economic factors are based on economic data and
forecasts published by the NSO, NRB, and other reliable
sources and statistical models.

Drivers of Credit Risk
Real GDP (% change p.a.) National Statistics Office (NSO)
Inflation rate (% of change p.a.) | NRB

IMF / World Bank

Interest Rate (% of change p.a.) | NRB

NEPSE Index NEPSE

Unemployment (%)

Consideration of Time Value of Money

The lifetime Expected Credit Loss (LTECL) is discounted
to the reporting date, not to the expected default or
some other date, using the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition or approximation
thereof, that will be applied when recognizing the
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financial assets resulting from the loan commitment.
Currently Coupon Interest rate is used as effective
interest rate.

Collateral valuation

The Bank seeks to use collateral, where possible, to
mitigate its risks on financial assets. The collateral
comes in various forms such as cash, gold, Government
Securities, Letters of Credit/Guarantees, real estate,
receivables, inventories, other non-financial assets and
credit enhancements such as netting agreements, etc.
While determining loss rate or recovery rate for the
purpose of calculation of loss allowance, expected cash
flows from collateral realization have been considered
based on latest reliable internal/external valuations.

F. Write-off of Loans and Advances

Loans (and the related impairment allowance accounts)
are normally written off, either partially or in full, when
thereisnorealistic prospect of recovery. Whereloans are
secured, this is generally after receipt of any proceeds
from the realization of security. In circumstances where
the net realizable value of any collateral has been
determined and there is no reasonable expectation of
further recovery, write-off may be earlier.

G. Offsetting of Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset
and the net amount is reported in the Statement of
Financial(SOFP) when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously (‘the offset criteria’).

H. Derivative Assets and derivative liabilities

Derivatives are financial instruments that derive their
value from the price of underlying items such as equities,
bonds, interest rates, foreign exchange, credit spreads,
commodities and equity or other indices. Derivatives are
initially recognized, and are subsequently remeasured,
at fair value. Fair values of derivatives are obtained
either from quoted market prices or by using valuation
techniques.

Embedded derivatives are bifurcated from the host
contract when their economic characteristics and
risks are not clearly and closely related to those of the
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host non-derivative contract, their contractual terms
would otherwise meet the definition of a stand-alone
derivative and the combined contract is not held for
trading or designated at fair value. The bifurcated
embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes therein recognized in the income statement.

|. Defaults and Breaches

For loans payable recognized at the end of the reporting

period, the bank discloses:

a. details of any defaults during the period of principal,
interest, sinking fund, or redemption terms of those
loans payable;

b. the carrying amount of the loans payable in default
at the end of the reporting period; and

c. whether the default was remedied, or the terms of
the loans payable were renegotiated, before the
financial statements were authorized for issue.

J. Transfer of Financial Assets

To the extent that a transfer of a financial asset does not
qualify for derecognition, the transferor's contractual
rights or obligations related to the transfer are not
accounted for separately as derivatives if recognizing
both the derivative and either the transferred asset
or the liability arising from the transfer would result in
recognizing the same rights or obligations twice.

To the extent that a transfer of a financial asset does
not qualify for derecognition, the transferee does
not recognize the transferred asset as its asset. The
transferee derecognizes the cash or other consideration
paid and recognizes a receivable from the transferor.
If the transferor has both a right and an obligation to
reacquire control of the entire transferred asset for a
fixed amount (such as under a repurchase agreement),
the transferee measures its receivable at amortized
cost.

K. Revenue recognition

Interest Income

Pursuant to adoption of ECL model, recognition of
interest income has been based upon Guidance Note
on Interest Income Recognition, 2025 issued by NRB.

For Stage 1 and Stage 2 Loans and Advances:
Interest on gross recognition following the accrual basis
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For Stage 3 Loans and Advances: Interest on actual
cash receipt basis.

NFRS Requirement

NFRS requires interest income to be recognized using
the Effective Interest method, except for those classified
at fair value through profit or loss. The effective interest
method is a method of calculating the amortized cost
of a financial asset and of allocating the interest income
over the expected life of the financial instrument.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash payments
or receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period,
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or
financial liability. The effective interest rate is calculated
on initial recognition of the financial asset or liability by
estimating the future cash flows after considering all
the contractual terms of the instrument but not future
credit losses. The calculation includes all amounts
expected to be paid or received by the Bank including
expected early redemption fees and related penalties
and premiums and discounts that are an integral part
of the overall return. Once financial asset or a group
of similar financial assets has been written down as
a result of an impairment loss, interest income is
recognized using the rate of interest used to discount
the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss.

2.11 Discounting

Discounting has been done, using the relevant discount
rate, for computing the present value of a payment
or stream of payments that is to be received in future
in case required under NFRS for any valuations,
adjustments. Market interest rate, EIR are used for
discounting the future payments as required under
the provision. It has been applied in the cases where
discounting is significant financing component.

2.12 Prior Period Errors

Prior Period Errors are omissions or misstatements in
an entity’s financial statements. Such omissions may
relate to one or more prior periods. Correction of an
error is done by calculating the cumulative effect of
the change on the financial statements of the period
as if new method or estimate had always been used
for all the affected prior years' financial statements.




Sometimes such changes may not be practicable, in
such cases, it is applied to the latest period possible
by making corresponding adjustment to the opening
balance of the period.

2.13 Materiality and Aggregation

In compliance with NFRS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements, each material class of similar items is
presented separately in financial statements. ltems of
dissimilar nature are presented separately unless they
are material.

2.14 Offsetting

Assets and liabilities, income and expense are reported
separately and no assets and liabilities, or income and
expense are offset unless required or permitted by
NFRS.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount presented in the statement of financial position
when, and only when, the Group has a legal right to set
off the amounts and it intends either settle them on a
net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. Income and expenses are presented
on a net basis only when permitted under NFRS, or
for gains and losses arising from a group of similar
transactions such as in the Group's trading activity.

2.15 Rounding

The statements have been rounded off to nearest
Rupees in relevant assertions.

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies set out below have
been applied consistently to all periods presented in
these Financial Statements, unless otherwise stated.
The preparation of financial statements requires the
use of certain accounting estimates. The areas where
significant judgments and estimates have been made
in preparing the financial statements and their effects
have been disclosed.

3.1 Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on
historical cost basis except for the following material
items in the statement of financial position:
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. Financial instruments at fair value through profit or
loss or through OCl are measured at fair value.

. Financial instruments subsequently measured at
amortized cost.

- Liability for defined benefit obligations is recognized
as the present value of the defined benefit
obligation less the net total of the plan assets, plus
unrecognized actuarial gains, less unrecognized
past service cost and unrecognized actuarial losses.

« The Bank recognizes a right-of-use asset and a
lease liability as per NFRS 16.

3.2 Basis of Consolidation

3.2.1 Business Combinations and Goodwiill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method as per the requirements of NFRS 3
(Business Combinations). The Bank measures goodwill
as the fair value of the consideration transferred
including the recognized amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquire, less the net recognized
amount (generally fair value) of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed, all measured as of the
acquisition date. When the excess is negative, a bargain
purchase gain is immediately recognized in the profit
or loss.

The Bank elects on a transaction-by-transaction basis
whether to measure non-controlling interest at its fair
value, or at its proportionate share of the recognized
amount of the identifiable net assets, at the acquisition
date. The consideration transferred does not include
amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing
relationships. Such amounts are generally recognized
in profit or loss. Transaction costs, other than those
associated with the issue of debt or equity securities,
that the Bank incurs in connection with a business
combination are expensed as incurred.

Any contingent consideration payable is measured
at fair value at the acquisition date. If the contingent
consideration is classified as equity, then it is not re-
measured, and settlement is accounted for within
equity. Otherwise, subsequent changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration are recognized in profit
or loss except for measurement period adjustment.
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3.2.2 Non-Controlling Interest (NCI)

Bank elects to measure any non-controlling interests
for each business combination in the acquire at their
proportionate share of the acquirer’s identifiable net
assets (partial goodwill method).

Changes in the Bank's interest in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
transactions with owners in their capacity as owners.
Adjustments to non-controlling interests are based
on a proportionate amount of the net assets of the
subsidiary. No adjustments are made to goodwill, and
no gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss.

3.2.3 Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are the entities controlled by the Bank. The
Bank controls an entity if it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee. The Financial Statements of
subsidiaries are included in the Consolidated Financial
Statements from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases.

The Bank reassesses whether it has control if there are
changes to one or more of the elements of control.
The Financial Statements have been prepared using
uniform accounting policies for like transactions and
other events in similar circumstances as stated on Para
19 of the NFRS 10.

3.2.4 Loss of Control

When the Bank loses control over a Subsidiary, it
derecognizes the assets and liabilities of the former
subsidiary at its carrying value when control is lost
and subsequently accounts for it and for any amounts
owed by or to the former subsidiary in accordance with
relevant NFRS. That fair value shall be regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset in
accordance with relevant NFRS or, when appropriate,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or joint venture. The Bank recognizes the gain
or loss associated with the loss of control attributable
to the former controlling interest.

3.2.5 Special Purpose Entity (SPE)

Special purpose entity is a legal entity (usually limited
company of some type or, sometimes, a limited
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partnership) created to fulfil narrow, specific or
temporary objectives. SPEs are typically used by
companies to isolate the firm from financial risk. The
Bank does not have any special purpose entity as of
now.

3.2.6 Transaction Elimination on Consolidation

All intra-group balances and transaction, and any
unrealized income and expense (except for foreign
currency transaction gains or losses) arising from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealized losses are
eliminated in the same way as unrealized gains, but only
to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

3.3 Cash and Cash Equivalent

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, balance
with BFIs, money at call & short notice and highly liquid
financial assets with original maturities of three months
or less from the acquisition date that are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in their fair value and are
used by the Bank in the management of its short-term
commitments.

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortized cost
in the statement of financial position.

3.4 Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank includes statutory
balances held with Nepal Rastra Bank for compulsory
cash reserve, securities purchased from Nepal Rastra
Bank under resale agreement and other deposits with
and receivables from Nepal Rastra Bank. Balances
with central banks are carried at amortized cost in the
Statement of Financial Position.

3.5 Placement with Bank and Financial
Institution

Placementswith banks and financial Institutions includes
placement with other banks with original maturities of
more than three months from the acquisition date.
Placements with banks are initially measured at fair
value. After initial measurement, they are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the Effective Interest
Rate (EIR), less allowance for impairment. Interest
income from placements with banks is included in
“Interest income” in the Statement of Profit or Loss.




3.6 Trading Asset and liabilities

Trading assets and liabilities are those assets and
liabilities that the Bank acquires or incurs principally
for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near
term, or holds as a part of a portfolio that is managed
together for short term profit or position taking.
Trading assets and liabilities are initially recognized at
fair value and subsequently measured at fair value in
the statement of financial position, with transaction
costs recognized in profit or loss. All changes in fair
value are recognized as part of net trading income in
profit or loss as regarded as fair value through profit &
loss account.

3.7 Derivative financial Instruments

Derivatives are financial instruments that derive their
value in response to changes in interest rates, financial
instrument prices, commodity prices, foreign exchange
rates, credit risk, indices etc. Derivatives are categorized
as trading unless they are designated as hedging
instruments. All derivatives are initially recognized and
subsequently measured at fair value, with all revaluation
gains or losses recognized in the Statement of Profit or
Loss under Operating Income. Derivatives are recorded
at fair value and carried as assets when their fair value is
positive and as liabilities when their fair value is negative.
Fair value is determined using the closing rates ruling
on the reporting date.

3.8 Property, Plant and Equipment

Recognition

Property, plant and equipment are tangible items that
are held for use in the production or supply of services,
for rental to others or for administrative purposes and
are expected to be used during more than one period.
The Bank applies the requirements of the NAS 16
Property, Plant and Equipment in accounting for these
assets. Property, plant and equipment are recognized if
it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the asset will flow to the entity and the cost of the
asset can be measured reliably.

Measurement

An item of property, plant and equipment that qualifies
for recognition as an asset is initially measured at its
cost. Cost includes purchase price including any non-
refundable taxes after deducting volume rebates and
trade discounts and such other costs that are incurred
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to bring asset to location and condition to be operating
in a manner intended by management.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the asset and cost incurred
subsequently to add to, replace part of an item of
property, plant&equipment. The cost of self-constructed
assets includes the cost of materials and direct labor,
any other costs directly attributable to bringing the
asset to a working condition for its intended use and
the costs of dismantling and removing the items and
restoring the site on which they are located.

Purchased software that is integral to the functionality
of the related equipment is capitalized as part of
computer equipment. When parts of an item of property
or equipment have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of
property, plant and equipment.

Cost Model

Property, plantand equipment s stated at cost excluding
the costs of day-to-day servicing, less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment loss. Such
costincludes the cost of replacing part of the equipment
when that cost is incurred, if the recognition criteria are
met. Bank has adopted cost model for entire class of
property and equipment. The items of property and
equipment are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment loss.

Revaluation Model

On revaluation of an asset, any increase in the carrying
amount is recognized in ‘Other comprehensive income’
and accumulated in equity, under revaluation reserve
or used to reverse a previous revaluation decrease
relating to the same asset, which was charged to the
Statement of Profit or Loss. In this circumstance, the
increase is recognized as income to the extent of
previous write down.

Any decrease in the carrying amount is recognized as
an expense in the Statement of Profit or Loss or debited
to the Other Comprehensive Income to the extent of
any credit balance existing in the revaluation reserve
in respect of that asset. The decrease recognized in
other comprehensive income reduces the amount
accumulated in equity under revaluation reserves. Any
balance remaining in the revaluation reserve in respect
of an asset is transferred directly to retained earnings
on retirement or disposal of the asset.

The Bank has not applied the revaluation model to the
class of freehold land and buildings or other assets.

Annual Report 2024/25

Ro%




Qw3 arffes UfdigeT Q0Ta/TR

Subsequent Cost

The subsequent cost of replacing a component of an
item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in
the carrying amount of the item, if it is probable that
the future economic benefits embodied within that part
will flow to the Bank and it can be reliably measured.
The cost of day-to-day servicing of property, plant and
equipment are charged to the Statement of Profit or
Loss as incurred.

Derecognition

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant
and equipment is derecognized on disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its
use. The gain or loss arising from de-recognition of
an item of property, plant and equipment is included
in the Statement of Profit or Loss when the item is
derecognized. When replacement costs are recognized
in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant
and equipment, the remaining carrying amount of
the replaced part is derecognized. Major inspection
costs are capitalized. At each such capitalization, the
remaining carrying amount of the previous cost of
inspections is derecognized.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated by using the straight line
method (SLM) on cost or carrying value of property,
plant & equipment other than freehold land. Land is not
depreciated as it has indefinite useful life. Management
has determined the expected life of the fixed assets for
depreciation purpose as follows:

S.N. Assets Types Expected useful life

(Years)
1 Building 50
2 Vehicle 7
3 Furniture Wooden 8
4 Furniture Metal 10
5 Office Equipment 10
6 Computers 5
7 Generators and Others 10
8 ATM 7
9 Battery 3

The depreciation on the assets purchased and
capitalized during the current period has been
accounted from the date of booking. In case of assets
being sold and written off, the depreciation is charged
up to the previous month of disposal and gain or loss
on the sales transaction is accounted for.

2o¥%

www.machbank.com

a. Depreciation for income tax purpose is calculated
separately at the rate and manner prescribed by
the Income Tax Act, 2058.

b. Assets with a unit value of NPR 10,000 or less
are expensed-off during the year of purchase
irrespective of its useful life. However, in case of
opening of new branches, expansion, relocation
and reconstruction of offices for same nature of
assets if total purchase price is greater than 50,000
such type of assets are capitalized even though the
assets unit price is less than NPR 10,000.

c. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the
lease period or 10 years whichever is lower.

Changes in Estimates

The asset’s residual values, useful lives and methods of
depreciation are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at each financial year end.

Capital Work in Progress

These are expenses of capital nature directly incurred in
the construction of buildings, major plantand machinery
and system development, awaiting capitalization.
Capital work-in-progress would be transferred to the
relevant asset when it is available for use, i.e. when
it is in the location and condition necessary for it to
be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses.

3.9 Intangible Assets and Goodwill

Recognition

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary
asset without physical substance, held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, for rental
to others or for administrative purposes. An intangible
asset is recognized if it is probable that the future
economic benefits that are attributable to the asset
will flow to the entity and the cost of the asset can
be measured reliably. An intangible asset is initially
measured at cost. Expenditure incurred on an intangible
item that was initially recognized as an expense by the
Bankin previous annual Financial Statements or interim
Financial Statements are not recognized as part of the
cost of an intangible asset at a later date.

Computer Software

Cost of purchased licenses and all computer software
costs incurred, licensed for use by the Bank, which are
not integrally related to associated hardware, which can
be clearly identified, reliably measured, and it's probable




that they will lead to future economic benefits, are
included in the Statement of Financial Position under
the category ‘Intangible assets’ and carried at cost
less accumulated amortization and any accumulated
impairment losses.

Goodwill
Goodwill, if any that arises upon the acquisition of
Subsidiaries is included in intangible assets.

Subsequent Expenditure

Expenditure incurred on software is capitalized only
when it is probable that this expenditure will enable the
asset to generate future economic benefits in excess
of its originally assessed standard of performance and
this expenditure can be measured and attributed to
the asset reliably. All other expenditure is expensed as
incurred. Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated
impairment losses.

Amortization of Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets, except for goodwill, are amortized on
a straight-line basis in the Statement of Profit or Loss
from the date when the asset is available for use, over
the best of its useful economic life based on a patternin
which the asset's economic benefits are consumed by
the bank. Amortization methods, useful lives, residual
values are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted if appropriate. The Bank assumes that there is
no residual value for its intangible assets.

Software, licenses are amortized over a period of useful
life and in case of useful life cannot be ascertained the
bank has the policy to amortize the cost in five years.

Derecognition of Intangible Assets

The carrying amount of an item of intangible asset is
derecognized on disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use. The gain or loss
arising on de-recognition of an item of intangible assets
is included in the Statement of Profit or Loss when the
item is derecognized.

3.10 Government Grant

Government grant is recognized in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the entity
recognizes as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Income approach
is followed in recording grant income.
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Government grants related to the assets including
non-monetary grants at fair value is presented in the
statement of financial position by setting up Deferred
Grant Income.

Grants related to income are presented as part of profit
or loss under other income.

3.11 Investment Property / Non-Current
Asset held for sale

Investment propertiesinclude land or land and buildings
other than those classified as property and equipment
and non-current assets held for sale. They are either
held for rental income or for capital appreciation or for
both, but not for sale in ordinary course of business and
owner occupied property. Generally, it includes land,
land and building acquired by the Bank as non-banking
assets but not sold as on the reporting date. They have
been valued cost or fair value whichever is lower.

The Bank holds investment property that has been
acquired through enforcement of security over the
loans and advances. Accordingly, Investment properties
include the assets obtained as security for loans &
advances and subsequently taken over by the Bank in
the course of loan recovery.

Non-Current Assets Held for Sale

Non-current assets (such as property) and disposal

groups (including both the assets and liabilities of the

disposal groups) are classified as held for sale and

measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair

valueless costtoselliftheir carryingamountis recovered

principally through sale rather than continuing use.

They are recognized and measured when:

i.  Their carrying amounts will be recovered principally
through sale;

ii. They are available-for-sale in
condition; and

iii. Their sale is highly probable.

their present

Any impairment loss on initial classification and
subsequent measurement is recognized as expense.
Also, any increase in fair value less cost to sell (not
exceeding the accumulated impairment loss that has
been previously recognized) is recognized in profit
or loss. Immediately before the initial classification as
held for sale, the carrying amounts of the assets (or
assets and liabilities in a disposal group) are measured
in accordance with the applicable accounting policies
described above.
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3.12 Due to Banks and Financial Institution

Due to banks and financial institution represents credit
balances in Nostro Accounts, short-term borrowings
from banks, deposit accepted from “D”" class financial
Institutions. These are initially recognized at fair value.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these are measured
at their amortized cost.

3.13 Deposit from Customers

The Bank accepts deposits from its customers under
savings account, current account, term deposits
and margin accounts which allows money to be
deposited and withdrawn by the account holder. These
transactions are recorded on the bank's books, and the
resulting balance is recorded as a liability for the Bank
and represents the amount owed by the Bank to the
customer. They have been valued at amortized cost.

As per NFRS 9 regarding Financial Instruments
recognition and measurement, EIR rate is to be used
for booking such interest expense and when calculating
the EIR, an entity shall estimate cash flows considering
all contractual term of the financial instrument but not
credit loss, which includes the fees and points received
or paid, transaction costs, premiums, discounts.

3.14 Debt Securities issued

It includes debentures, bonds or other debt securities
issued by the Bank. Debt securities issued, and
subordinated liabilities are initially measured at fair
value minus incremental direct transaction costs,
and subsequently measured at their amortized cost
using the effective interest method, except where the
Group designates liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss. However, debentures issued by the bank are
subordinate to the deposits from customer.

3.15 Subordinated Liabilities

Subordinated liabilities are those liabilities which at the
event of winding up are subordinate to the claims of
depositors, debt securities issued and other creditors.
The bank does not have any of such subordinated
liabilities.

3.16 Provisions

The Bank recognizes a provision if, as a result of past
event, the Bank has a present constructive or legal
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obligation that can be reliably measured and it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefit will be
required to settle the obligation.

A disclosure for contingent liability is made when
there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
as a result of past event that may but probably will
not require an outflow of resources. When there is a
possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of
which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote,
no provision or disclosure is made.

A provision for onerous contract is recognized when
the expected benefits to be derived by the Bank from a
contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting
its obligation under the contract.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no
longer probable that an outflow of resources would
be required to settle the obligation, the provision is
reversed. Contingent assets are not recognized in the
financial statements if it is not probable that the amount
will be received. If it is probable then disclosure is given
for the contingent asset. However, contingent assets
are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that
an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and
related income are recognized in the period in which
the change occurs.

3.17 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations whose
existence will be confirmed only by uncertain future
events or present obligations where the transfer
of economic benefit is not probable or cannot be
readily measured as defined under NAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets. In the
normal course of business, the Bank undertakes
commitments and incurs contingent liabilities with legal
recourse to its customers to accommodate the financial
and investment needs of clients, to conduct trading
activities and to manage its own exposure to risk. These
consist of financial guarantees, letters of credit and
other undrawn commitments to lend.

Letters of credit and guarantees (including standby
letters of credit) commit the Bank to make payments
on behalf of customers in the event of a specific act,
generally related to the import or export of goods.
Guarantees and standby letters of credit carry a similar
credit risk to loans. Operating lease commitments of
the Bank (as a lessor and as a lessee) and pending legal




claims against the Bank also form part of commitments
of the Bank. Contingent liabilities are not recognized in
the Statement of Financial Position but are disclosed
unless they are remote. These financial instruments
generate interest or fees and carries elements of credit
risk in excess of those amounts recognized as assets
and liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position.
However, no material losses are anticipated as a result
of these transactions.

3.18 Litigation

Litigations are anticipated in the context of business
operations due to the nature of the transactions
involved. The Bank is involved in various such legal
actions and the controls have been established to deal
with such legal claims. There are pending litigations
existing as at the end of the reporting period against the
Bank, resulting through normal business operations.
Litigations against the Bank have been assessed in
terms of the probability of any claims or damages arising
against the Bank, which require provisions to be made
in the Financial Statements as per NAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

3.19 Borrowing Cost

Borrowing cost directly attributable to acquisition or
construction of asset necessarily takes substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale
are capitalized as part of cost of the asset. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they occur. It includes interest and other costs that
entity incurs in connection with borrowing of funds.

3.20 Income Tax

As per Nepal Accounting Standard- NAS 12 Income
Taxes tax expense is the aggregate amount included in
determination of profit or loss for the period in respect
of current and deferred taxation. Income tax expense
is recognized in the statement of Profit or Loss, except
to the extent it relates to items recognized directly in
equity or other comprehensive income in which case
it is recognized in equity or in other comprehensive
income.

3.20.1 Current Tax

Current tax assets and liabilities consist of amounts
expectedtoberecovered fromor paidto Inland Revenue
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Department in respect of the current year, using the tax
rates and tax laws enacted or substantively enacted on
the reporting date and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of prior years.

3.20.2 Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at
the reporting date between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes. Deferred tax liabilities are
recognized for all taxable temporary differences except:

o Wherethe deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination,
and at the time of transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

o In respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible
temporary differences, carried forward unused tax
credits and unused tax losses (if any), to the extent that
it is probable that the taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences,
carried forward unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilized except:

o Where the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arising from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination,
and at the time of transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

« In respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in Subsidiaries,
deferredtax assets are recognized only to the extent
that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
difference will be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed

at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it

is probable that sufficient profit will be available to allow
the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized
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deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting
date and are recognized to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profit will allow
the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date. Current
and deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only to
the extent that they relate to income taxes imposed by
the same taxation authority.

3.21 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits during
the period arising from the course of the ordinary
activities of an entity when those inflows result in
increases in equity, other than increases relating to
contributions from equity participants. Revenue is
recognized to the extent that it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to Bank and the revenue can
be reliably measured. The following specific recognition
criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized.

3.21.1 Interest Income

Interest income includes interest income on the basis
of accrual basis from loan and advance to borrowers,
loans, and investment in government securities,
investment in NRB bond, corporate bonds, and interest
on investment securities measured at fair value.

3.21.2 Fee and Commission Income

Fees and Commission Income being the transaction
costs integral to the effective interest rate on financial
asset. They have been booked on accrual basis except
commission on guarantees issued by the bank which is
recognized as income over the period of the guarantee,
except for guarantee commission not exceeding NPR
one lakhs is recognized at the time of issue. Other fee
and commission income are recognized on accrual
basis.

3.21.3 Dividend Income

Dividend income are recognized when right to receive
such dividend is established. Usually this is the ex-
dividend date for equity securities. Dividends are
presented in net trading income, net income from other
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financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
or other revenue based on the underlying classification
of the equity investment.

3.21.4 Net Trading Income

Net trading income comprises gains less losses related
to trading assets and liabilities, and includes all realized
and unrealized fair value changes, interest, dividends
and foreign exchange differences.

3.21.5 Net Income from other financial
instrument at fair value through Profit or Loss

Netincome from other financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss relates to non-trading derivatives
held for management purposes that do not form part of
qualifying hedge relationships and financial assets and
liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss.
Itincludes all realized and unrealized fair value changes,
interest, dividends and foreign exchange differences.

3.21.6 NFRS 15 Revenue from contract with
customers

NFRS 15isanew standard for revenue recognition which

overhauls the existing revenue recognition standards.

The standard requires the following five step model

framework to be followed for revenue recognition:

« ldentification of the contracts with the customer

- lIdentification of the performance obligations in the
contract

. Determination of the transaction price

o Allocation of the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract (as
identified in step i)

. Recognition of revenue when the entity satisfies a
performance obligation.

The management is assessing the potential impact on

its financial statements resulting from application of

NFRS 15.

NFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The

standard shall supersede existing NAS 18 Revenue and

NAS 11 Construction Contract.

3.22 Interest Expense

Interest expense on all financial liabilities including
deposits are recognized in profit or loss using effective
interest rate method. Interest expense on all trading
liabilities are considered to be incidental to the Bank's
trading operations and are presented together with




all other changes in fair value of trading assets and
liabilities in net trading income.

3.23 Impairment of non-financial Assets

Bank assess at each reporting date whether there is
an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
such indication exists, Bank estimates the recoverable
amount which is higher of Fair Value less cost to sell or
value in use. W here the carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount, asset is considered impaired and
is written down to recoverable amount.

3.24 Employment Benefits

I. Short term employee Benefits

Short term employee benefits are the benefits that are
expected to be settled wholly before 12 months and
therefore booked as expense in the period in which
employees render the related service. It includes the
following:

. Wages, salaries and social security contributions

« Paid annual and paid sick leave

. Profit sharing and bonuses

« Non-monetary benefits

Il. Post-employment benefit
Post-employment benefit includes the following

a) Defined Contribution Plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment
benefit plan under which the Bank makes fixed
contribution into a separate Bank account (a fund)
and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay
further contributions even if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating
to employee services in the current and prior periods
as defined in Nepal Accounting Standards NAS 19
Employee Benefits.

The contribution payable by the employer to a
defined contribution plan in proportion to the services
rendered to Bank by the employees and is recorded
as an expense under ‘Personnel Expense' as and when
they become due.

Bank contributed 10% of the salary of each employee
to the Employees’ Provident Fund. The above expenses
are identified as contributions to ‘Defined Contribution
Plans' as defined in NAS 19 Employee Benefits.
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b) Defined Benefit Plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment
benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.
Accordingly, leave encashment and gratuity has been
considered as defined benefit plans as per NAS 19
Employee Benefits. Net Obligation in DBP is calculated
separately for each plan by estimating the amount of
future benefit that employees have earned in return
for their service in the current and prior periods and
discounting that benefit to determine its present value
and then deducting the fair value of any plan assets.
Bank recognizes all actuarial gains and losses arising
from DBP in the Other Comprehensive Income and
expenses related to DBP under personnel expense in
the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Under NFRS, the actuarial gains and losses form part
of re measurement of the net defined benefit liability
/ asset which is recognized in Other Comprehensive
income (OCI). Also, the tax effect of the same has also
been recognized in Other Comprehensive Income
(OCl)under NFRS. Some assumptions used by actuarial
valuator for valuation are as under:

1. Discount Rate: It is based on Yield to Maturity
Available on Government Bonds having similar
term to decrement-adjusted estimated term of
liabilities.

2. Expected Return on Plan Asset: Average long
term rate of return expected on investments of
Trust Fund.

3. Salary Escalation Rate: Management estimation
of 5% after considering the expected earnings
inflation as well as performance and seniority
related increase.

4. Withdrawal rate: Management estimation on
the basis of 8% on the basis of expected long term
future employee turnover within the organization.

5. Mortality Rate: Nepali Assured Lives Mortality
issued by Beema Samiti.

(a) Gratuity

An actuarial valuation is carried out every year to
ascertain the full liability under gratuity. Bank's
obligation in respect of defined benefit obligation is
calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit
that employees have earned for their service in the
current and prior periods and discounting that benefit
to determine its present value, then deducting the fair
value of any plan assets to determine the net amount
to be shown in the Statement of Financial Position.
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The value of a defined benefit asset is restricted to the
present value of any economic benefits available in
the form of refunds from the plan or reduction on the
future contributions to the plan. In order to calculate
the present value of economic benefits, consideration
is given to any minimum funding requirement that
apply to any plan in Bank. An economic benefit is
available to Bank if it is realizable during the life of the
plan, or on settlement of the plan liabilities.

Bank determines the interest expense on the defined
benefit liability by applying the discount rate used to
measure the defined benefit liability at the beginning
of the annual period to the defined benefit liability at
the beginning of the annual period. The discount rate
is the yield at the reporting date on government bonds
that have maturity dates approximating to the terms
of Bank's obligations.

The increase in gratuity liabilities attributable to the
services provided by employees during the under
'Personnel Expenses' together with the net interest
expense. Also, actuarial gain loss have been shown
under Other Comprehensive Income (OCl) Bank
recognizes the total actuarial gain/ (loss) that arises
in computing Bank's obligation in respect of gratuity
in other comprehensive income during the period in
which it occurs.

The demographic assumptions underlying the
valuation are retirement age (58 years), early
withdrawal from service and retirement on medical
grounds.

I1l. Other long term employee benefit

Other long-term employee benefits include items
such as unutilized leave balance, if not expected to be
settled wholly before twelve months after the end of
the annual reporting period in which the employees
render the related service.

(a) Unutilized Accumulated Leave

Bank's liability towards the accumulated leave which
is expected to be utilized beyond one year from
the end of the reporting period is treated as other
long term employee benefits. Bank's net obligation
towards unutilized accumulated leave is calculated
by discounting the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their service
in the current and prior periods to determine the
present value of such benefits. The discount rate is
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the yield at the reporting date on government binds
that have maturity dates approximating to the terms
of Bank's obligation. The calculation is performed
using the Projected Unit Credit method. Net change in
liability for unutilized accumulated leave including any
actuarial gain and loss are recognized in the Statement
of Profit or Loss under ‘Personnel Expenses’ in the
period in which they arise. Actuarial gain/losses on
unutilized leave balance is charged to profit or loss.

3.25 Other expense

Other Expense have been recognized in the Statement
of Profit or Loss as they are incurred in the period
to which they relate. All expenditure incurred in the
operation of the business and in maintaining the
capital assets in a state of efficiency has been charged
to revenue in arriving at profit for the year. Provisions
in respect of other expenses are recognized when
there is present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

3.26 Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is a
lease, or it contains a lease, is based on the substance
of the arrangement and requires an assessment
of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is
dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and
the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

NFRS 16 ‘Leases’ is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 Shrawan 2078. NFRS 16 is
the new accounting standard for leases and replace
NAS 17 Leases and IFRIC 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease. The new standard
removes the distinction between operating or
finance leases for lessee accounting, resulting in
all leases being treated as finance leases. A lessee
is required to recognize a right-of-use asset (ROU)
representing its right to use the underlying leased
asset and a lease liability representing its obligation
to make lease payments. The main reason for this
change is that this approach will result in a more
comparable representation of a lessee's assets and
liabilities in relation to other companies and, together
with enhanced disclosures, will provide greater
transparency of alessee’s financial leverage and capital




employed. The standard permits a lessee to choose
either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective
transition approach.

The Bank recognizes a right-of-use asset and a
lease liability at the lease commencement date. The
right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs
incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and
remove any improvements made to branches or office
premises.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated
using the  straight-line  method from the
commencement date to the end of the lease term. In
addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced
by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain
re-measurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be
readily determined, Bank's incremental borrowing rate.
Generally, the Bank uses its incremental borrowing
rate as the discount rate.

Cost of borrowing of Bank till the date of signing any
lease contract has been considered as its incremental
borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the

lease liability comprise the following:

. Fixed payments, including in-substance fixed
payments, less any lease incentives receivable.

. Variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at the commencement date.

« Amounts expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee; and

« The exercise price under a purchase option that
the Bank is reasonably certain to exercise, lease
payments in an optional renewal period if the Bank
is reasonably certain to exercise an extension
option, and penalties for early termination of a
lease unless the Bank is reasonably certain not to
terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest method. It is remeasured when

203 arffies ufidcer Q0Ta/TR

there is a change in future lease payments arising
from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change
in the Bank's estimate of the amount expected to be
payable under a residual value guarantee, if the Bank
changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a
purchase, extension or termination option or if there
is a revised in-substance fixed lease payment.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset or is recorded in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset has been reduced to zero.

The Bank presents right-of-use assets under other
assets (Note 4.16) and lease liabilities under other
liabilities (Note 4.23) in the Statement of Financial
Position.

The interest expenses on lease liability, depreciation
charges on right of use assets and short term lease
payment has been presented under interest expenses
(4.29) and depreciation and amortization (4.38)
respectively in the statement of profit or loss.

Short-Term Leases and Leases of Low- Value
Assets

The Bank has elected not to recognize right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities for leases of low-value
assets and short-term leases. The Bank recognizes
the lease payments associated with these leases as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

3.27 Foreign Currency Transactions,
Translation and Balances

All foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency, which is Nepalese Rupees,
using the bank's mid-rate prevailing at the dates when
the transactions were affected.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at the reporting date are translated to
Nepalese Rupees using the spot foreign exchange
rate ruling at that date which is the bank's mid-rate
and all differences arising on non-trading activities are
taken to ‘Other Operating Income’ in the Statement of
Profit or Loss.

Non-monetary items in a foreign currency that are
measured in terms of historical cost are translated
using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items in foreign currency
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measured at fair value are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined.

Foreign exchange differences arising on the settlement
or reporting of monetary items at rates different from
those which were initially recorded are dealt with in the
Statement of Profit or Loss. However, foreign currency
differences arising on FVTOCI equity instruments are
recognized in other comprehensive income.

3.28 Financial guarantee and loan
commitment

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
Bank to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in accordance with
the terms of a debt instrument. Loan commitments
are firm commitments to provide credit under pre-
specified terms and conditions.

Loan commitment is the commitment where the
Bank has confirmed its intention to provide funds to
a customer or on behalf of a customer in the form
of loans, overdrafts, future guarantees, whether
cancellable or not, or letters of credit and the Bank
has not made payments at the reporting date, those
instruments are included in these financial statement
as commitments.

3.29 Share Capital and Reserves

The Bank classifies capital instruments as financial
liabilities or equity instruments in accordance with the
substance of the contractual terms of the instruments.
Equity is defined as residual interest in total assets of
the Bank after deducting all its liabilities.

Common shares are classified as equity of the Bank
and distributions thereon are presented in statement
of changes in equity. Dividends on ordinary shares and
preference shares classified as equity are recognized
in equity in the period in which they are declared.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of an equity instrument are deducted from the initial
measurement of the equity instruments considering
the tax benefits achieved thereon.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to one vote
per share at general meetings of the bank and are
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entitled to receive the annual dividend payments. The
various reserve headings are explained hereinafter:

a) Retained Earnings

The bank has to appropriate different reserves from
retained earnings. Retained earnings comprises of
current Fiscal Year profit and any non-distributed
profit of preceding Fiscal Years.

b) General reserve

The Bank is required to appropriate a minimum 20%
of current year's net profit into this heading each year
until it becomes double of paid up capital and then
after a minimum 10% of profit each year. This reserve
is not available for distribution to shareholders in any
form and requires specific approval of the central
bank for any transfers from this heading.

c) Exchange equalization reserve

The Bank is required to appropriate 25% of current
year's total revaluation gain (except gain from
revaluation of Indian Currency) into this heading.

d) Fair value reserve

This is a non-statutory reserve and is a requirement
in the application of accounting policy for financial
assets. NFRS 9 requires that cumulative net change in
the fair value of financial assets measured at FVTOCI
is recognized under fair value reserve heading until
the fair valued asset is de-recognized. Any realized fair
value changes upon disposal of the re-valued asset
is reclassified from this reserve heading to retained
earnings.

e) Revaluation reserve

This is a non-statutory reserve and is a requirement in
the application of accounting policy for non-financial
assets such as property, equipment, investment
property and intangible assets that are measured
following a re-valuation model.

f) Corporate social responsibility fund

The Bank is required to appropriate an amount
equivalent to 1% of net profit into this fund annually.
The fund is created towards funding the Bank's
corporate social responsibility expenditure during
the subsequent year. Balance in this fund is directly
reclassified to retained earnings in the subsequent
year to the extent of payments made under corporate
social responsibility activities.

g) Investment adjustment reserve
The Bankis required to maintain balance in this reserve




heading which is calculated at fixed percentages of the
cost of equity investments that are not held for trading.
Changes in this reserve requirement are reclassified
to retained earnings.

h) Actuarial gain / loss reserve

This is a non-statutory reserve and is a requirement
in the application of accounting policy for employee
benefits. NAS 19 requires that actuarial gain or loss
resultant of the change in actuarial assumptions used
to value defined benefit obligations be presented
under this reserve heading. Any change in this reserve
heading is recognized through other comprehensive
income and is not an appropriation of net profit.

i) Regulatory reserve

This is a non-free statutory reserve and is a

requirement as prescribed in NRB directive. In the

transition to NFRS from previous GAAP the Bank is

required to reclassify all amounts that are resultant of

re-measurement adjustments and that are recognized

in retained earnings into this reserve heading. The

amount reclassified to this reserve includes:

o Re-measurement adjustments such as interest
income recognized against interest receivables
i.e. Accrued Interest Receivable after considering
effect of bonus and income tax

. Difference in loan loss provision as per NRB
directive and impairment on loan and advance as
per NFRS,

« Amount equals to deferred tax assets,

o Actuarial gain/loss  recognized in  other
comprehensive income,

« Amount of goodwill recognized under NFRS.

« Non-Banking assets after taking effect of bonus
and income tax

j) Debenture Redemption Reserve

The Bank is required to maintain a redemption reserve
in respect of borrowing raised through debenture
issuance. As per the terms of NRB approval relating
to the Bank's debenture issuance, the Bank is annually
required to transfer 20% of the debenture's face value
to redemption reserve. However, such provision shall
not be applicable in the issuance year and maturity
year.

k) Employees training fund

The Bank is required to incur expenses towards
employee training and development for an amount
that is equivalent to at least 3% of the preceding year's
salary and allowance. Any shortfall amount in meeting
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this mandatory expense requirement in the current
year will have to be transferred to this reserve fund
through appropriation of net profit and the amount
shall accumulate in the fund available for related
expenses in the subsequent year. Balance in this
fund is directly reclassified to retained earnings in the
subsequent year to the extent of expenses made for
employees training related activities.

3.30 Earnings per Share including diluted
earning

Bank presents basic and diluted Earnings per share
(EPS)dataforits ordinary shares. Basic EPSis calculated
by dividing the profit and loss attributable to ordinary
equity holders of Bank by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the
period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting both
the profit and loss attributable to the ordinary equity
holders and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding, for the effects of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares, if any.

If the number of ordinary or potential ordinary shares
outstanding increases as a result of a capitalization
due to right share, bonus issue, the calculation of
basic and diluted earnings per share for all periods
presented are adjusted retrospectively.

Dividend on Ordinary Shares

Dividend on ordinary shares are recognized as a
liability and deducted from equity when they are
approved by the Bank's shareholders. Interim Dividend
are deducted from equity when they are declared and
no longer at the discretion of the Bank. Proposed
dividend for the year after reporting period and before
the authorization of financial statements has been
disclosed in notes to accounts as non-adjusting event.

3.31 Segment Reporting

An operating segment is a component that engages
in business activities from which it earns revenue and
incurs expense, including revenues and expenses
that relating to transaction with any of groups other
components, whose operating results are reviewed by
management. For management purposes, the Bank
has organized into operating segments based on
business. Also, interestincome are identifiable product
wise separately. Management monitors the operating
results of its business units separately for the purpose
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of making decisions about resource allocation and
performance assessment.

Segment performance is evaluated based on operating
profits or losses which, in certain respects, are
measured differently from operating profits or losses
in the consolidated financial statements. Income taxes
are managed on a group basis and are not allocated
to operating segments.

Interest income is reported net as management
primarily relies on net interest revenue as a
performance measure, not the gross income and
expense. Transfer prices between operating segments
are on an arm's length basis in a manner similar to
transactions with third parties.

No revenue from transactions with a single external
customer or counterparty amounted to 10% or more
of the bank's total revenue in the reporting period.
Segmentresults that are reported to the Bank's include
directly attributable to a segment as well as those that
can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated
items comprise head office expense, corporate assets,
tax assets and liabilities.

3.32 Capital Management

The primary objective of Capital Management is to
ensure maintenance of minimum regulatory capital
requirement. The Bank ensures that adequate capital
has been allocated to achieve strategic objectives and
within the Risk Appetite of the Bank.

Capital Adequacy

Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) is a measure of the Bank's
capital expressed as a percentage of risk-weighted
assets of credit, market and operational aspects of the
banking business. It is a measure of financial strength
of the Bank which indicates its ability to maintain
adequate capital to face with unforeseen scenarios.
Bank has maintained capital adequacy in excess of the
minimum threshold prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank.
Bank calculates CAR based on New Capital Adequacy
Framework under Basel lll requirement in July 2015
issued by NRB. Also, bank monitors the CAR, while
stressing rigorously for worst possible scenarios.
ICAAP factors out all possible risks such as reputation
risk, strategic risk, compliance risk, concentration risk,
and interest rate risk on banking book.
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3.33 Risk Management

Bank needs to manage Credit, Operational, Market,
Liquidity and other risks inherent in bank. There are
risk management in process to identify, measure,
monitor, and control such risks. In order to manage
such risks. Board of the bank is primarily responsible
for setting out the risks policies, risk strategies, risk
appetite, risk tolerance, risk mitigation etc. Such
risks are communicated by the Board down the line
for effective and timely implementation adherence.
Board of the bank monitors and evaluates the risk
on a regular interval and instructs RMC and other
related departments, who is responsible for risk
management of the bank through CEO/CRO for
effective implementation.

In broad sense, Bank's functional structure for risk
related matters are presented below

Board of Directors

Board has critical role to play in overseeing overall
risks emanating in the bank business. Board approves,
modifies, and review overall policies related to risk
areas, advises the management to prepare suitable
process. Overall accountability for risk management
rests on Board and the level of risks organization
accepts. Major responsibilities of Board, but not
limited to include:

a. Define bank's overall risk tolerance in relation to
credit risk, market and liquidity risk.

b. Ensure bank's Credit and investment exposure
maintained at prudent levels.

c. Ensure related top management responsible for
risk management process.

d. Ensure there is effective, integrated operational
risk management framework

e. Ensure implementation of sound fundamental
policies that facilitate identification, measurement,
monitoring and control of potential risk.

Risk Management Committee

Risk Management Committee is the sub-committee of
the Board, which plays pivotal role in managing overall
risk management of bank. RMC shall work as a bridge
between Board and CRO/ Management and escalate
the important risks matters to Board




AML/ CFT committee

A separate committee is formed to ensure compliance
of Anti Money Laundering Act, rules and directive
No. 19 issued by Nepal Rastra Bank. Also, in order
to enable the strong AML culture in the bank and in
addition ensure to apply a uniform policy framework
throughout the branches in compliance with internal
as well as regulatory standards, committee is formed.
It devises appropriate risk management framework
to identify, assess and minimize the risk pertaining to
AML and CFT; and recommend its implementation to
management of bank.

Assets and Liability Management Committee
Senior Management Committee is responsible for
supervision/management of market risk (mainly
interest rate and liquidity risk). It includes the role of
monitoring on the structure/ composition of bank's
assets and liabilities and decide about product pricing
for deposits and advances, deciding on maturity
profile, evaluation of market risk and so on.

Credit Risk Management Department

Credit Risk Management is an independent function of
the bank which has the objective to reduce the level of
NPL, and delinquent borrowers and to improve the risk
assets quality of the bank. It is a centralized function
which controls overall risk inherent in lending portfolio
and also make an assessment of risk profile in credit
files. It includes the assessment/review of purpose of
credit, credit assessment of borrower, structuring of
credit facilities, disbursement of loan, assessment of
waiver policies, and others.

a. To monitor bank's credit portfolio for risk
identification, quantification

b. Review risk of asset portfolio sector
Periodically review irregular accounts which are
NPA

d. Define bank's overall tolerance to risk.

e. ldentify risk and analyze risk management tools.

Credit Risk Management

In order to manage creditrisk, the Bank has established
a sound credit appraisal system. The Bank has
credit Policies Guidelines and other product papers
approved by The Board of Directors which are strictly
followed during credit approval/disbursement. The
bank performs market/customer analysis to minimize
the credit risk.
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Operation Risk Management

A separate independent function has been
established for effective management of operational
risks of bank. The unit performs the job related to
identity, measurement, monitoring and reporting of
operational risks as a whole and ensure management
of operational risk It evaluates the adequacy of tools
and techniques to reduce the operational risk to
acceptable level.

The Bank has a strong internal control system so that
material fraud and errors can be easily traced. Further,
the Bank follows a scientific process for segregation
of duty so that internal check be maintained. The
Bank follows the operational manual approved by
Board of Directors. The Bank has an effective Internal
Audit Department which functions to carry out review
of internal control system of the bank and ensure
that the approved policies, procedures and manuals
are strictly followed. The report of the Internal Audit
Department is directly submitted to Audit committee.

Market Risk Management

For the management of Market/Liquidity risk, the
Bank has a very effective ALM Policy which defines
procedures and authority including setting up
various risk limits. Under the ALM policy, the Bank
has effective Assets Liabilities Committee (ALCO)
which meets periodically and reviews interest rates,
liquidity position, liquidity gap, FCY open position,
investment portfolio, maturity limit for investment and
takes necessary decision as well as circulates various
guidelines to concerned departments for effective
management of market risk.

Liquidity Risk Management

Bank recognize Market Risk as the possibility for loss
of earnings or economic value to the bank caused
due to adverse changes in the market level of interest
rates or prices of securities (equity), foreign exchange
rates and commodity price fluctuation, as well as
the volatilities, of those prices. While Liquidity risk is
chances of failure of a bank to meet obligations as they
become due. Effective liquidity risk management helps
ensure the Bank's ability to meet its obligations as they
fall due without adversely affecting the Bank's financial
condition and reduces the probability of developing of
an adverse situation.
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Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Bank will
encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated
with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering
cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk arises
because of the possibility that the Bank might be
unable to meet its payment obligations when they fall
due as a result of mismatches in the timing of the cash
flows under both normal and stress circumstances.
Such scenarios could occur when funding needed for
illiquid asset positions is not available to the Bank on
acceptable terms.

To limit this risk, management has arranged for
diversified funding sources in addition to its core
deposit base and adopted a policy of managing
assets with liquidity in mind and monitoring future
cash flows and liquidity on a daily basis. The Bank has
developed internal control processes and contingency
plans for managing liquidity risk. This incorporates an
assessment of expected cash flows and the availability
of high grade collateral which could be used to secure
additional funding as required.

Reputational Risk Management

Reputational risk is the risk of possible damage to
the Bank's brand and reputation resulting in loss of
earnings or adverse impact on market capitalization
or could be perceived as by the stakeholders to be
inappropriate, unethical, or inconsistent with bank
values and beliefs.

The Bank's Corporate Governance Policy establishes
the framework for the governance and management
of reputational risk. The framework aims to protect the
Bank's reputation and restrict the ability to undertake
any activities that may cause material damage to the
Bank's branding.

The bank has clearly set the code of conduct / code
of ethics which defines acceptable and unacceptable
behaviors and explicitly disallow behavior that
could lead to any reputation risks or improper or
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illegal activity, such as financial misreporting, money
laundering, fraud, anti-competitive practices, bribery
and corruption, or the violation of consumer rights
and make clear that employees are expected to
conduct themselves ethically in addition to complying
with laws, regulations and company policies.

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for ensuring the Bank has
appropriate internal control framework in place
that supports the achievement of the strategies and
objectives. The various functions of the Bank should be
looked upon with a view to establish a proper control
mechanism is in place during expansion and growth
which enables it to maximize profitable business
opportunities, avoid or reduce risks which can cause
loss or reputational damage, ensure compliance with
applicable laws and regulations and enhance resilience
to external events.

The Board has set policies and procedures of risk
identification, risk evaluation, risk mitigation and
control/monitoring, in line with the NRB directives has
effectively implemented the same at the Bank. The
effectiveness of the Company's internal control system
is reviewed regularly by the Board, its Committees,
Management and Internal Audit department.

The Internal Audit monitors compliance with
policies/standards and the effectiveness of internal
control structures across the Bank through regular
audit, special audit, information system audit, Off
Site review, AML/CFT/KYC audit, ISO audit as well as
Risk based Internal Audit (RBIA) approach. The audits
observations are reported to the Chief Executive Officer
and Business Heads for initiating immediate corrective
measures. Internal Audit reports are periodically
forwarded to the Audit Committee for review and the
committee issues appropriate corrective action in
accordance with the issue involved to the respective
department, regional offices or branches.
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Machhapuchchhre Bank Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Year ended 16 July 2025

1. Paid-up capital

Paid-up share capital of the Bank has increased from year to year as follows:

a) Paid-Up Capital

The structure of the share capital of the Bank is as follows:

. Authorized capital of NPR 15,000,000,000 represented by 150,000,000 ordinary shares of NPR 100 each; and

. Issued capital as of balance sheet date is NPR 11,621,357,273 represented by 116,213,573 ordinary shares of NPR 100
each.
Paid-up capital as of balance sheet date is NPR 11,621,357,273 represented by 116,213,573 ordinary shares of NPR 100
each.

The paid-up capital of the Bank as on the balance sheet date is NPR 11,621,357,273 represented by 116,213,573 Ordinary
Shares of NPR 100 each. Paid up share capital of the Bank has increased from year to year as follows:

Financial Year Paid up Share Capital (NPR) Remarks

2061/62 550,000,000 Opening Share Capital

2062/63 715,000,000 Issue of 30% right shares

2063/64 821,651,300 14.92% Bonus shares

2064/65 901,339,300 NPR 79,688,000 calls in advance included

2065/66 1,479,269,600 Issue of right shares 10:6 and 12.5% of bonus shares included
2066/67 1,627,196,560 10% Bonus shares included

2067/68 1,627,196,560

2068/69 2,478,794,560 NPR 851,598,000 paid capital of Standard Finance Limited Merged
2069/70 2,478,794,560

2070/71 2,776,249,907 12% Bonus shares included

2071/72 3,484,123,196 IS\IhPaFieﬂ i7ﬂéti3d3e,é89 calls in advance and NPR 533,040,000 proposed bonus

NFRS related adjustment for Paid-up capital

Financial Year As per GAAP Adjustment As per NFRS Remarks
2072/73 Issue of right shares NPR 555,250,093 and NPR 801,890,000
(Transition proposed bonus share.
Phase-Openin 4,666,430,000 |  (801,890,000) 3,864,540,000 | >Proposed bonus share on the year of issuance not being
ad'ustrﬁent) & part of share capital as per NFRS has been reduced from
: share capital
Calls in advance of NPR 452,756,100 of 12% right shares and
2073/74 NPR 665,149,000

7,716,605,100 (665,149,000) 7,051,456,100 | > Proposed bonus share on the year of issuance not being

part of share capital as per NFRS has been reduced from
share capital.

(Comparative Year)

2074/75 (First Time

Adoption) 8,055,693,000 - 8,055,693,000

2075/76 8,458,477,650 - 8,458,477,650

Bank has issued 5% bonus shares, 4,027,846 no of shares of
2076/77 8,458,477,650 ) 8,458,477,650 NPR 100 each pertaining to FY 2075/76.

Bank has issued 7.03% bonus shares, 5,946,169 no of shares
2077/78 2,053,094,581 | 9053094581 | (£ NPR 100 each pertaining to FY 2076/77.

Bank has issued 13.30% bonus shares, 12,040,610 no of
2078/79 10,257,155,581 -| 10,257,155,581 shares of NPR 100 each pertaining to FY 2077/78.
2079/80 10,257,155,581 -| 10,257,155,581 | Bank has not issued bonus shares for FY 2078/79.

Bank has issued 13.30% bonus shares, 116,213,573 no of
2080/81 11,621,357,273 -| 11.621,357.273 shares of NPR 100 each pertaining to FY 2079/80.
2081/82 11,621,357,273 -| 11,621,357,273 | Bank has not issued ANY bonus shares for FY 2080/81.
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2. Reserve
a) General Reserve
Section 44 of Bank and Financial Institutions Act 2073 requires the Bank to allocate at least 20% of the net profits of every
year to General Reserve until it is twice the paid-up capital. The Bank has appropriated NPR 376,728,698 of the net
profits to General Reserve in the current year.

Amount in NPR

Particulars | Asat16July2025 | As at 15 July 2024
Opening General Reserve 2,899,542,179 2,690,502,342
20% of Profit to be transferred 376,728,698 209,039,837
Closing General Reserve 3,276,270,877 2,899,542,179

b) Exchange Equalization Reserve
Section 45 Bank and Financial Institutions Act 2073 requires, 25% of revaluation gain from foreign currency exchange rate
differences to be transferred to Exchange Equalization Reserve and revaluation loss is charged to profit and loss account.
25% of Revaluation profit of foreign currency accounts during the current period amounting NPR 16,263,106 have been
transferred to exchange fluctuation fund maintained by the Bank.

Amount in NPR

Particulars ‘ As at 16 July 2025 ‘ As at 15 July 2024
Opening Exchange Equalization Reserve 80,436,805 67,114,258
25% of Revaluation gain 16,263,106 13,322,547
Closing Exchange Equalization Reserve 96,699,911 80,436,805

c) Fair Value Reserve
Net change in fair value of financial assets that are measured at fair value is recognized in other comprehensive income
until assets are derecognized. Closing Fair Value reserve is NPR (11,033,948).

Amount in NPR

Particulars As at 16 July 2025 As at 15 July 2024
Opening Fair Value Reserve (14,756,448) (11,282,267)
Transfer/ Adjustment in Reserve 3,722,500 (3,474,181)
Closing Fair Value Reserve (11,033,948) (14,756,448)

d) Assets Revaluation Reserve
Assets are recognized under cost model and they are presented under historical cost. So, no assets have been revalued
as on balance sheet date.

e) Skill Enhancement Fund
NRB Directive 6 requires BFIs to incur expenses towards employee training and development equivalent to at least 3% of
the preceding year's total staff expenses. Unspent amount of training fund carried forward from previous financial year is
NPR 7,687,955. Actual training expense of this year amounting to NPR 35,424,902.

Amount in NPR

Particulars As at 16 July 2025 As at 15 July 2024
Opening Skill Enhancement Fund 7,687,955 13,472,551
Add : 3% of Last Year Staff Expense 46,243,150 46,494,611
Actual Staff Training Expense this year 35,424,902 52,279,207
Closing Skill Enhancement Fund 18,506,203 7,687,955

22< www.machbank.com
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f) Corporate Social Responsibility Fund
NRB Directive 6 requires BFIs to create Corporate Social Responsibility Fund and appropriate an amount equivalent to 1%
of net profit annually into this fund for covering expenditure related to CSR activities in the subsequent year. Accordingly,
the Bank had opening reserve of NPR 11,504,113 out of which NPR 9,219,946 has been spent this year for CSR activities.
This year, bank has also appropriated 1% of net profit i.e. NPR 18,836,435 and therefore total amount in this fund is NPR
21,120,602 and shown in other reserve in Statement of Changes in Equity.

Amount in NPR

Opening CSR Fund 11,504,113 27,404,964
Add : 1% of profit this year 18,836,435 10,451,992
Less: CSR expense this year 9,219,946 26,352,843
Closing CSR Fund 21,120,602 11,504,113

Details of CSR expense are as follows:

Province Category Amount in "NPR"
Education 774,712
Health 60,174
Koshi H.umar'ﬂta.rian assistance and relief 357,143 15%
Financial literacy 128,895
Others 49,900
Total for Koshi 1,370,824
Education 316,527
Health 248,374
Madesh | Humanitarian assistance and relief 357,143 | 13%
Financial literacy 69,040
Others 181,429
Total for Madesh 1,172,512
Education 324,873
Health 385,296
Humanitarian assistance and relief 596,702
Bagmati | Environment 16,000 | 22%
Financial literacy 330,967
Others 329,063
Total for Bagmati 1,982,900
Education 388,264
Health 117,647
Gandaki H.umar'mita.rian assistance and relief 357,143 13%
Financial literacy 167,876
Others 125,000
Total for Gandaki 1,155,931
Education 364,835
Health 9,040
.. | Humanitarian assistance and relief 357,143
Lumbini - — 13%
Financial literacy 89,943
Others 355,714
Total for Lumbini 1,176,675
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Education 127,507
Health 570,650
.| Humanitarian assistance and relief 357,143
Karnali - — 13%
Financial literacy 32,375
Others 72,800
Total for Karnali 1,160,475
Education 599,790
Health 184,725
Humanitarian assistance and relief 357,143
Suduy Environment 15,000 | 13%
Paschim
Financial literacy 37,520
Others 6,450
Total for Sudurpaschim 1,200,628
Grand Total 9,219,946 | 100%

g) Regulatory Reserve
The amount to this reserve has been allocated from profit/retained earnings as per the Directive of NRB for the purpose

of implementation of NFRS and is not regarded as free for distribution of dividend. Details are as presented under:
Amount in NPR

L Particulars | Asat6July2025 | Asati15]uly 2024

Opening Regulatory reserve 1,835,134,609 1,329,265,607
Adjustment/ Restated - -
Interest Suspense (Refer Note Below) (29,096,596) 44,571,576
Investment Property Provision/(Non-Banking Assets) (Refer Note (461,383,361) 372,938,137

No. 21 Below)

Actuarial loss 133,903,612 (14,846,104)
Fair Value Reserve (5,317,857) 4,963,116
Deferred tax assets 53,811,928 71,462,067
Interest Capitalized Term Loan 53,557,178 26,780,210
Closing Regulatory Reserve 1,580,609,512 1,835,134,609

Details of Movement in Regulatory Reserve:

Short (L on Actuarial Fair Value Loss
Interest e Bargain ized
Receivable Provision Pur- Loss. Ref:ognlze
on NBA Recognized in OCI
chase
74-75 275,772,186 24,870,824 159,698,543 10,761,980 471,103,533
75-76 (42,527,809) 53,586,919 21,424,000 11,459,433 8,109,899 52,052,441
76-77 (17,318,179) 31,759,059 13,810,822 18,110,759 (8,755,873) 37,606,588
77-78 (33,146,144) 88,176,859 (95,643) 38,080,762 (10,116,006) 82,899,827
78-79 324,675,609 (44,558,642) 14,114,154 (18,823,615) 12,725,620 288,133,125
79-80 188,175,252 230,425,361 36,531,608 (61,054,033) 3,391,904 397,470,092
80-81 44,571,576 372,938,137 71,462,067 (14,846,104) 4,963,116 26,780,210 505,869,002
81-82 (29,096,596) (461,383,361) 53,811,928 133,903,612 (5,317,857) 53,557,178 (254,525,096)
Total 711,105,894 295,815,156 | 211,058,935 266,529,357 15,762,783 80,337,387 | 1,580,609,512
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h) Interest Capitalized Reserve

Pursuant to the clause 4.3 of NRB directive, Banks are required to create Interest Capitalized Reserve (ICR) for the interest
accrued and capitalized during moratorium period of loan approved after 26 Magh 2079 or having financial closure. Such
capitalized interest needs to be booked under separate account i.e. Interest Capitalized Term Loan (ICTL) and transfer to

Interest Capitalized Reserve through regulatory reserve.

Particulars | Asat16July 2025 |  As at 15 July 2024
Opening of ICR 26,780,210 -
Add : Transfer to Reserve 53,557,178 26,780,210
Closing ICR 80,337,387 26,780,210

i) Share Premium

Share premium includes the excess amount received against the face value of the issued shares in FY 2074/75. Excess of
NPR 30,881,765 were received against the 12 % right shares auction. The unsubscribed right shares were auctioned, and
the amount more than fair value is shown under share premium.

j) Capital Redemption Reserve/Debenture Redemption Reserve

As per NRB Directive 16, Capital Redemption reserve is to be created for the redemption of Debentures/ Redeemable
Non-convertible preference shares.

The Bank sets aside a portion of its profit to create a reserve for repayment of debenture liabilities when they mature. On
maturity and settlement of the debentures their reserves will be available as free reserve.

Bank has set aside NPR 428,571,429 for debenture redemption reserve for 10.25% Machhapuchchhre debentures issued
by the bank on proportional basis for the remaining maturity period. The bank has proposed to issue bonus shares which
is more than the required DRR for 8.5% Machhapuchchhre Debenture. Hence, the bank has not created any debenture
redemption reserve for the same.

Particulars ‘ As at 16 July 2025 ‘ As at 15 July 2024
Opening Debenture Redemption Reserve 1,138,829,857 428,571,429
Add : Transfer to Reserve 428,571,429 710,258,429
Closing Debenture Redemption Reserve 1,567,401,286 1,138,829,857

3. Investment Securities

Investment Securities have been valued under fair value or amortized cost as allowed under NFRS 9. Closing market
price of Securities has been used as the Fair value of the Asset/Securities for investment securities valued at Fair Value
through Other Comprehensive Income. Different Fair Value Hierarchy has been considered (Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3)
depending upon the availability of information and regarding the valuation of other investments through amortized cost,
EIR rate has been used for booking the amortized cost of investment and interest income accordingly.

An Investment in a Srilankan Bond which has been measured at amortized cost amounting to NPR 559,091,779 (USD
4,063,167) and Impairment of NPR 25,705,388 as per Expected Credit Loss model has been recognized in Statement of
Profit and Loss account.

4. Loans & Advances to B/Fls and customers

Loans & Advances to B/Fls and Customers have been valued under amortized cost as allowed under NFRS 9. Separate
Effective Interest Rate (EIR) has not been computed, and coupon interest rate is considered as EIR for the computation
of Expected Credit Loss. Also, Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) have provided carve out on EIR till FY
2082/83.

Pursuant to adoption of ECL model, recognition of interest income has been based upon Guidance Note on Interest
Income Recognition, 2025 issued by NRB. As per the Guidelines, Interest income for stage 3 loan of previous quarter must
be recognized on a cash basis. Accordingly, the bank has derecognized NPR 352 million for FY 2081-82 regarding accrued
interest which has not been received in cash.
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As per NFRS 9, an entity shall assess at the end of each reporting period if there is any objective evidence that financial
asset or group of financial assets measured at amortized cost is impaired.

The bank for the current financial year has assessed the impairment under para 5.5 of the NFRS 9 impairment model and
the NRB Directive. The Bank, following regulatory backstop as mentioned in Clause 16 of “NFRS 9- Expected Credit Loss
Related Guidelines, 2024" has recognize impairment on credit exposures as the HIGHER of total ECL calculated as per
NFRS 9 and existing regulatory provisions as mentioned in Unified NRB Directives no 02. Further, Bank has applied carve
out issued by ICAN and has computed impairment loss. As per the carve-out issued by ICAN as a mandatory treatment of
impairment loss for banks and financial institution till FY 2082.83, impairment loss to be measured at higher of amount
derived as per norms prescribed by NRB for loan loss provision and measured as per paragraph 5.5 of NFRS 9.

4.1 Details of such impairment are as mentioned below:

Impairment (A) 4,301,957,296 2,079,317,551 (2,222,639,745)
Provision as per NRB (B) 5,969,296,824 5,094,845,167 874,451,657
Impairment to be considered (Higher of A or B) 5,969,296,824 5,094,845,167 874,451,657

Note: The Impairment for FY 2081-82 is calculated as per Expected Credit Loss model under NFRS 9, whereas for the
previous FY 2080-81, it was calculated based on the Incurred Loss Model under NAS 39.

4.2 Details of Collective and Individual Impairment:
Particulars

Expected Credit Loss (ECL)

Collective Impairment 3,295,245,519
Stage 1 970,643,058
Stage 2 642,351,849
Stage 3 - 1,682,250,612
Individual Impairment 204,657,977
Stage 1 15,889,176
Stage 2 188,768,801
Stage 3 -
Total Funded 3,499,903,496
Non-Funded Exposures** 802,053,801
Total Expected Credit Loss 4,301,957,296

**Non-Funded Exposures includes Letter of Credit, Bank Guarantee, Forward Exchange Contract Liabilities and
undrawn limit for short term and long-term loan with exposures of NPR 21,963,295,350.

2R www.machbank.com
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5. Segmental reporting

An operating segment is a component that engages in business activities from which it earns revenue and incurs expense,
including revenues and expenses that relating to transaction with any of groups other components, whose operating
results are reviewed by management.

For management purposes, the Bank has organized into operating segments based on business.

Management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on operating profits or
losses which, in certain respects, are measured differently from operating profits or losses in the consolidated financial
statements. Income taxes are managed on a group basis and are not allocated to operating segments. Interest income is
reported net as management primarily relies on net interest revenue as a performance measure, not the gross income
and expense. Transfer prices between operating segments are on an arm’s length basis in a manner similar to transactions
with third parties.

No revenue from transactions with a single external customer or counterparty amounted to 10% or more of the bank's
total revenue in the reporting period. Segment results that are reported to the Bank's include directly attributable to a
segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise corporate assets, tax
assets and liabilities.

6. Segmental Information

Segmental Reporting has been presented for three key business segments of the Bank, identified on the basis of key functional
business activities that generate revenue for the Bank and incur expenses. These segments serve as the key functional units for
resource allocation, decision making and review of operating results/performance by the Management. These are summarized
as follows:

6.1 Information about reportable segments Amount in NPR'000

Transaction

Banking Unallocated

Particulars

Banking

Treasury

A Ejzfonmugﬁsfrom external 13,707,460 | 2,380,345 368,690 (337,164)| 16,119,331
B | Intersegment revenues 1,248,760 | (1,233,616) (42,193) 27,048 -
C | Gross revenue 14,956,221 1,146,729 326,497 (310,116) 16,119,331
D | Interest revenue 12,450,504 | 2,130,286 - - 14,580,790
E | Interest expenses 7,972,317 851,733 - - 8,824,050
F | Netinterest revenue 4,478,187 | 1,278,553 - - 5,756,740
G | Depreciation & amortization 266,603 100,545 3,768 49,781 420,697
H ﬁgig%ﬂ_ﬁcﬁrfzgx 4,922,946 | 365,844 168322  (2,735369) 2,721,743
Entity's interest in the profit or
| | loss of associates accounted - - - - -
for using equity method
J | Other material non-cash items: - - - - -
K | Impairment of assets 556,657 (5,318) - - 551,339
L | Segment assets 140,086,761 | 52,886,119 1,981,721 26,227,560 221,182,161
M | Segment liabilities 90,584,502 | 3,143,556 280,399 27,173,704 221,182,161

Revenue from external customers includes the total interest and non-interest revenue.

Intersegment Revenue includes revenues from transaction with other operating segments of Bank. Transactions
between segments are reported on pre-determined transfer price.

Segment Assets and liabilities include the assets and liabilities identifiable to segment.

The result reported include the items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on

reasonable basis.

www.machbank.com
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Segment assets and liabilities have been netted off from total assets and liabilities regarding the items that can be

offset. (Contra items).

6.2 Reconciliation of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities

Revenue Amount in NPR"000"
Particulars Amount

Total revenue for reportable segments 16,433,030

Other revenues (313,700)

Elimination of intersegment revenue -

Entity's revenues 16,119,331

Profit or Loss

Amount in NPR"000"

Particulars Amount
Total profit or loss for reportable segments 5,457,112
Other profit or loss -
Elimination of intersegment profits -
Unallocated amounts: (2,735,369)
Profit or loss before income tax 2,721,743

Assets

Amount in NPR"000"

Total assets for reportable segments 194,954,601
Other assets -
Unallocated amounts: 26,227,560
Entity's assets 221,182,161

Liabilities Amount in NPR"000"
C eartiwes | Amowmt
Total liabilities for reportable segments 194,008,457
Other liabilities -
Unallocated amounts: 27,173,704
Entity's liabilities 221,182,161

6.3 Information about products and services
Products separately identifiable are Term Loan, Overdraft, Subsidy, Deprived Sector Lending, Treasury and others.
Revenue i.e. interest income from each category is as mentioned below:

Amount in NPR"000"

Particulars Amount
Term Loan 6,895,555
Overdraft 2,244,695
Subsidy 71,990
Deprived Sector Lending 308,001
Treasury 2,130,262
Others 2,930,288
Total 14,580,790

Annual Report 2024/25 9\«




Qw3 aIffies ufdidicer 20Ta/TR

6.4 Information about geographical areas

Revenue from following geographical areas

Amount in NPR"000"

Domestic
Koshi Province 1,895,159
Madhesh Province 1,687,729
Bagmati Province 10,170,666
Gandaki Province 1,058,207
Lumbini Province 833,397
Karnali Province 89,521
Sudurpaschim Province 383,401

Foreign -

Total 16,119,331

6.5 Information about major customers

Revenue from a single customer does not exceed 10% or more of the bank's revenue.

7. Classification of Financial Asset and Liability

Particulars

Assets

Carrying
Value

Fair Value

Amount in NPR"000"

Carrying Value

As at16 July 2025 As at 15 July 2024

Fair value

Assets carried at Amortized Cost

Cash and cash equivalent 7,725,872 7,725,872 7,790,319 7,790,319
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 8,326,202 8,326,202 6,340,167 6,340,167
Placement with Bank and Financial Institu- 1,731,959 1,731,959 404,770 404,770
tions

Loans and advances to BFlIs 5,809,652 5,809,652 5,101,443 5,101,443
Loan and advances to customers 141,436,049 141,436,049 126,754,175 | 126,754,175
Investment securities at amortized cost 43,313,430 43,313,430 35,146,904 | 35,146,904
Assets carried at Cost

Investment in subsidiaries 400,000 400,000 400,000 400,000
Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)

Derivative financial instruments. 4,541 - 4,541 4,541
Fair Value through Other Comprehen-

sive Income (FVTOCI)

Investment securities at OCI 2,199,830 2,199,830 450,115 450,115
Liabilities

Liabilities carried at Amortized Cost

Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 2,679,864 2,679,864 3,128,492 3,128,492
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank - - - -
Deposits from customers 184,176,050 184,176,050 158,646,909 | 158,646,909
Debt securities issued 5,498,290 5,498,290 5,495,481 5,495,481
Borrowings 2,143,481 2,143,481 2,091,129 2,091,129

2% wwwmachbankcom
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8. Interest Income

Capitalization of the Interest on national priority projects was made with due approval from Nepal Rastra Bank and Board
of Director of Bank amounting to NPR 347,976,281 is capitalized during FY 2081/82.

9. Staff Bonus

Proposed bonus for staff have been provided for 10% of net profit before such bonus.

10. Interim Financial Statements

Interim Financial Statements are prepared and published on quarterly basis in accordance with NRB Directives in
compliance with statutory and legal requirement within the time frame as prescribed.

11. Gratuity and Accumulated Leave Provision

Gratuity
As per the actuarial valuation, gratuity liability of the bank is NPR 952,311,525 Out of which NPR 735,520,592 has been

funded as at 32 Ashad 2082 and net amount is shown as liability of bank. However, the bank has funded remaining
amount of NPR 216,790,933 in Citizen Investment Trust (CIT).

Bank has expensed of NPR 82,887,321 for gratuity expense in statement of profit & loss. However, funding arrangement to
CIT has been made based on gratuity liability computed as per relevant provisions of Act. Deficit obtained after deducting

the fair value of plan assets from Net Benefit Obligations has been shown as Net liability of bank.

Details of actuarial valuation of gratuity are as follows:

Amount in NPR

Particulars As at 16 July 2025 As at 15 July 2024
Defined Benefit Obligations 952,311,525 746,673,473
Fair Value of plan assets 735,520,592 683,707,849
Net Liability 216,790,933 62,965,624
Expense booked as in PL 82,887,321 77,811,728
Actuarial Gain/ (Loss) booked in OCl (133,903,612) 14,846,104

Current/Non-Current Bifurcation

Particulars
Current Liability

As at 16 July 2025

Amount in NPR
As at 15 July 2024

Non-Current Liability

216,790,933

62,965,624

Total

216,790,933

62,965,624

Leave

The Bank has recognized an additional provision of NPR 143,149,031 for accumulated leave liability in the current year.
Being non-funded arrangement, total amount is booked as liability for bank. Moreover, leave encashment paid more than
accumulated leave exceeding 120 days of annual leave and sick leave is charged in profit and loss account.

Amount in NPR

Particulars As at 16 July 2025 As at 15 July 2024
Defined Benefit Obligations 413,752,785 310,847,903
Fair Value of plan assets - -
Net Liability 413,752,785 310,847,903
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Particulars | Asat16July2025 | Asat 15July 2024
Amount recognized in statement of profit or loss
Current service cost 46,354,859 51,341,036
Interest cost 29,072,583 27,201,888
Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss on Leave 67,721,589 (28,996,753)
Total 143,149,031 49,546,171
Change in Present Value Obligations:
PV of Obligation at beginning of the year 310,847,903 282,736,035
Current Service Cost 46,354,859 51,341,036
Interest cost 29,072,583 27,201,888
Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss 67,721,589 (28,996,753)
Benefit paid (40,244,149) (21,434,303)
Liability at the end of the year 413,752,785 310,847,903
Actuarial assumptions
Discount Rate 7% 10%
Expected Return on Plan Asset 7% 10%
Future Salary Increase 5% 7%
Withdrawal Rate 8% 8%

12. Deferred Tax Asset/Liability

Interim Financial Statements are prepared and published on quarterly basis in accordance with NRB Directives in

compliance with statutory and legal requirement within the time frame as prescribed. Amount in NPR"000"

Particulars ‘ Book Base ‘ Tax Base ‘ Difference

Deferred tax on temporary differences on following items

Loan and Advance to B/Fls 5,809,652 5,809,652 -
Loans and advances to customers 141,436,049 141,686,599 250,550
Property & equipment 1,212,364 1,175,102 (37,263)
Employees' defined benefit plan 413,753 - 413,753
Gratuity 216,791 42,091 174,700
Provisions for investment 15,763 - 15,763
Lease expenses as per NFRS 153,460 - 153,460
Bond Issue Expenses Amortization (57,730) - (57,730)
Unrealized Gain 65,052 - (65,052)
Debenture issue cost - 5,016 5,016
Total temporary differences - - 853,196
Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) as on 32 Ashad 2082 - - 255,959
Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) as on 31 Ashad 2081 - - 154,282
Origination/(Reversal) during the year - - 101,677
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in profit or loss - - 63,101
Deferred tax.expense/(income) recognized in other i i 38576
comprehensive income '
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Detail of deferred tax through Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income Amount in NPR"000"
Opening | Recognizedn | oipevcompre. | lo2E
ensive income
Gratuity 17,109 35,301 - 52,410
Leave encashment 93,254 30,871 - 124,126
Lease Equalization Reserve 43,321 2,717 - 46,038
Actuarial loss (4,454) 4,454 -
Other 33,215 22,434 55,649
Financial assets held at FVTOCI 6,324 (1,595) 4,729
Debenture Issue Expense 1,144 361 - 1,505
Bond Issue Expenses Amortization (17,319) - (17,319)
Total of deferred tax assets 172,595 91,684 2,858 267,138
Property, plant and equipment (18,313) 7,134 - (11,179)
Total of deferred tax liability (18,313) 7.134 - (11,179)
Net deferred tax liability 154,282 98,818 2,858 255,959

13. Subsidized interest income and amortization expense of prepaid staff loan

An endowment life insurance policy is purchased by Bank for insured sum equivalent to the principal of housing loan.
The policy is purchased for a period of 21 years or remaining service period of the employee, whichever is earlier. The
employees pay insurance premium in respect of policy on monthly basis. Upon maturity of the endowment policy, the
proceeds/bonus are accounted towards settlement of interest and principal loan amount in a single installment. The Bank
has amortized prepaid employee expense of NPR 89,084,497. Bank has considered 7.6% as market rate for calculating
fair value of staff loans. Difference of fair value of staff loan and book value has been shown in other assets as deferred
employee expenditure.

14. Weighted Average Interest Rate Spread

The weighted average interest rate spread between Loan and Investment and Deposit & Borrowing Liabilities are shown
as below.

Particulars ‘ Annual Average %
Average Interest Rate of Loan 8.67%
Average Interest Rate of Deposit 4.75%
Average Interest Rate Spread 3.92%

15. Loans and Advances extended to Promoters

The Bank has not extended any loans to promoters during the year.

16. Related Party

16.1 National Fund Management Limited (National Fund)

The Bank has entered into financial transactions with National Fund having financial interest.

Related Party ‘ Nature of Relationship ‘ Nature of transaction ‘ Current Year
‘ National Fund Management Limited ‘ Representation in BOD ‘ Investment in Shares ‘ 90,000,000 ‘

16.2 Key Management Personnel
The related parties of the Bank which meets the definition of related parties as defined in NAS 24 Related Party Disclosures
are as follows:
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Key Management Personnel (KMP) are those persons having authority and responsibility of planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly including any director. The key management of the Bank includes
members of its Board of Directors, Chief Executive Officer, and other higher level employee of the Bank. The name of the
key management personnel who were holding various positions in the office during the year were as follows:

Name of the related party - Natwre

Machhapuchchhre Capital Limited Subsidiary Company
Machhapuchchhre Securities Limited Subsidiary Company
Mr. Roshan K.C BOD Chairman

Mr. Mukunda Mahat Director

Mr. Peshal Raj Pokharel Director

Mr. Anish Shah Director

Mr. Sunil Narayan Shrestha Director

Ms. Manisha Bhandari Director

Mr. Santosh Koirala CEO

Mr. Prasiddha Raj Aryal DCEO

Mr. Bishwambhar Neupane DCEO-Risk & Compliance
Mr. Suvash Jamarkattel DGM

Mr. Bharat Kumar Lamsal AGM

Mr. Tika Bhattarai AGM

Note: Mr. Hari Bhakta Sigdel has resigned from the position of Board of Directors (BOD) member. Subsequently, the
Board appointed Mr. Mukunda Mahat and Mr. Anish Shah as BOD members effective from 20 Mangsir 2081, as per Board
Meeting No. 514.

Similarly, Mr. Jaya Mukunda Khanal, Mr. Sunil Narayan Shrestha, and Ms. Manisha Bhandari were appointed as BOD members
by 26th Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on 28 Poush 2081.

Later, Mr. Jaya Mukunda Khanal resigned from BOD member effective from 4 Baishakh 2082, as per Board Meeting No. 527.

16.3 Compensation to Key Management Personnel

The members of Board of Directors are entitled for meeting allowances. Salary and allowances are provided to Chief
Executive Officer and other member of Key Management Personnel (KMP). Salary and Allowances paid to the Chief
Executive Officer is based on the contract entered by the Bank with him whereas compensation paid to other member
of KMP are governed by Employee Service Byelaw and decisions made by management from time to time in this regard.
In addition to salaries and allowances, non- cash benefits like vehicle facility, subsidized rate employees loan, termination
benefits are also provided to KMP. The details relating to compensation paid and expenses incurred to key management

personnel (directors only) were as follows:

Particulars ‘ Amount In “NPR’
Meeting Fees 3,503,500
Other Board Expenses 2,455,362
Total 5,958,862

The details relating to compensation paid to key management personnel other than directors were as follows:

Short term employee benefits 59,135,431
Post- employment benefits 8,737,318
Other long-term benefits 539,409
Termination benefits (Retirement Compensation) -
Total 68,412,158
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Post- employment benefits include Provident Fund and Gratuity. Provident Fund is deposited in an independent
institution and Gratuity is provided for as per actuarial valuation against which investment is made in an independent
planned asset.

Other long term employment benefit includes Home Leave and Sick Leave encashment over and above the
accumulation limit set as per Employee Byelaws of the Bank.

KMP also get accidental and medical insurance, vehicle, fuel, lunch and mobile facilities as per Employee Service
Byelaws of the Bank.

Termination benefits are employee benefits provided in exchange for the termination of an employee’'s employment
as a result of either an entity’s decision to terminate an employee’s employment before the normal retirement date
or an employee’s decision to accept an offer of benefits in exchange for the termination of employment.

Key management personnel are also eligible for the following benefits:
Benefits as per Employee Service Bylaws of the Bank.
Bonus out of profit as per Bonus Act.
Housing loans and advances as per Housing Loan Scheme of the Bank.
Vehicle facility.

Post-employment benefits include the retirement payments (gratuity and leave payment) to be made at the time of
retirement from service. However, since actuarial basis of accounting has been used and the amount to be benefitted
for each employee is not separately identifiable, they have not been disclosed in the amount mentioned above. Actual
retirement payment that has been made in this year has been disclosed above.

Total no. of Key Management Personnel as on Ashad End 2082 (including CEO): 6

16.4 Machhapuchchhre Capital Limited-Subsidiary of Machhapuchchhre Bank Limited.
The Bank has invested NPR 200 million in Machhapuchchhre Capital Ltd, subsidiary company of the Bank. Transaction
details with Machhapuchchhre Capital Limited is as follows: Amount in NPR

Balance as at 32 Ashad 2082

Fixed Deposit from Subsidiary 23,500,000
Call & Current Deposit from subsidiary 11,633,974
Transactions during the year

Interest paid to Subsidiary 30,530,442
Rent paid to the subsidiary 120,000
DP Service Fee 14,288,962

16.5 Key Management Personnel of Machhapuchchhre Capital Limited.

Key Management Personnel (KMP) are those persons having authority and responsibility of planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly including any director. The key management of the entity
includes members of its Board of Directors, Chief Executive Officer, and other higher level employee of the entity. The
name of the key management personnel who were holding various positions in the office during the year were as follows:

Name of the Key Management Personnel ‘ Designation
Mr. Bishwambhar Neupane Chairman
Mr. Prasidha Raj Aryal Director
Mr. Dip Prakash Panday Director
Mr. Sudeep Khanal Independent Director
Mrs. Sabita Shah (Thakuri) Independent Director
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16.6 Machhapuchchhre Securities Limited-Subsidiary of Machhapuchchhre Bank Limited
The Bank has invested NPR 200 million in Machhapuchchhre Securities Ltd, subsidiary company of the Bank. Transaction

details with Machhapuchchhre Securities Limited is as follows:

Particulars Amount in NPR
Balance as at 32 Ashad 2082
Call & Current Deposit from subsidiary 6,169,725
Bank Guarantee (BG) issued 20,000,000
Transactions during the reporting period
Interest paid to Subsidiary 1,883,180
Interest Received from Subsidiary (Loan against FDR) 1,662,768

16.7 Key Management Personnel of Machhapuchchhre Securities Limited.

Key Management Personnel (KMP) are those persons having authority and responsibility of planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly including any director. The key management of the entity
includes members of its Board of Directors, Chief Executive Officer, and other higher level employee of the entity. The

name of the key management personnel who were holding various positions in the office during the year were as follows:

Name of the Key Management Personnel Amount in NPR

Mr. Kamal Pokharel Chairman

Ms. Kalpana Shrestha Director

Ms. Indira Neupane Director

Mr. Prabhat Bhandari Director

Mr. Umesh Rajopadhya Subedi Director
17. Lease

Bank has been making lease payments for operating different branches and therefore as provisioned under “NFRS 16 -
Leases” Right of Use (ROU) is presented under other assets and Lease liability shown under other liabilities in Statement
of Financial Position. Similarly, finance expense is shown under interest expense and Depreciation on ROU is shown

under Depreciation and Amortization heading in Statement of Profit & Loss.

Particular Current Year Previous Year
Expenses relating to Rent not covered under NFRS-16 29,199,541 34,255,104
Cash outflow for Leases 238,432,629 226,025,716
Additions to ROU Assets (41,227,868) (77,296,613)
Impact on Interest Expenses 70,846,906 72,152,762
Impact on Depreciation Expenses 176,642,218 167,706,903

18. Merger and Acquisition of Subsidiary Company

The company has adopted conventional way of merger and acquisition and followed the same approach as recognized
by Nepal Rastra Bank. The company has followed the procedures for the business combinations as per NRB Merger
and Acquisition Bylaws 2073, company being the subsidiary company of the bank. Accordingly, the resulting difference
amount is transferred to share premium as per the provisions of the bylaw. The company has also measured identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed on cost basis and purchase consideration transferred at face value.

19. Events after reporting date

Events after the balance sheet date are those events, favorable and unfavorable, that occur between the balance sheet
date and the date when the financial statements are authorized for issue. Appropriate adjustments in the financial state-
ments and disclosures in notes to accounts have been made for all material and significant events that have occurred
between the balance sheet date and date when the financial statements have been authorized for issue.
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Where necessary all material events after reporting date have been considered and appropriate adjustments or disclo-
sures have been made in the Financial Statements as per NAS 10. There are only adjustments related to the subsequent
recovery of principal and interest up to 15 Sawan 2082 for 365 borrowers, resulting in a write back of the loan loss pro-
vision amounting to NPR 836 million. This has increased profit by NPR 527 million and Distributable profit by NPR 416
million after effect of Corporate Social Responsibility Reserve and General Reserve. Similarly, adjustment in LLP has been
done after bid received from bidders and loan has been settled amounting to NPR 166 million which has increased profit
by NPR 104 million and distributable profit by NPR 83 million after effect of Corporate Social Responsibility Reserve and
General Reserve. There are no other material events that have occurred after 32 Ashad 2082 till the signing of this finan-
Cial statement

20. Proposed Dividend

The Board of Directors has proposed 4% of cash dividend and 4% of bonus shares on bank paid up capital, subject to
approval from Nepal Rastra Bank and Annual General meeting.

21. Non-Banking Assets
Non-Banking Assets are the assets obtained as security for loans & advances and subsequently taken over by the Bank

in the course of loan recovery. Such assets are booked at fair market value or total amount due from the borrower,
whichever is lower.

Borrower or Party's Name Date of assume the Non-Banking Assets Amount in NPR

Cosmic Automobile 3-Sep-12 24,210,000
Saroj Pariyar 23-Dec-19 953,989
Mohan Bibidh Centre 23-Feb-21 7,500,000
Sharmila Alaichi Ta.Jadibuti Supp. 30-Mar-21 5,000,000
Liladhar Fresh House 13-Jun-21 867,449
Aadharsila Krishi Farm 1-Jul-21 1,404,629
Lalit Budha 3-Aug-21 1,075,162
Lalit Kirana Pasal 3-Aug-21 655,774
Matarani Trading Pvt.Ltd 13-Sep-21 72,941,412
Manakamana Silai Udhyag 28-Oct-21 1,950,000
Ram Prasad Bhattarai 17-Jun-22 6,178,942
Binita Construction 17-Jun-22 11,871,058
Kalika Computer & Suppliers 14-Jul-22 2,358,176
Shree Gauri Ganesh Traders 17-Oct-22 7,500,000
Deewakar Madira Bikri Kendra 20-Oct-22 8,015,599
Sudhakar Madira And Cold Store 20-Oct-22 4,886,535
Maa Janaki Nirman Sewa Pvt Ltd 20-Oct-22 36,000,000
Ananda Bakhra Farm 13-Nov-22 9,009,805
Ananda Trade And Suppliers 11-Jan-23 25,000,000
Kimganga Automobiles Pvt.Ltd 10-Mar-23 18,910,000
Siddhartha & Aradhya Itta Udhyog 10-Apr-23 25,125,195
Mahabharat Suppliers 14-Jul-23 7,300,000
Baba Auto Parts 16-Jul-23 4,927,350
Mukesh Kumar Singh Mahato 16-Jul-23 3,119,538
Shovakhar Furniture Udhyog 16-Jul-23 7,221,843
U.B Electronics 31-Jul-23 5,318,147
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Unique Gift Center & Electronic 31-Jul-23 7,681,853
Chimkeshwori Kirana 20-Oct-23 18,084,000
Pujan Karki - Tara Bahadur Karki

: - 20-Oct-23 7,650,000
Unique Suppliers Pvt.Ltd
New Rejina Shopping Center 10-Nov-23 2,750,000
J Plus a Fix Itta Udhyog 28-Nov-23 21,811,761
Gurkha Tea and Coffee Ind P.Ltd 10-Jan-24 66,000,000
Shikhar Deep Agro Pvt. Ltd. 14-Jan-24 132,825,000
Abhinas Rana 10-Apr-24 2,799,216
Nandani Readymade Pasal 12-Apr-24 2,464,628
Churamoni Limbu 7-May-24 2,276,494
Durga Automotives 28-Jun-24 10,035,000
Sona Devi Kirana Store

7-Jan-25 10,000,000

Ganesh Prasad Upadhyay Basautyal
Nabin Pudasaini 27-Jun-25 17,907,675
Total 594,364,388

22. Contingent Liabilities
Contingent liabilities related details has been presented under Schedule 4.28.
23. Earnings per Share

Earnings per Share is calculated using the earnings attributable to equity shareholders for the period divided by the
number of weighted average number of shares as required under NAS 33 Earnings per share.

Particulars ‘ Units ‘ Year ended 16 July 2025 ‘ Year ended 15 July 2024
Profit attributable to equity shareholders NPR 1,883,643,489 1,045,199,187
Used In computing basic earnings per share. | MO 116213573 116213573
Earnings Per Share (EPS) NPR 16.21 8.99
Diluted Earnings Per Share (DPS) NPR 16.21 8.99

As there are no potential ordinary shares that would dilute current earning of equity holders, basic EPS and diluted EPS
are equal for the period presented.

24. Unpaid Dividend

As on balance sheet date, total dividend payable amounts to NPR 49,452,075 (PY NPR 66,249,236). Details have been

presented as under: Amount in NPR
2079/80 5.61 5.61
2077/78 2.64 2.64
2076/77 12,148,174 12,844,518
2075/76 20,593,676 24,260,635
2074/75 16,164,273 19,122,990
2073/74 545,944 10,021,085
Total 49,452,075 66,249,236

Note: The bank had not distributed any dividend during FY 2080/81.
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25. Non-performing assets

The Banks' non-performing assets ratio stood at 3.96% (Previous year 3.86%) as at balance sheet date. The total non-

performing assets as at balance sheet date is NPR 5,825,861,873 (Previous year NPR 5,058,557,695) and loan loss provision

related to non-performing assets calculated as per NRB directives is NPR 4,073,136,809 (Previous year 3,048,241,834).
Amount in NPR

— " particulars | Thisvear Previous Year | Change Amount

Performing Loan 141,231,388 126,065,220 15,166,168 12.03%
Pass 129,293,264 113,037,923 16,255,341 14%
Pass loan (Restructured/rescheduled) 2,140,713 2,432,393 (291,680) -12%
Watch list 9,797,411 10,594,904 (797,493) -8%
Non-Performing Loans (NPL) 5,825,862 5,058,558 767,304 15%
Restructured/rescheduled 18,877 - 18,877 -
Substandard 1,324,147 1,773,701 (449,554) -25%
Doubtful 1,412,597 1,298,891 113,706 8.8%
Loss 3,070,241 1,985,966 1,084,275 55%
Gross Loans & Advances 147,057,249 131,123,778 15,933,472 12%

NPL ratios:
Gross NPL to Gross Loans & Advances :3.96%
Net NPL to Net Loans & advances 2 1.24%

Details of Restructured Loan

Following are the details of Restructured loan during FY 2081-82:

Principal Restructure 1,436,651,753
Interest Restructure 110,075,209

26. Capital Structure and Capital Adequacy

Nepal Rastra Bank has issued guidelines for implementation of New Capital Adequacy Framework under Basel Il
requirement in July 2015. NRB directed all Banks to adopt this framework and according to which Banks are to maintain
Capital for Credit Risk, Operational Risk and Market Risk. Accordingly, the following disclosure is made

26.1 Qualitative Disclosures

The Bank has developed its own internal policy, procedures and structures to manage credit, market and liquidity risk in
adverse situation and to make contingency plan accordingly. For the purpose, the Bank has developed Internal Capital
Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP) which acts as a guiding document for reporting the ongoing assessment of the
Bank's risks, how the Bank intends to mitigate those risks and how much current and future capital is necessary having
considered other mitigating factors.

26.2 Quantitative Disclosures

Capital Structure and Capital Adequacy

a) Tier 1 capital and a breakdown of its components Amount in NPR"000"
Paid up Equity Share Capital 11,621,357
Equity Share Premium 30,882
Proposed Bonus Equity Share
Statutory General Reserve 3,276,271
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Retained Earnings

936,366

Un-audited current year cumulative profit/ loss

Capital Redemption Reserve

1,567,401

Capital Adjustment Reserve

Dividend Equalization Reserve

Other Free Reserve

Less : Goodwill

Less: Intangible Assets

120,884

Less: Fictitious Assets

Less: Deferred Tax Assets

Less : Investment in equity in licensed Financial Institutions

Less : Investment in equity of institutions with Financial interests

400,000

Less : Investment in equity of institutions in excess of limits

Less : Investments arising out of underwriting commitments

Less : Reciprocal crossholdings

Less: Purchase of Land& Building in excess of limit and unutilized

40,889

Less: Cash Flow Hedge

Less: Defined Benefit Pension Assets

Less: Unrecognized Defined Benefit Pension Liabilities

Less : Other Deductions

200,000

Note: Other deduction includes investment in PEVC Fund (National Equity Fund 1) amounti
investment in PEVC Fund (Reliable Private Equity Fund) amounting NRs 100 M.

ng NRs 100 M and

Adjustments under Pillar Il

Less: Shortfall in Provision

Less: Loans & Facilities extended to related parties and restricted lending

Additional Tier 1 (AT 1)

Perpetual Non-Cumulative Preference Share Capital

Perpetual Debt Instruments

Stock Premium

Total Core Capital

16,670,504

b) Tier 2 capital and a breakdown of its components
Supplementary Capital (Tier 2)
Cumulative and/or Redeemable Preference Shares

Amount in NPR"000"

‘ As at 16 July 2025

Subordinated Term Debt 4,653,496
Hybrid Capital Instruments

Stock Premium

General Loan Loss Provision 1,896,702
Exchange Equalization Reserve 96,700
Investment Adjustment Reserve

Assets Revaluation Reserve

Other Reserves

Accrued Interest Receivable on pass loan included in Regulatory Reserve 99,986
Interest Capitalized Reserve included in Regulatory Reserve 80,337
Regulatory reserve for non-banking assets recorded within the last 24 months -
Other Reserves -
Total Supplementary Capital 6,826,679
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c) Detailed information about the Subordinated Term Debts with information on the outstanding amount,
maturity, and amount rose during the year and amount eligible to be reckoned as capital funds.
Amount in NPR"000"

Amount
O/s amount Issue Date Maturity Date | Interest Rate* eligible for
capital fund

0,
10.25% Machhapuchchhre 3,000,000 13-05-2076 12-05-2086 10.25% 3,000,000
Debenture, 2085
0,
8.5% Machhapuchchhre 2253496 24-04-2078 23-04-2088 8.5% 2,253,496
Debenture 2087

*Interest is payable half yearly basis

(d) Deduction from capital “Amount in NPR"000"
Particulars ‘ As at 16 July 2025

Intangible Assets 120,884

Investment in equity of institutions with Financial interests 400,000

Purchase of Land & Building in excess of limit and unutilized 40,889

Other Deductions 200,000

Total 761,773

Investment in equity of institutions with Financial Interests includes investment in subsidiary of the bank Machhapuchchhre
Capital Limited amounting NPR 20 Cr, Machhapuchchhre Securities Limited amounting NPR 20 Cr.

e) Total qualifying capital Amount in NPR"000"
Particulars | As at 16 July 2025

Core Capital 16,670,504

Supplementary Capital 6,826,679

Total Qualifying Capital (Total Capital Fund) 23,497,183

f) Capital Adequacy Ratio of the bank is 13.14%

(g) Summary of the bank's internal approach to assess the adequacy of its capital to support current and
future activities

The Bank assesses capital at different stages and variants. The Long term assessment is done through a 5 year's Strategic
Plan. The Bank devises 5 year strategic plan in every five years. The strategic plan clearly states the Bank's requirement
of its capital for five years to achieve the envisioned Business Targets and the sources of capital to fulfill the requirement
is also clearly forecasted. The annual assessment of the Bank's capital is done through the Annual Business Plan which
is formulated each year prior to the beginning of new Fiscal Year. The annual requirement of capital is clearly projected
and the sources to fulfill the said requirement is also clarified along with the action plan of responsible department and
personnel.

The major capital assessment is carried out at each quarter. The Bank shall prepare Stress test report and Internal
Capital Adequacy Assessment Report (ICAAP) as per the Stress Testing Policy and ICAAP Policy which is revised each
year. The Bank identifies the major components responsible to drive the published Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) and
also ensures whether the said components are subject to greater change. The Bank also highlights the measures to
nullify the components impacting the CAR and the measures that can contribute to boost the CAR. Further, The Bank
carries out stress analysis at different scenarios and present the impact on Capital. The major scenarios are highlighted
and likelihood of their occurrence is presented. In the case any scenarios are likely to occur, the Bank shall manage to
equip with preventive measures as well. These capital monitoring reports are tabled and discussed in Assets Liability
Committee (ALCO) meeting. Further, these reports are presented to the Risk Management Committee and the Board for
review and discussions.
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Further, the short term capital assessment is carried out on daily basis through daily MIS reporting. The daily change
in CAR and the Business space available/lost due to change in CAR is reported to Top management for review and for
decision making,.

The Bank at overall level has robust and prompt countering mechanism for assessment of its capital. The Bank has
developed mechanism of providing early warning signals in case there is likeliness of capital deterioration.

h) Summary of the terms, conditions and main features of all capital instruments, especially in case of
subordinated term debts including hybrid capital instruments.

Ordinary share capital: The Bank has only one class of equity shares having a par value of NPR 100 per share. Each
holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Bank, holder of equity shares
will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Bank after distribution of preferential amount. The distribution will be in
proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Debentures: The bank has issued two debentures. These debentures do not carry any voting rights. These debentures
are subordinate to the depositors of the bank.

Details regarding “10.25% Machhapuchchhre Debenture 2085":

Name 10.25% Machhapuchchhre Debenture, 2085
Amount of issue NPR 3,000,000,000

Interest Rate 10.25% per annum payable semi annually
Numbers of Debentures 3,000,000

Face Value NPR 1,000

Maturity Period 10 Years

Listing Listed with Nepal Stock Exchange

Details regarding “8.5% Machhapuchchhre Debenture 2087":

Name 8.5% Machhapuchchhre Debenture, 2087
Amount of issue NPR 2,253,496,000

Interest Rate 8.5% per annum payable semi annually
Numbers of Debentures 2,253,496

Face Value NPR 1,000

Maturity Period 10 Years

Listing Listed with Nepal Stock Exchange

i) Risk Weighted Exposure

Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk, Market Risk and Operational Risk is as mentioned below “Amount in NPR"000"
Particulars As at 16 July 2025
Risk Weighted Exposures
Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk 160,760,095
Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk 9,382,940
Risk Weighted Exposure for Market Risk 1,646,211
Total Risk Weighted Exposures (Before adjustments of Pillar Il) 171,789,216
Add RWE equivalent to reciprocal of capital charge of 3% of gross income. 1,890,175
Add: 3% of RWE added by supervisory Review 5,153,676
Total Risk Weighted Exposures 178,833,067
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“Amount in NPR"000"

Claims on government and central Bank 171,189
Claims on other official entities -
Claims on Banks 3,853,136
Claims on corporate and securities firm 83,905,631
Claims on regulatory retail portfolio 22,563,502
Real Estate loans for land acquisition and development 448,120
Lending against securities 2,531,967
Trust Receipt Loans for trading firms 984,577
Claim secured by residential properties 4,447,488
Personal Hire purchase/Personal Auto Loans 672,082
Claims secured by commercial real state 259,022
Past due Claims 6,734,630
High risk claims 9,890,737
Other Assets 9,140,568
Off Balance sheet Items 15,163,269
Total 160,760,095

Annual Report 2024/25 2 3 Q
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(ii) Calculation of Market Risk Exposure

Amount in NPR
Relevant Open

Currency Open Position (FCY) | Exchange Rate Open Position (NPR) Position
1 INR 2,226,636,925 1.60 3,564,289,057 3,564,289,057
2 usD 239,559 137.60 32,963,383 32,963,383
3 GBP 6,433 184.19 1,184,826 1,184,826
4 EUR 5,635 159.77 900,243 900,243
5 THB 38,920 4.22 164,242 164,242
6 CHF 28,430 171.52 4,876,355 4,876,355
7 AUD 17,870 89.75 1,603,839 1,603,839
8 CAD 10,499 100.28 1,052,806 1,052,806
9 SGD 6,570 106.82 701,807 701,807
10 JPY 1,794,827 0.92 1,654,830 1,654,830
1 HKD 24,590 17.49 430,079 430,079
12 DKK 5,650 21.37 120,741 120,741
13 SEK - 1412 - -
14 SAR 75,856 36.61 2,777,088 2,777,088
15 QAR 33,056 37.59 1,242,575 1,242,575
16 AED 62,622 37.39 2,341,454 2,341,454
17 MYR 39,258 32.28 1,267,248 1,267,248
18 KRW 591,000 0.10 58,391 58,391
19 CNY 135,289 19.12 2,586,731 2,586,731
20 KWD 2,207 448.87 987,851 987,851
21 BHD 724 364.24 263,528 263,528
22 OMR 1,381 356.66 492,369 492,369
(a) Total Open Position 3,616,849,296 3,621,959,443
(b) Fixed Percentage 5%
(c) Capital Charge for Market Risk (=axb) 181,097,972
(d) Risk Weight (reciprocal of capital requirement of 11%) in times 9.09
(e) Equivalent Risk Weight Exposure (=cxd) 1,646,180,567

(iiif) Calculation of Operational Risk Exposure
Amount in NPR"000"

Fiscal Year

2022/23 2023/24 2024/25

Particulars

1 Net Interest Income 4,878,044 5,372,400 4,988,193
2 Commission and Discount Income 1,354,170 1,396,773 1,361,142
3 Other Operating Income 95,050 70,075 79,966
4 | Exchange Fluctuation Income 216,651 280,407 230,383
5 | Addition/Deduction in Interest Suspense during the period 15,393 34,236 271,651
6 | Grossincome (a) 6,559,308 7,153,890 6,931,334
7 | Alfa (b) 15% 15% 15%
8 Fixed Percentage of Gross Income [c=(axb)] 983,896 1,073,084 1,039,700
9 Capital Requirement for operational risk (d) (average of c) 1,032,227 - -
10 | Risk Weight (reciprocal of capital requirement of 11%) in times (e) 9.09 - -
11 | Equivalent Risk Weight Exposure [f=(dxe)] 9,382,940

2% ¥ www.machbank.com
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SRP 6.4a (8) Adjustments under Pillar Il (If Gross Income for the last three years is negative)
1
2
3
4
5

1) Non-Performing Loan

Equivalent Risk Weight Exposure (g)

Equivalent Risk Weight Exposure [h=f+g]

Total Credit and Investment (net of Specific Provision) of related month
Capital Requirement for Operational Risk (5% of net credit and investment)
Risk Weight (reciprocal of capital requirement of 11%) in times

9.09

9,382,940

Amount in NPR"000"

Particulars Provision Net of Provision
Restructured/Rescheduled 18,877 2,360 16,517
Substandard 1,324,147 328,454 995,693
Doubtful 1,412,597 698,873 713,724
Loss 3,070,241 3,043,450 26,791
Total 5,825,862 4,073,137 1,752,725

Loan Outstanding
Particulars This Year Previous Year Change Amount %
Performing Loan 141,231,388 126,065,220 15,166,168 12.03%
Pass 129,293,264 113,037,923 16,255,341 14%
Pass loan (Restructured/rescheduled) 2,140,713 2,432,393 (291,680) -12%
Watch list 9,797,411 10,594,904 (797,493) -8%
Non-Performing Loans (NPL) 5,825,862 5,058,558 767,304 15%
Restructured/rescheduled 18,877 - 18,877 -
Substandard 1,324,147 1,773,701 (449,554) -25%
Doubtful 1,412,597 1,298,891 113,706 8.8%
Loss 3,070,241 1,985,966 1,084,275 55%
Gross Loans & Advances 147,057,249 131,123,778 15,933,472 12%

Provision
 particulrs ___ThisYear | Previous Year | Change Amount | % |
Performing Loan 1,896,160 2,046,603 (150,443) -7%
Pass 1,300,385 1,382,660 (82,274) -6%
Restructured/rescheduled 108,746 146,225 (37,479) -26%
Watch list 487,029 517,719 (30,690) -6%
Non-Performing Loans (NPL) 4,073,137 3,048,242 1,024,895 34%
Restructured/rescheduled 2,360 - 2,360 100%
Substandard 328,454 438,096 (109,641) -25%
Doubtful 698,873 642,316 56,557 9%
Loss 3,043,450 1,967,830 1,075,620 55%
Gross Loans & Advances 5,969,297 5,094,845 874,452 17%

26.3 Compliance with external requirement

Bank has complied with externally imposed capital requirements to which it is subject and there are no such instances
where the institution has not complied with those requirements.

27. Risk Management

Overall Risk Management Process of Bank has been disclosed in Significant Accounting Policies.

Annual Report 2024/25

¥




Qw3 aIffies ufdidicer 20Ta/TR

689'£65'9V5'861 | €LL'SLT'LS9'T8 - - - 9/6'LZE'688'SLL

- - - - sanijiqer] pajeulpiogns
90.'687'861'S 90.'687'861'S - - panssi $anLINas 193
€88'876'8€0'Y S§76'789'c0L’E - - - 8S6'cr'see sanjiqel| »s4y10
- - - - - - sanljiqel| xe paiiaseg
- - - - - - SUOISIAOId
- - - - - - S9MI|I0eIT XeL JULIND
LSS'08Y'EVL'T LSGS'08Y'EVL'C - - - Suimo.log
L06'6170'9LL V81 GCS'0C8LLE LL - - - 9/£'67T'798'C1L L SJawolsnd wodj sysodag
/877866 - - - - L8T'1786'6 SIUBWINIISUI [BIDURUL) BANRAIIRQ
- - - - - - yueg eaisey |edaN 01 ang
GGE'Y98'6/9'C - - - - GGEY98'6/9'C uonNIIISU| [eIdURUIH puUe jueg 01 ang
vL6'v96°€Sh'LLT | SYV'96L'ELL LTI €/8'v28's0T’9 S2TS'TLS'VTL'9 6v€'908'LV9'VL 02Z.L'79S°20L'29 Sjossy |[ejol
£10°191'957'¢ 69Ll'€Sl'ecT’e - GS0'ErS'TeE0’s - 878',00'cE sl}asse Jaylo
758'856'95¢ 758'856'9GC - - - - S18SSe Xe1 paJiajeq
796'€88'0C1 796'€88'0C1 - - - - s1asse 9|qidueiu| pue |[IMpoon
TE6'TLL LIPS L ze6'TLL LYS L - - - - juswdinba pue Ausdoud
88€'v9e'v6S 88€'79€'V69 - - - - Ayiadoud juswisanul
- - - - - - $91L1D0SSe Ul JU3WISAAU|
000'000°00% 000'000°00% - - - - SLIBIPISQNS Ul JUSWIISAAU|
786'6Cy'TrL 786'6CY'TrL - - - - S19SSe Xe) Jua.In)
8¢6'65C'€LS'SY £29'720'600'€E - - - LLE'SEC' YOS TL S9111UNJ3S JUaWIISaAU|
S06'8Y0'9cy’ LYl | 6£5'220'€8T'Z8 L€6'610'080'9 0€9'LEL'8C0'S 9ev'Tyy'068'CL L€9'££9'060VE SJaW03ISND 0} SedURAPEe pue sueoT
¥0£'159'608'S 1S6'S81'€09'S 9¢6'v/L'STL vZr'LL8'e 2LS'v0v'Se 150'019CC S|4/d 01 SesueApe pue ueoT
- - - - - s1asse SuipeJy Y10
- - - - - - SJUBWINJISUI [BIDUBUL) BAIIRALID(
75€e'656'LEL"L - - - 7S€'6S6°LEL'L - S.|49 Ylimuswsde|d
LLE207'9ZE’8 - - - - L£€'70T'97E’8 yueg esisey [edaN woly eng

60S'148'STL'L

605°148'SL'L

juajeainba ysed pue ysed

YdN Ul Junowy

3|iyoad Aaunie gz

IS
o
Q
E
[
©
Q2
<
[%)
©
E
-
S
w
»
o







Qw3 arffes UfdigeT Q0Ta/TR

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of Machhapuchehhre Capital Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the Machhapuchehhre Capital Limited (the “Company”), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at Ashadh 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025), and the statement of
profit or loss, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash
flows for the vear then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant

accounting policies,

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements presents fairly, in all material respects. the financial
F Ying ! ) I

position of the Company as at Ashadh 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025), and of its financial performance and its cash
flow for the year then ended in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS)

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our Report. We are independent of the Company in accordance w the JCAN's
Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Nepal, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordanee with these requirements and ICAN's Handbook of Code of Fthics for
Professional Accountants. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in the
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of the
audit of the finanecial statements as a whole, and in |.'=:-.‘I:III'I_L'\_ our |:||:|:_|'|i|||'_ thereon, and we do not p|.,}-..:.|::l|,' a
separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit
matters to be communicated in our report.

' S.N. | Keyv Audit Matters - Auditor’s Response
L. Revenue Recognition Cur audit approach regarding verification of process of [
The revenue of the company has to be recognized interest recognition included
on accrual basis. Revenue is derived fron |||"‘|:-|:
i | f a. Understanding and evaluating the controls

.III:E .I::IIII.I. s,

1
semvee offienngs Demng in

|"'-'"\- CESES OVET the -l.'l."'|:| ng nue 1N syYsiem

il in place for ma

commission income and other income
level a esses, We

‘s a part of our risk assessment, we have also assessed the revenue rec tion policies
considercd each individual revenue stream and adopted by the group for compliance with the
determined that a significant risk exists in respect relevant accounting standards.

of recognition of income under all material revenue
slreams, .!'H"I."Li.{ RTS fees, DP commistion ineomnse,
& .xi-c‘-:l'_\ fee, PMS fee, mutual fund scheme
management fee and other related fees. Revenue
may also be misstated due o errors in system

b. Obtaining the detailed breakup reve from
individual stream and reconciled the same with
general ledger and financial statements

We reviewed the contracts, wherever applicable to

18 or manual PrCesses,

ensure  whether revenue as per contract is

e -_|.'_I'|i.-'-. d or not

d. We performed risk-based target testing of revenue
journals posted into the general ledger which
included wentification of those journals posted to
revenue which did not follow expected posting
pattern

-] Information Technology General Controls Our audil approsch regarding Information technology
I'T  eoninols with respect i recording | ol the company is incl
mnsachions eencraling VATHILS et
[ compliance with SEBON guidelines and other e 4#aderstanding the eoding svstem adopted by the

2 ¥ < www.machbank.com




[ compliances to regulators is an important part of [ company for various categories of customers
the process. Such reporting is highly dependent on
the effective working of the information systems
usaxd.,

b. Understanding the feeding of the data in the svstem
and going through the extraction of the financial
information and statements from the IT system

We have considered this as key audit matter as any existing in the company

control lapses, validation failures, incorrect input

data and wrong extraction of data may result in

wrong reporting of data to the management,
shareholders and regulators

¢. Reviewing the reports generated by the system an
sample basis. We also verified the income booking
under various revenue stream on test basis with the
system.

Responsibility of Management and These Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with Governanece are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process,
! ) B I

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit condueted in
accordance with NSAs will alwavs detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatement can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the aundit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtained audit evidenece
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may invalve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purposes of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control,

+  Evaluate the appropriateness of aceounting polices used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the management,

* Conclude on the appropriateness of the management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditer’ report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concemn

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation

» Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are
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responsible for the direction, supervision, and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes pubic disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on the requirements of Company Act, 2063

We have obtained satisfactory information and explanations asked for, which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit; the returns received from the Company were
adequate for the purpose of the audit; the financial statements including the statement of financial position,
statement of profit or loss, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity, statement of
cash flows including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes have been
prepared in all material respect in accordance with the provisions of the Company Act, 2063, and they are in
agreement with the books of accounts of the Company; and the accounts and records of the Company are
properly maintained in accordance with the prevailing laws.

To the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, in the course of our audit, we
ohserved the business of the Company was conducted satisfactorily, and the Company's transactions were
found to be within the scope of its authority. We did not come across cases of accounting related fraud and
the cases where the board of directors or any director or any office bearer of the Company has acted contrary
to the provisions of law or caused loss or damage to the Company or committed any misappropriation of the
funds of Company

Aman Uprety
fartner

Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
Date: July 23, 2025

UDIN: 250728CADD4519€U54
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MACHHAPUCHCHHRE CAPITAL LIMITED

Kathmandu, Nepal

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT Ashad 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Particular Note 31/03/2082 31/03/2081
ASSETS
A. NON CURRENT ASSETS
Property, Plant and Equiptment 3.1 17,843,051 20,352,943
Intangible Assets 3.2 2,818,452 841,176
Financial Instruments Measured At Amortized Cost 3.3 -
Investment in Associates 3.4 69,281,656 69,868,628
Deferred Tax Assets 3.5 - 2,447,169
Trade & Other Receivables 3.6 400,000 400,000
Total Non Current Assets 90,343,158 93,909,915
B. Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 3.7 11,958,165 9,002,040
Financial Assets Measured At Amortized Cost 3.8 24,900,000 16,100,000
Financial Assets Held At Fair Value Through P/L 3.9 168,886,290 179,473,772
Advance Tax 16,497,379 13,467,704
Trade & Other Receivable 3.10 30,345,165 6,807,545
Total Current Assets 252,586,999 224,851,061
Total Assets (A+B) 342,930,158 318,760,977
Equity And Liabilities
C. Equity
Share Capital 3.11 286,339,500 286,339,500
Share Premium 1,102,804 1,102,804
Reserves and Surplus 3.12 26,426,574 10,487,501
Total Equity 313,868,877 297,929,804
D. Non Current Liabilities
Lease Liability 13,112,674 14,451,272
Employee Benefit Liability 2,263,306 1,975,838
Deferred Tax Liability 3.13 1,614,280 -
Total Non Current Liabilities 16,990,260 16,427,110
E. Current Liabilities
Short Term Loan - -
Employee Benefit Liability 3.13 2,895,229 -
Income Tax Payable - 54,398
Trade & Other Payable 3.14 9,175,791 168,095
Total Current Liabilities 12,071,021 4,181,569
Total Liabilities (C+D+E) 342,930,158 318,760,977

Bikash K.C.
In-charge, Finance

Prasidha Raj Aryal
Director

Sabita Shah Thakuri
Director

Date: 07 sharwan 2082
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal

Upendra Malakar
Chief Executive Officer

Dip Prakash Panday
Director

Bishwambhar Neupane
Chairman

Sudeep Khanal
Director

As per our report of even date

Aman Uprety

Partner

S.A.R. Associates
Chartered Accountants
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE PERIOD 2081/04/01 (2024/07/16) TO 2082/03/32 (2025/07/16)

INCOME

Revenue From Operation 3.15 58,099,070 42,381,206
Income From Investment 3.16 8,194,072 6,160,275
Net Gain From Financial Instruments-FVTPL 3.17 25,142,808 6,558,010
Other Income 3.18 1,073,774 1,350,339
Total Income 92,509,725 56,449,830
Operating Expenses 3.19 24,923,742 23,159,756
Employee Expenses 3.20 25,004,239 19,864,801
Building and Premises Cost 3.21 931,481 988,995
Administrative Expenses 3.22 10,230,310 6,429,481
Net Loss From Financial Instruments-FVTPL 3.16 - -
Interest Expenses 1,307,124 1,717,149
Depreciation 3.1 3,558,640 3,473,940
Amortization 3.2 801,432 412,616
Total Expenses 66,756,969 56,046,738
Profit / Loss Before Tax & Share of Result in Associates 25,752,756 403,092
Income Tax Expense 3.23 8,935,166 705,209
Profit (Loss) befor Share of Result in Associates 16,817,591 (302,118)
Share of Profit of Investment in Associate (586,972) 375,689
Profit (Loss) for the year 16,230,619 73,571
Other Comprehensive Income / (Expenses)

Actuarial Gains / (Losses) On Defined Benefits Plan -
Total Other Comprehensive Income / (Expenses) -
Less: Tax Expense Relating To Components Of OCI -
Total Comprehensive Income For The Year -
Profit/ (Loss) Attributable To Equity Share Holders 16,230,619 73,571
Earning Per Share (BEPS) 5.67 0.03
Diluted Earning Per Share (DEPS) 5.67 0.03

Bikash K.C.
In-charge, Finance

Upendra Malakar
Chief Executive Officer

Prasidha Raj Aryal
Director

Dip Prakash Panday
Director

Sabita Shah Thakuri
Director

Date: 07 sharwan 2082
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
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Bishwambhar Neupane
Chairman

Sudeep Khanal
Director

As per our report of even date

Aman Uprety

Partner

S.A.R. Associates
Chartered Accountants
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
FOR THE PERIOD 2081/04/01 (2024/07/16) TO 2082/03/32 (2025/07/16)

Particular 32/03/2082 31/03/2081
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit Before Taxation And Extraordinary Iltems 25,752,756 403,092
Adjustment For:
Depreciation 1,798,519 3,473,940
Amortisation 801,432 412,616
Less- Unrealised Gain (11,007,402)
Less- Realised Gain (14,135,406)
Less- Dividend Income (745,045)
Non cash inome and Expenses 26,257
Prior Period Income/Expeneses Adjustment 0 -
Income From Sweat Equity
Deferred Tax (Income)/Expense
Gain On Sales Of Assets 4052
Net Gains/(Losses) On Fair Value Through OCI -
Interest Income (8,194,072)
Interest Expenses
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes (5,698,909) 4,289,648
Decrease / (Increase) In Trade And Other Receivable (26,567,295) 19,302,533
(Decrease) / Increase In Trade And Other Payables (47,589) (4,381,927)
(Decrease) / Increase In Employee Benefit Payables 3,128,299 (943,886)
(Decrease) / Increase In Non-Current Liabilities (1,338,598) (1,099,136)
Decrease / (Increase) In Other Non Current Assets - -
Changes in Deferred tax Assets/Liabilites - -
Income Tax Paid - -
Net Cash Flow From Operating Activities (30,524,093) 17,167,231
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
(Purchase) Of Property, Plant & Equiptment (3,857,816) (6,417,100)
Change in ROU 1,760,121.00
Sale Of Property, Plant & Equiptment 50 -
Add- Dividend Income 745,045
Interest Income 8,194,072
(Puchase)/Sell of Investment Assets measured at Amortised Cost (8,800,000)
(Puchase)/Sell of Investment Assets measured at FVTPL (Net) 35,730,291
Investment In Financial Assets
Investment In Financial Assets - (10,910,750)
Net Cash Flow From Investing Activities 33,771,763 (17,327,850)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Decrease In CSR Reserve (291,546) -
Proceeds/ (Payment) From Loan - -
Dividend Paid - -
Interest Paid - -
Net Cash Flow From Financing Activities (291,546) -
Net Increase In Cash And Cash Equivalents 2,956,124 (160,620)
Cash And Cash Equivalents At Beginning Of Period 9,002,040 9,162,660
Cash And Cash Equivalents At End Of Period 11,958,165 9,002,040
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Machhapuchchhre Capital Limited

Kathmandu, Nepal
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Period ended 32 Ashad 2082 (16th July 2025)

1. Corporate Information

Machhapuchchhre Capital Ltd., (hereinafter referred to as MCL or as a Licensed Institution, or as a Company) is a Financial
Institution incorporated under Companies Act, 2063 (first Amendment 2074) on 24th September 2017 as a public limited
company with Registration No. 175859/074/075. MCL has obtained an operating license from the Security Board of Nepal
(SEBON) on 07th Magh, 2076 with License Number 051 as required under Securities Act, 2073. The Company is also
registered with Inland Revenue Department (IRD) with PAN No. 606877121. The Registered office of MCL is situated at
Kathmandu Metropolitan - Ward No. 11, JDA Complex, Bagdurbar, Sundhara and registered at Kathmandu Metropolitan
City on 29th Ashadh, 2077 with Registration No. 3823

Machhapuchchhre Kriti Capital Limited (MCL) changed its name to Machhapuchchhre Capital Limited on 10th Kartik 2078
by second Annual General Meeting and completed the name changed from Office of Company Registrar Office on 23th
Mangsir, 2078.

MCL, as a licensed Merchant Banker, has been providing Portfolio Management Services, Corporate Financial Services,
Underwriting Services and Depository Participants Services and, also a qualified institution investors licensed from
Securities Board of Nepal.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

2.1 Basis of Preparation

The Financial Statements are prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The accounting Policies are applied consistently
to all the period presented in the financial statements including the preparation of the Nepal Financial Reporting Standards
(NFRS) Statement of Financial Position.

2.1.1 Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS). The Financial
Statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 7th Shrawan 2082. These financial statements are also
prepared in accordance with the relevant presentation requirements of the Companies Act 2063 of Nepal.

2.1.2 Basis of Measurement

The Financial Statements have been prepared under historical cost convention basis except for the items that are
measured and presented at fair value as required by relevant NFRS as explained in respective notes. These financial
statements cover the reporting period from 1st Shrawan 2081 to 32nd Ashadh 2082.

2.1.3 Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards, except as stated,
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates and judgments. It also requires management to exercise judgment
in the process of applying the company's accounting policies. The company makes certain estimates and assumptions
regarding the future events. Estimates and judgments are continuously evaluated based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed estimates and assumptions. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are disclosed.

2.1.4 Functional and Presentation Currency
These financial statements are prepared in Nepalese Rupees which is the functional currency of the company. For
presentation purpose, all amounts have been rounded to the nearest rupee, unless otherwise indicated. Functional
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currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the company is operated and company's all
transactions including income.

2.1.5 Accounting Policies

Preparation of financial statements in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) requires the
management to make use of significant accounting policies, judgments and estimates that affect the reported amount
of assets and liabilities, income and expenses, and disclosures of contingent items during the reporting period. These
accounting policies adopted are used on consistent basis. Estimates are reviewed on continuous basis. Revision to
accounting estimates is recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised. The significant accounting policies
adopted, judgments and estimates while preparing these financial statements in accordance with NFRS, except as stated,
are set out in corresponding notes.

2.1.6 Impairment of Non-financial assets (excluding inventories, investment properties
and deferred tax assets)

Impairment tests on goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite useful economic lives are undertaken annually
at the financial year end. Other non-financial assets are subject to impairment tests whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that their carrying amount may not be recoverable. Where the carrying value of an asset exceeds
its recoverable amount (i.e., the higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell), the asset is written down accordingly.

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the impairment test is carried out
on the smallest parts of assets to which it belongs for which there are separately identifiable cash flows and its cash
generating units.

Impairment charges are included in profit or loss, except to the extent they reverse gains previously recognized in other
comprehensive income.

2.1.7 Property, Plant and Equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment are initially recognized at cost. Cost includes the purchase price and other directly
attributable costs as well as the estimated present value of any future unavoidable costs of dismantling and removing
items. The corresponding liability is recognized within provisions.

Freehold land and buildings are subsequently carried at fair value, based on periodic valuations by a professionally
qualified valuer. These revaluations are made with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount does not
differ materially from that which would be determined using fair value at the end of the reporting period. Changes in fair
value are recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the revaluation reserve except to the extent
that any decrease in value in excess of the credit balance on the revaluation reserve, or reversal of such a transaction, is
recognized in profit or loss.

2.1.8 Depreciation

Freehold land is not depreciated. Depreciation on assets under construction does not commence until they are complete
and available for use. Depreciation is provided on all other items of property, plant, and equipment so as to write-off their
carrying value over the expected useful economic lives.

Depreciation has been computed on SLM Method. The estimate useful lives for the assets are as follows:

Assets Life

Leasehold assets 10 years
Office equipment 10 years
Wooden furniture 8 years
Metal Furniture 10 years
Vehicles 7 years
Computer and printer 5 years
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At the date of revaluation, the accumulated depreciation on the revalued freehold property is eliminated against the gross
carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. The excess depreciation
on revalued freehold buildings, over the amount that would have been charged on a historical cost basis, is transferred
from the revaluation reserve to retained earnings when freehold land and buildings are expensed through the statement
of comprehensive income (e.g. through depreciation, impairment). On disposal of the asset the balance of the revaluation
reserve is transferred to retained earnings.

2.1.9 Leased Assets

When all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of a leased asset are transferred to the Company (a Finance
Lease), the asset is treated as if it had been purchased outright. The amount initially recognized as an asset is the lower of
the fair value of the leased property and the present value of the minimum lease payments payable over the term of the
lease. The corresponding lease commitment is shown as a liability. Lease payments are analyzed between principal and
interest. The interest element is charged to the statement of comprehensive income over the period of the lease so that
it represents a constant proportion of the lease liability. The principal element reduces the balance owed to the lesser.

When all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership are not transferred to the company (an Operating Lease), the
total rentals payable under the lease are charged to the statement of comprehensive income over the lease term. The
aggregate benefit of lease incentives is recognized as a reduction of the rental expenses over the lease term.

2.1.10 Intangible Assets

Computer Software

Purchased computer software licenses are capitalized based on the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
software. These costs are amortized over the estimated lives of 5 years.

Business License
Acquiring business licenses are capitalized based on the costs incurred to acquire the license for operation of business.
These costs are amortized over 5 years from date of business license.

2.1.11 Investments

Investments in debt and equity securities

Investments held for trading (FVTPL) are classified as current assets and are stated at Fair Value and government bonds
held to maturity are stated at amortized cost less impairment losses.

Investment property

When an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment property following a change in its use, any
difference arising at the date of transfer between the carrying amount of the item and its fair value is recognized directly
in equity if it is a gain. Upon disposal of the item, the gain is transferred to retained earnings. Any loss is recognized in the
income statement.

2.1.12 Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are stated at their cost less provision for impairment. The amount of the provision is
recognized in the income statement.

2.1.13 Inventories
Inventories are initially recognized at cost, and subsequently at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Net realizable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the variable selling expenses.

The cost is determined on first-in first-out (FIFO) method and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories
and bringing them to their present location and condition.
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2.1.14 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash equivalents, cash balances, call and current deposits at Bank.

2.1.15 Impairment

The carrying amounts of the company's assets, other than biological assets, investment property, inventories and deferred
tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any
such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. Intangible assets that are not yet available for use, the
recoverable amount is estimated at each balance sheet date. An impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are in the income statement.

2.1.16 Share capital
Financial instruments issued by the company are classified as equity only to the extent that they do not meet the definition
of financial liability or financial asset. The company's equity shares are classified as equity instruments.

2.1.17 Taxation (including deferred taxes)

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current taxes and deferred taxes. Income tax is recognized in the
income statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly to equity. Current tax is the expected
tax payable on the taxable income for the year using tax rate 30% at the balance sheet date and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years as specified by the Income Tax Act 2058.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.
The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected-on realization or settlement of the carrying amount of
assets and liabilities using tax rate 30% at the balance sheet date.

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilized.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are recognized at the same time as the liability to
pay the related dividend.

2.1.18 Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are stated at their cost.

2.1.19 Revenue

Revenue is recognized on accrual basis and is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. The
management of the company determines the amount of revenue based on the applicable service agreement. Fees and
commission arising from transactions are recognized on the basis of completion of underlying transaction as stated in
the service agreement. Accounting policies, estimates and judgments used by management for each item of revenue is
detailed below:

a. Underwriting Fee:
Underwriting Fee is recognized based on the recoverability of fee and non-refundability of fixed amount of fee.
Management estimates that recoverability of fee can be reliably measured at the date of issue.

b. Portfolio Management Fee
Annual Management fee and Performance fee is recognized as revenue as stated in the portfolio management
service agreement.

c. Corporate Advisory Fee
Other income is recognized when it is probable that consideration associated with the relevant event is confirmed
or realized.
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d. Depository Participants

Depository Participants (DP) related income is the fee for managing DP accounts of clients. All DP income is the
collection from clients for new account opening, renewal of accounts, on-market-transaction and other DP services
directly involving and collected from clients.

e. Interest Income
Interest income is recognized using effective interest rate method.

f. Other Income
Other income is recognized when it is probable that consideration associated with the relevant event is confirmed
or realized.

2.1.20 Expenses
All Expenses except specially mentioned are accounted on accrual basis.

All expenses incurred in running of the business and in maintaining the property, plant and equipment in a state of
efficiency has been charged to revenue in arriving at the profit for the year and presented in statement of profit or loss.

Expenditure incurred for the purpose of acquiring, expanding, or improving assets of a permanent nature by means of
which to carry on the business or for the purpose of increasing the earning capacity of the business has been treated as
capital expenditure.

Repairs and renewals are charged to the income statement in the year in which the expenditure is incurred. The profit
earned by the company is before income tax expense and after making provision for all known liabilities and for the
depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

Proposed bonus for staff has been provided for 10% of net profit before such bonus.

2.1.21 Bad Debts:

During the year, the company has written off certain trade receivables amounting to NPR 1,360,440, which were considered
uncollectible. These amounts were outstanding for a long time, and despite repeated efforts, no recovery could be made.
Therefore, they have been treated as bad debts and written off from the books.

Receivables ‘ Amount (NPR)
Aero Brikcs Company 648,875.00
Janakpur Hospitality & Entertainment Pvt. Ltd. 141,840.00
Nature Housing & Resort Pvt. Ltd. 18,750.00
Nepal Purwadhar Bikash Co. Ltd. 1,875.00
Hotel Glacier Pvt. Ltd. 100,000.00
Sundry Broker 29,099.61
Sindhuli Agro Company Pvt. Ltd. 420,000.00
Total 1,360,439.61

3. Other Explanatory Notes

3.1 Property Plan and Equipment
Tangible Assets NRS. 10,76,766.71 has been purchased during the year.
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3.1 Property, Plant and Equipment

Particulars

| Asat32Ashad 2082 | As at 31 Ashad 2081

Cost

Opening Balance of Accumulated PPEs 30,031,230 23,749,730
Additions during the year 1,076,767 6,281,500
Writeoff (23,916)

Disposal (4,102) -
Closing Balance of Accumulated PPEs 31,079,979 30,031,230
Accumulated Depreciation

Opening Balance of Accumulated Depreciation 9,678,287 6,204,347
Additions during the year 3,558,640 3,473,940
Disposal - -
Closing Blance of Accumulated Depeciation 13,236,928 9,678,287
Carrying Amount as at 31 Ashad 2081 - 20,352,943
Carrying Amount as at 32 Ashad 2082 17,843,051 -

3.2 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortization

and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is recognized on straight line basis over their estimated useful life. The
estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period. The following estimate

of useful life on each item of intangible assets is used by management.

Item of Intangible Assets Estimated Useful Life

‘ Software ‘

5years

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at costs less any accumulated
impairment losses. Intangible assets NRS. 2,781,049.37.00 have been purchased during the year.

An intangible asset is derecognized at disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gain or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset is measured as the difference between net proceeds
from disposal and carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in statement of comprehensive income.

The following is the details of intangible assets as at the period end.

Cost

Opening Balance of Accumulated Intangible Assets 2,191,257 2,055,657
Additions during the year 2,781,049 135,600

Writeoff (2,341.27)

Closing Balance of Accumulated Intangible Assets 4,969,959 2,191,251
Accumulated Amortization and Impairment

Opening Balance of Accumulated Amortization 1,350,075 937,459

Additions during the year 801,432 412,616

Closing Blance of Accumulated Amortization 2,151,507 1,350,075
Carrying Amount as at 15 July 2024 - 841,176

Carrying Amount as at 16 July 2025 2,818,452
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3.3 Financial Instruments measured at Amortised cost.

Financial Assets held to maturity are classified and measured at amortised cost. These financial assets are initially
recognized at fair value including direct and incremental costs and subsequently measured at amortised costs, using the
effective interest method, less any impairment allowances.

Recognition

The company recognizes financial assets when it becomes the party to contractual provisions of the instrument.
Recognition takes place on the trade date where the purchase or sale of an investment is under a contract whose terms
require delivery of the investment within the timeframe established by the market concerned.

Derecognition
Financial assets are derecognized when the contractual right to receive cash has expired or the company has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Off setting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position if
there is enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realize the asset and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Financial Assets held at amortized cost for investment in Fixed Deposits of various Banks and Financial Institutions are
mentioned in note 3.8.

Investment In MBL FD 23,500,000 15,000,000
Muktinath Bikas Bank Ltd. FD 1,400,000 1,100,000
Total 24,900,000 16,100,000

Financial Instrument Held Through Other Comprehensive Income (OCl)

Equity instruments that are held for trading are classified as Fair Value through Profit and Loss Account (FVTPL). For
other equity instruments, on the day of acquisition the company makes an irrevocable election (or an instrument-by-
instrument) basis to designate them as at FVTOCI.

Debt investments at FVTOCI

Financial Instruments are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income is calculated using the effective interest
method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive loss (“OCI"). On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCl are reclassified
to profit or loss.

Equity investments at FVTOCI

Financial Instrument are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as income in profit or loss unless
the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised
at OCl and are never reclassified to profit or loss.

The company considers Kriti Venture Fund Limited investment of 7 crores as equity instrument at FVTOCI and net gains
and losses are recognized in OCl and classified below profit and loss account with loss from investment of NRS. 586,972
and fair value of investment are given below and mentioned in in note 3.4.

Unlisted Promoter Share Investement - KVFL 69,868,628 69,492,939
Gain/loss on investement (586,972) 375,689
Total 69,281,656 69,868,628
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3.4 Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities

Deferred Tax is calculated on temporary differences on Accounting Base and Taxation Base for Deductible Temporary
difference and Taxable Temporary Difference using a tax rate of 30% (as per the Income Tax 2058 B.S.). Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are calculated where the management believes it is probable that these assets will be recovered.

Calculation of Deferred Tax for MCL have been shown as below:

Carrying

Deferred Tax As-

Particulars Amount Tax Base Difference Tax Rate set/(Liability)

Fixed Assets 10,980,834 9,022,508 (1,958,326) 30% (587,497)
Leave Provision 2,245,086 - 2,245,086 30% 673,526
Right of Use Assets 9,680,668 - (9,680,668) 30% (2,904,200)
Lease Liability 13,112,673 - 13,112,673 30% 3,933,802
Investments 168,886,289 159,786,589 (9,099,699) 30% (2,729,909)
Total 204,905,550 | 168,809,098 | (5,380,934) (1,614,280)
Opening Deferred Tax Assets/ (Liabilities 2,447,168
Deferred Tax Income/ (Expense) (4,061,449)

3.5 Trade and other receivables (non-current)

Non-current trade receivables are security and license deposits for normal business operation.

NON-CURRENT ASSETS As at 32 Ashad 2082 As at 31 Ashad 2081

LICENSE DEPOSIT 300,000 300,000
SECURITY DEPOSIT 100,000 100,000
TOTAL NRS. 400,000 400,000

3.6 Cash and Cash Equivalents
For the purpose of presentation in the statement of Cash Flows, Cash and Cash Equivalents includes cash equivalents,
cash on hand and at Bank. Payments and receipts relating to the purchase and sale of investment securities are classified
as cash flows from operating activities.

Particulars ‘ As at 32 Ashad 2082 ‘ As at 31 Ashad 2081
Cash In Hand - -
Gold & Silver Coins 15,950 15,950
Bank Balance at Mbl 11,633,975 7,795,259
Bank Balance at Other Financial Institutions 308,240 1,190,831
Total 11,958,165 9,002,040

3.7 Financial assets held at Fair Value through -PL.

Determination of fair value hierarchy for all financial instruments where fair values are determined by referring to externally
quoted prices or observable pricing inputs to models, independent price determination or validation is obtained. In
an inactive market, direct observation of a traded price may not be possible. In these circumstances, the Capital uses
alternative market information to validate the financial instrument’s fair value, with greater weight given to information
that is considered to be more relevant and reliable. Fair values are determined according to the following hierarchy:
Level 1- Quoted market price (unadjusted): financial instruments with quoted prices in active markets.

Level 2- Valuation technique using observable inputs: financial instruments with quoted prices for similar instruments
in active markets or quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in inactive markets and financial instruments are
valued using models where all significant inputs are observable.

Level 3- Valuation technique with significant unobservable inputs: financial instruments are valued using valuation
techniques where one or more significant inputs are unobservable. The following table shows an analysis of financial
instruments recorded at fair value by level of the fair value hierarchy:

%R
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Investment In Equities 88,606,445 105,660,966
Investment In Mutual Fund 8,884,456 18,219,744
Investment In Seed Money Mutual Fund 15,073,272 -
Debenture Investment 56,322,117 55,593,062
Total 168,886,290 179,473,772

Investment in debentures is recognized at fair value through profit loss during this year on account of decision of the
management that same will be held for trading purpose. Accordingly, interest on such debenture is recognized only on
realization as the unralized interest is reflected in fair value of the debenture as on reporting date.

3.8 Trade and Other Receivable
The current portion of Trade Receivables are those amounts recurring or receivable within 12 months' period. These
includes the following information:

Current Assets ‘ As at 32 Ashad 2082 ‘ As at 31 Ashad 2081

Accrued Interest Receivable on FD 6,829
Accrued Interest Receivables on Debenture

Prepaid Insurance 154,457 73,075
Stationery Stocks 33,363 39,366
Prepaid Computer and Internet Charge 73,198 300,516
Advances For Investments 1,039,940 1,039,940
Receivables From Other Parties 9,044,207 5,347,818
Promoter Share Advance (Nepal Infrastructure) 20,000,000

Total 30,345,165 6,807,545

3.9 Share Capital

Share Capital of MCL as on balance sheet date is NRS. 286,339,500. The company has increased its issued share capital
from NRS.31,48,32,000/- to NRS.336,870,000/- by second Annual General Meeting of company and same has been duly
approved from Office of Company Registrar Office on BS.2078/08/23. The share value has been treated as an equity
instrument. Additional disclosure on share capital treatment has been disclosed under business combination note 3.23.

Share Capital -
Authorized Share Capital
(4,000,000 Ordinary Shares Of Rs 100 Each) 400,000,000 300,000,000
Issued Share Capital
(3,368,700 Ordinary Shares Of Rs 100 Each) 336,870,000 336,870,000
Subscribed and Paid Up Share Capital
(2,863,395 Ordinary Shares Of Rs. 100 Each) 286,339,500 286,339,500

3.10 Reserve and Surplus
All accumulated profit less distribution is represented under reserve and surplus. Following is the table of reserve and
surplus.

Retained Earning 20,189,676 5,739,561
General Reserve 6,045,321 4,421,713
Provision For CSR 197,043 326,227
Total 26,432,040 10,487,501
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Appropriation from profit for the year has been made to General Reserve 10% of Profit and Corporate Social Responsibility
1% of Profit as per Rules 25ka and 30ka respectively of Merchant Banker Regulation 2064 (2nd amendment 2076).

3.11 Employee Benefits

Defined Contribution Plan

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment plan under which an entity pays a fixed contribution into a separate
entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined
contribution plans are recognized as an employee benefit expense in the statement of profit or loss in the periods
during which services are rendered by employees. Employees are eligible for Employees' Provident Fund Contributions in
accordance with the respective statutes and regulations. Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as
an expense in the statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Employees' Provident Fund
The company contribute 10% of the salary of each permanent employee to the Employees' Provident Fund managed by
government of Nepal.

Citizens' Investment Trust (CIT)

Those employees who do not have accounts in Provident Fund are facilitated with CIT accounts. The company contributes
10% of the salary of each permanent employee and the employees may also choose to deposit additional amounts to the
Citizens' Investment Trust according to their preference.

Staff Gratuity Provision

Staff gratuity provision has been created as stipulated by Labour Act 2074. The company makes a defined contribution
of 8.33% of the monthly basic salary of each employee and no other additional legal or constructive obligation will arise
other than this fixed contribution. Company transfers defined gratuity contribution of 8.33% to Citizen's Investment Trust
monthly to respective gratuity account of employee.

Defined Benefit Plan

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Company is liable to
pay retirement benefits i.e., leave under the Labor Act, 2074. The liability recognized in the financial statements in respect
of defined benefit plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation as at the reporting date. The defined benefit
obligation is calculated as at the reporting date based on an internally generated model as its impact is immaterial. Third
Party Actuarial Valuation is not made as the cost for defined benefits obligation is considered immaterial. No actuarial
valuation is used as the amount is immaterial.

Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Employee Benefit Liability (Current/Non-Current) As at 32 Ashad 2082 | As at 31 Ashad 2081

Employee Benefit Liability (Current)

Provision For Bonus 2,861,417 44,788

Salary And Perks Payable 33,812 9,610
Total 2,895,229 54,398

Employee Benefit Liability (Non-Current)

Leave Provision 2,245,086 1,957,618

Welfare Fund 18,220 18,220
Total 2,363,306 1,975,838
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3.12 Trade and Other Payable
Trade and other payable to be recurring and settlement within 12 months’ period have been represented and such are
payable occurring during normal business operation. Such have been shown as follows:

As at 32 Ashad 2082 | As at 31 Ashad 2081

Sundry Payable 239,603 258,738
Cds And Clearing Limited 900,938 1,524,712
Sebon Fee Payable 2,061,987 1,000,666
Advance Income Payable - 428,655
Tds Payable 3,600 344,402
Provision For Expenses 67,700 1,237
Tax, Duties and Service Charges 236,993

Provision For Income Tax 5,664,970 623,159
Total 9,175,791 4,181,569

3.13 Revenue From Operation
The following table summarizes the operating revenue recognized during the period.

Particulars | As at 32 Ashad 2082 | As at 31 Ashad 2081

Underwriting Service Fee Income 4,767,338 7,476,393
Income From Corporate Financial Advisory 7,374,890 5,970,918
Income From Portfolio Management Services 7,409,296 1,329,740
Income from Issue Management 650,000 2,358,746
Income From RTA/RTS Fee Income 48,000 -
Income From Mutual Fund Operations 6,345,080 -
Depository Participant Income 31,504,466 27,604,155
Total 58,099,070 42,381,2

3.14 Income From Investment

Particulars ‘ As at 32 Ashad 2082 ‘ As at 31 Ashad 2081

Interest From Debentures and Bond 4,900,567 2,872,470
Interest Income 196,338 192,184
Promoter Advance Interest Income - 241,020
Interest Income from Fixed Deposits 3,097,166 2,854,600
Total 8,194,072 6,160,275

3.15 Gains (losses) from Financial Investment
The gains from investment in financial instrument treated on FVTPL have been summarized as under:

Net Gains/(Losses) Of Financial Investments-FVTPL ‘ As at 32 Ashad 2082 ‘ As at 31 Ashad 2081

Income From Sale of Investment (Realized Gain) 14,248,226 3,819,734
Net Gains/(Losses) Of Financial Investments-FVTPL 11,007,402 -
Total 25,255,628 3,819,734
Net Losses of Financial Investments-Fvtpl

Loss On Sale of Investment (Realized Loss) 112,820 1,662,434
Net Gains/(Losses) Of Financial Investments-Fvt Pl (4,400,711)
Total 112,820 2,738,276
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3.16 Other Income

Particulars | Asat32Ashad 2082 | As at 31 Ashad 2081

Rent Income 240,000 240,000
Dividend Income 756,309 1,103,204
Miscellaneous Income 77,464 7,035
Service Income 100
Total 1,073,774 1,350,339

3.17 Operating Expenses
Operating expenses are those expenses which are directly related and incurred to make major business income. The
major business incomes are from DP, underwriting, PMS and Corporate Advisory Services.

Particulars As at 32 Ashad 2082 | As at 31 Ashad 2081
Dp Service Expenses 7,549,956 7,114,112
Dp Expenses to MBL 14,288,962 14,288,962
License Fee and Renewal Charges 585,000 585,000
Registration Fee and Application Charges 22,187 1,050
Sebon Fee Expenses 2,477,636 1,170,632
Total 24,923,742 23,159,756

3.18 Employee Expenses

Particulars As at 32 Ashad 2082 | As at 31 Ashad 2081
Salary Expenses 12,597,510 11,998,344
Staff Provident Fund 785,730 751,139
Gratuity Expenses 654,523 625,699
Annual Force Leave Payment 981,219 975,498
Dashain Allowances 943,106 1,054,973
Business Incentive Allowance 18,615
Other Allowances 2,111,164 1,953,102
Staff Overtime Expenses 133,469 78,381
Leave Encashment Expenses 736,978 862,454
Statutory Bonus 2,861,417 44,788
Team Building Expenses 604,006 255,324
Training and Development 45,000
Training And Development Expenses 652,284 301,130
Staff Insurances 262,652 187,876
Dearness Allowance 1,680,181 712,477
Total 25,004,239 19,864,801

3.19 Building and Premise Expenses
These are expenses incurred for office premises related rent, security and sanitation related expenses.

Cleaning Charges 24,623 37,712
JDA- Expenses 208,186

Medical And Supplies 8,936 7,765
Office Electricity Expenses 212,278 297,205
Security Charges 73,003 224,852
Security Guard Expenses 340,846 332,946
Water And Utilities 63,610 88,515
Total 931,481 988,995
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3.20 Administrative Expenses

Particulars | Asat32Ashad 2082 | As at 31 Ashad 2081
Advertisement And Publication 827,072 377,393
Allowance And Travel Expenses 1,058,234 251,936
Annual General Meeting Expenses 119,090 46,350
Anniversary Expenses 6,648
Audit Fee 113,000 146,900
Bad Debts 1,360,440
Bank Charges 6,663 10,600
Board Meeting Allowances 525,000 381,000
Board Meeting Expenses 35,300 25,710
Branding Expenses 383,160 302,500
Committee Meeting Allowances 318,000
Computer And Internet Charge 1,960,403 1,470,566
Electrical And Wiring Expenses 63,634 40,146
Festival Expenses 44,680 51,375
Fuel Expenses 285,517 245,708
Fund Management Quality Rating Fee 197,750
Guest Entertainment Expenses 1,360 7,755
Insurance Expenses 69,210 87,932
Legal And Advisory Expenses 39,550 33,900
Lunch Expenses 107,628 115,983
Audit Meeting Expenses 7,521
Audit Committe Meeting Allowance 192,000
Investment Committee Meeting Allowances 216,000
HR Committee Meeting Allowances 144,000
HR Meeting Expenses 10,577
Meeting Expenses 22,572 27,494
Office Expenses 8,450 24,143
Office Goods - 19,063
Office Tools And Furniture 10,650 18,650
Other Expenses 52,416 12,133
Membership Charge 20,000
Loss on Sale of Assets 4,052
Pantry Expenses 298,409 280,022
Parking Charges 9,465 12,121
Repair And Maintenance Expenses 95,951 120,457
Share Transaction Charges 484,336 329,647
Staff Outsource Service 446,596 990,342
Stationery Expenses 391,637 386,172
Software Expenses 381,086
Taxes & Duties 73,530 179,931
Telephone And Communication 53,000 52,100
Transportation Expenses 15,868 23,283
Vehicle Servicing & Cleaning Charges 87,854 40,169
Total 10,230,310 6,429,481
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3.21 Income Tax Expenses

Income tax payable on profit is based on the applicable provisions of the Income Tax Act 2058 and is recognized as an
expense in the period in which profits arise. Income Tax on the profit for the year comprises current and deferred tax.
Income tax is recognized directly in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it related to items recognized
directly in equity or other comprehensive income.

Current Tax

Current Tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted at the reporting date,
and any adjustment made to tax payable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax payable or receivable
is the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received that reflects uncertainty related to income taxes,
if any.

Deferred Tax
Deferred Tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred Tax has been calculated in Note 3.22.

Current Tax 4,873,716 -
Previous Year Tax -
Deferred Tax (Income)/Expense 4,061,449 705,209
Total 8,935,166 705,209

3.22 Change in Lease Accounting

A disclosure has been made for change in operating lease accounting to lease accounting in accordance with NFRS 16
lease, a lessee shall measure the Right-of-Use Assets and Lease Liability at the commencement date. Commencement
of the lease term is the date on which a lessor makes an underlying asset available for use by a lessee. Initially Right of
Use Assets shall measure at cost. MCL shall measure the Right-of-Use Asset by applying a cost model it applies either
of the revaluation models. MCL measures right of lease assets amount of NRS. 17,601,214 for which current year lease
depreciation expenses is NRS. 17,60,121 and accumulated depreciation on right of lease assets is NRS. 6,160,425 which
is presented in the schedule 3.1 Property Plant and Equipment of notes to accounts.

After the commencement of lease agreement, MCL shall measure the Lease Liability by:
- Increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability.
- Reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made.

MCL measure lease liability for amount of NRS. 14,451,271 initially for which interest experense has been recognized as
NRS. 1,307,123 and closing lease lease liability NRS. 13,112,673 has been identified as on balance sheet date. Whereas
right of lease assets with NRS. 17,601,215 has been established as per the agreement terms for which accumulated
amortization on right of lease assets with the value of NRS. 6,160,425 as on financial cut-off period from the initial date
of commencement of agreement and closing right of lease assets is NRS. 11,440,790 as on balance sheet date. MCL has
paid NRS. 2,645,723 to lessor as a rental service for the fiscal year

Right of Lease Assets 17,601,215
Current Year Lease Depreciation Expenses 1,760,121
Accumulated Depreciation on Right of Lease Assets 6,160,425.11
Closing Right of Lease Assets 11,440,789.48
Lease Liability 14,451,271
Accumulated Lease Interest Expenses 1,307,123
Closing Lease Liability 13,112,673
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3.23 Investment in Associates

A disclosure has been made for NAS-28 investment in associates for holding amount of NRS. 7,00,00,000/- investment in
promoter share of Kriti Venture Fund Limited for 21.28 percent holding investment of paid-up capital as on Ashadh 31,
2081. Investment and Income from associate entity as follows:

Profit/(Loss) from investment in associates holding with (NRS. 586,972) - has been charged as net income/(losses) on the
value of investement through profit and loss account and net investment holding as on financial cut-off period is NRS.
69,281,656.

3.24 Related Party Transactions

A person or entity is considered a related party if it:

- controls or has significant influence to the company.

- is subsidiary, joint venture, associates or in which the company can have significant influence.
- is member of key management personnel of the company or its parent.

(A) Nature of Relationship and Name of Related Parties
* Parent Company: Machhapuchchhre Bank Ltd.

Name of related persons:

Mr. Bishwambhar Neupane -
Mr. Prasidha Raj Aryal -

Chairman
Director

* Transaction with related parties

From the above related persons Mr. Bishwambhar Neupane is the member of the Board of Directors and HR Committee
and Mr. Prasidha Raj Aryal is a member of Board of Director, HR Committee and Audit Committee and Investment
Committee. They are entitled to meeting allowances as per the Articles of Association of the Company. The meeting
allowances per meeting per member of Board of Directors is NRS. 15,000 for Chairman and NRS. 12,000 as per the
approval from general meeting of company. No other benefits or allowances are provided to the board of directors.

(B) Related Party Transactions
Related party transaction with Parent company:
During the period, MCL has the following bank balance and interest realized from Parent Company as on reporting date.

Particulars

Transaction

Amount
(FY 2081-82)

Transaction

Amount
(FY 2080-81)

Nature of
Transaction

1 Current Investment in MBL FD 23,500,000 15,000,000 | Fixed Deposit

2 Bank Balance at MBL 11,633,974 7,795,259 | Bank Deposit

3 Rent Income From MBL 120,000 120,000 | RTS Operation

4 Interest Income from MBL 30,530,442 2,849,234 Intere;t on FD and call
(FD And Call) deposit

7 Service Income 30,264,240 27,604,155 | DP Service

MCL has paid NRS. 1,42,88,962.00 for as direct DP service business from MBL and received NRS. 1,20,000.00 as rental
service income from RTS operation of MBL during fiscal year.

3.25 Events after the Reporting Period
The Company follows NAS 10 - Events after the Reporting Period for accounting and reporting of events that occur after
the reporting period, which requires us to classify those events into adjusting and non-adjusting events.

3.26 Proposed Dividend
The board of directors through its meeting has proposed dividend 5 % (including Tax) from the financial performance of
fiscal year 2081-82, and subject to approval from Annual General Meeting.
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ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Independent Auditor's Report
To the Shareholders of Machhapuchehhre Securities Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the Machhapuchchhre Securities Limited (the “Company”™),
which comprise the statement of financial position as at Ashadh 32, zo82 (July 16, 2025), and the
statement of profit or loss, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements presents fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as at at Ashadh 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025), and of its financial
performance and its cash flows for the yvear then ended in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting
Standards.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Awditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Staterments section of our Report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
ICAN's Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Nepal, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and ICAN's Handbook of Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in the
audit of the financial statements of the current perod. These matters were addressed in the context of
the audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined that there are no any key audit matters to communicate in our report

Responsibtlity of Monagement and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Nepal Finanecial Reporting Standards and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether die to fraud or error

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so

Those charged with Governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Or objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
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includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists,
Misstatement can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+  [Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtained audit
evidenee that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The sk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purposes of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control

«  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting polices used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management,

« Conclude on the appropriateness of the management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going eoncern. If
we conclude that a maternial uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our anditor”
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the andit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
4% a going concern.

+« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the financial statements, ineluding the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlving transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

» Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the financial statements, We are
responsible for the direction, supenision, and performance of the group audit, We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governanee with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
h-il:l-t"',l.’,Ll':lt‘lI.\-.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes pubic disclosure about the matter or when, extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on the requirements of Company Act, 2063

Wie have obtained satisfactory information and explanations asked for, which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit: the returns received from the
Company were adequate for the purpose of the audit; the financial statements including the statement of
financial position, statement of profit or loss, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes
in equity, statement of cash flows including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes have been prepared in all material respect in accordance with the provisions of the
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Company Act, 2063, and they are in agreement with the books of accounts of the Company; and the
accounts and records of the Company are properly maintained in accordance with the prevailing laws.

To the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, in the course of our audit,
we observed the business of the Company was conducted satisfactorily, and the Company's transactions
were found to be within the scope of its authority. We did not come across cases of accounting related
fraud and the cases where the board of directors or any director or any office bearer of the Company has
acted contrary to the provisions of law or caused loss or damage to the Company or committed any
misappropriation of the funds of Company.

Aman Uprety
Partner

Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
Date: August 28, 2025

UDIN.: 250004 CA004514plzG
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MACHHAPUCHCHHRE SECURITIES LIMITED

Kathmandu, Nepal

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As On Ashad 32,2082(July 16,2025)

Particulars ‘ el B ‘ Current Year Previous Year
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1 10,829,503.50 8,107,624.43
Current Assets 2 156,905,142.05 131,561,576.12
Financial Investments 3 24,385,601.20 200,579,366.24
Total Current Assets 192,120,246.75 340,248,566.79
Non-Current Assets
Property Plant & Equipment 4 7,215,480.25 6,294,516.80
Deferred Tax Asset 5 821,749.97 -
Total Non-Current Assets 8,037,230.22 6,294,516.80
Total Assets 200,157,476.97 346,543,083.66
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Current Tax Payables 6 2,486.60 64,881.91
Sundry Payables 7 5,525,794.51 602,022.25
Overdraft Loan 8 - 148,931,484.24
Total Liabilities 5,528,281.11 149,598,388.40
Non- Current Liabilities
Non- Current Liabilities 9 2,167,695.64 -
2,167,695.64 -
Share Capital 10 200,000,000.00 200,000,000.00
Reserves & Surplus 11 -7,538,500.033 (3,055,304.74)
Total Equity 192,461,499.97 196,944,695.26
Total Equity and Liabilities 200,157,476.97 346,543,083.92

Schedules and Explanatory Notes forms integral part of Statement of Position

Jiban Kumar Uprety
DCEO & Finance Chief

Kalpana Shrestha
Director

Umesh Rajopadhya Subedi
Director

Date: 28 August 2025
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal

29% www.machbank.com

Purusotam Lamsal
Chief Executive Officer

Prabhat Bhandari
Director

Kamal Pokharel
Chairman

Indira Neupane
Director

As per our report of even date

Aman Uprety
Partner

S.A.R. Associates
Chartered Accountants
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MACHHAPUCHCHHRE SECURITIES LIMITED

Kathmandu, Nepal

STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS
For the Period From 1/4/2081 to 32/03/2082

Particulars ‘ el B ‘ Current Year Previous Year
Income

Interest Income 1,883,180.0 14,082,649.52
Commission Income 15,949,109.8 4,501,386.10
Capital Gain In Investment 0.0 524,189.82
Dividend Income 145,579.7 -
Unrealized Gain 2,725,340.6 -
Other Income 384,841.3 -
Total Income 21,088,051.4 19,108,225.4
Expense

Loss on investment 770,958.5

Operating Expenses 12 6,671,063.8 4,670,710.58
Employee Expenses 13 9,281,726.9 7,073,440.60
Administrative Expenses 14 6,523,974.0 9,877,455.07
Depreciation on Assets 4 3,145,273.6 1,781,787.31
Total Expenses 26,392,996.7 23,403,393.56
Profit For the Year (5,304,945.26) (4,295,168.12)
Staff Bonus

Deferred Tax Income/(Expense) 821,750.0

Corporate Tax -
Net Profit After Tax (4,483,195.29) (4,295,168.12)
Jiban Kumar Uprety Purusotam Lamsal Kamal Pokharel As per our report of even date

Chief Executive Officer Chairman

DCEO & Finance Chief

Kalpana Shrestha
Director

Prabhat Bhandari
Director

Umesh Rajopadhya Subedi
Director

Date: 28 August 2025

Place: Kathmandu, Nepal

Indira Neupane
Director

Aman Uprety
Partner

S.A.R. Associates
Chartered Accountants
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MACHHAPUCHCHHRE SECURITIES LIMITED

Kathmandu, Nepal

STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the Period From 1/4/2081 to 32/03/2082

Particulars ‘ Notes ‘ Current Year ‘ Previous Year
Net Profit/ (Loss) For The Year (5,399,419) (4,295,168)

Other Comprehensive Income
a) Iltems that are or may be Reclassified to Profit or Loss - -

Changes in Fair Value of FVOCI Debt Instruments

Cash Flow Hedge - Effective Portion of Changes in Fair Value

Exchange differences on translation of Foreign Operation

Income Tax Relating to Above Items
Reclassified to Profit or Loss

b) Items that will not be Reclassified to Profit or Loss - -
Changes in fair value of FVOCI Equity Instruments - -

Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment/ Intangible Assets - -

Remeasurement of Post-Employment Benefit Obligations - -

Share of other comprehensive income of associates accounted for - -
using the equity method

Income Tax Relating to Above Items - -

c) Share of other comprehensive income of associates account-
ed for using the equity method

Total Other Comprehensive Income For the Year, Net of Tax - -
Total Comprehensive Income For the Year, Net of Tax (5,399,419) (4,295,168)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

As per our report of even date

Jiban Kumar Uprety Purusotam Lamsal Kamal Pokharel
DCEO & Finance Chief Chief Executive Officer Chairman

Aman Uprety
Kalpana Shrestha Prabhat Bhandari Indira Neupane Partner
Director Director Director

S.A.R. Associates
Chartered Accountants

Umesh Rajopadhya Subedi
Director

Date: 28 August 2025
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
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MACHHAPUCHCHHRE SECURITIES LIMITED

Kathmandu, Nepal

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Period From 1/4/2081 to 32/03/2082

Particulars ‘
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Current Year

203 arffies ufidcer Q0Ta/TR

Previous Year

Net profit before Income Tax During the year

(4,483,195.29)

(4,295,168.12)

Adjustment for non cash items:

Depreciation and Amortization Expenses

3,145,273.56

Total Cash Profit

(1,337,921.73)

(4,295,168.12)

Adjustment for Changes in Working Capital

(Increase)/Decrease in Current Assets

(25,343,565.93)

-152754369.7

Increase / Decrease in Current Liabilities

4,861,376.95

22,925,943.91

Deferred Tax adjustment

(821,749.97)

ROU Asset adjustment (1,709,269.75) 20230.06
A Net Cash flow From Operating Activities (24,351,130.43) (134,103,363.88)
B. Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities 176,004,493.06 (27,718,696.37)
Purchase of Fixed Assets (189,271.98) -7,023,485.21

Fixed Deposit at MBL Lazimpat

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Issue of Share Capital

Investment in share

176,193,765.04

-20,555,007.16

Loss on sale of assets

(140,204.00)

Dividend Received

C. Net Cash Flow From Financing Activities

(148,931,484.24)

148,931,484.24

Overdraft Loan

Changes in Cash and Cash Equivalent During the Year(A+B+C) 2,721,879.07 (12,890,576.01)
Cash & Cash Equivalent at the beginnings 8,107,624.43 20863779.14
Cash & Cash Equivalent as at the end of the year 10,829,503.50 8,107,624.43

Schedules and Explanatory Notes forms integral part of Statement of Position

Kamal Pokharel As per our report of even date

Chairman

Purusotam Lamsal
Chief Executive Officer

Jiban Kumar Uprety
DCEO & Finance Chief

Aman Uprety
Partner

Kalpana Shrestha
Director

Prabhat Bhandari
Director

Indira Neupane

Director
S.A.R. Associates

Chartered Accountants

Umesh Rajopadhya Subedi
Director

Date: 28 August 2025
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
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MACHHAPUCHCHHRE SECURITIES LIMITED

Kathmandu, Nepal

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the Period From 1/4/2081 to 32/03/2082

Particulars ‘ Share Capital ‘ Retained Earning ‘ General Resrve ‘ Total
Balance as on 01.04.2081 20,000,000.00 (3,203,481.08) 148,176.34 | 196,944,695.26
Additional Share Capital -
Net Profit /(loss) during the year

Transfer to/from Reserve

Balanance as on 31.03.2081 20,000,000.00 (3,203,481.08) 148,176.34 16,944,695.26
Adjustment: -
Fixed Deposit 180,000,000.00 180,000,000.00
Net Profit /(loss) during the year (4,483,195.29) (4,483,195.29)
Transfer to/from Reserve 448,319.53 (448,319.53) -
Balanance as on 31.03.2082 20,000,000.00 172,761,643.16 (151,966.85) 192,461,499.97

Schedules and Explanatory Notes forms integral part of Statement of Position

As per our report of even date

Jiban Kumar Uprety Purusotam Lamsal Kamal Pokharel
DCEO & Finance Chief Chief Executive Officer Chairman

Aman Uprety
Kalpana Shrestha Prabhat Bhandari Indira Neupane Partner
Director Director Director

S.A.R. Associates
Chartered Accountants

Umesh Rajopadhya Subedi
Director

Date: 28 August 2025
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
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MACHHAPUCHCHHRE SECURITIES LIMITED

Kathmandu, Nepal

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR FY 2081/082(2024/25)

Schedule 1: Cash and Cash Equivalent
Particulars

Current Year

Previous year

Cashin hand 26,908.60 22,914.00

Cash at Bank

MBL- Current Account 6,169,725.35 5,925,446.90

Prabhu Bank 4,632,869.55 2,159,263.53
10,802,594.90 8,084,710.43

Total 10,829,503.50 8,107,624.43

Schedule 2: Current Assets

Particulars Current Year Previous year
Advance Tax 5,659,850.98 2,932,102.76
Account Receivables 147,246,956.40 110,137,884.17
Employee Loan & Advance 3,249,285.19 3,069,939.92
TDS receivables 29,049.48 21,796.37
NEPSE Receivables 14,439,852.90
Other Receivables 720,000.00 960,000.00
Total 156,905,142.05 131,561,576.12

Particulars

Schedule 3: Financial Investments

Current Year

Previous year

Fixed Deposit with MBL-Lazimpat

180,000,000.00

Investment In shares

24,385,601.20

20,579,366.24

Total

24,385,601.20

200,579,366.24

Purusotam Lamsal
Chief Executive Officer

Jiban Kumar Uprety
DCEO & Finance Chief

Kamal Pokharel
Chairman

As per our report of even date

Aman Uprety

Kalpana Shrestha
Director

Umesh Rajopadhya Subedi
Director

Date: 28 August 2025
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal

Prabhat Bhandari
Director

Indira Neupane Partner

Director
S.A.R. Associates

Chartered Accountants
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Schedule 5: Deferred Tax

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Deferred Tax Asset 821,749.97
Deferred Tax Asset 821,749.97 -

Schedule 6: Current Tax Payables

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
TDS on Audit Fee 1,500.00
TDs on Board Fee - -
Salary Tax - 47,974.93
Corporate tax payable -

TDS Payble 2,486.60 15,406.98
Total 2,486.60 64,881.91

Schedule 7: Sundry Payables

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Provision for Audit fees - 111,500.00
Payable to Machhapuchchhre Bank Limited - 425,286.28

Payable to SSF & CIT - -
Provision for staff bonus - i

Sebon Payable 111,844.90 27,010.11
Sundry Creditors 8,489.56 38,225.86
Aduti Fee Payable 111,500.00 -
NEPSE Payables 3,074,053.25 -
Other Payable 2,219,906.80 -
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Machhapuchhre Bank Overdraft Loan 148,931,484.24
Total - 148,931,484.24

Schedule 9:Non Current Liabilities

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Lease Liability 2,167,695.64 -
Total 2,167,695.64 -
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Authorised Share Capital 200,000,000.00 200,000,000.00
Issued Share Capital 200,000,000.00 200,000,000.00
Paid up Capital 200,000,000.00 200,000,000.00
Total 200,000,000.00 200,000,000.00

Schedule 11: Reserve and Surplus

Retained Earning

Accumulated Profit/(Loss) Up-to Last Year (3,203,481.08) 1,091,687.04
Profit/(Loss ) for Current Year net of general reserve (4,034,875.76) (4,295,168.12)
Total (7,238,356.84) (3,203,481.08)
General Reserve

Opening balance 148,176.34 148,176.34
Addition During the FY (448,319.53)

Loss on assets - -
Total (300,143.19) 148,176.34
Total Reserve and Surplus (7,538,500.03) (3,055,304.74)
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Schedule 12: Operating Expenses

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Membership fees for SEBON 25,000.00 -
Membership fees for CDS& Clearing 25,000.00 -
Application Fee Expenses 22,595.00 35,591.28
Nepse membership 10,000.00 -
Nepse Monthly Fee Expenses 300,000.00 302,000.00
License Fee Expenses 150,000.00 250,000.00
Hosting & Support Fee 2,800,000.00 2,972,182.50
Registration & Renewal Expenses 32,950.00 133,650.00
Software Development Expenses 20,000.00 50,000.00
Nepse Comission Expenses 3,285,518.76 927,286.80
Total 6,671,063.76 4670710.58

Schedule 13: Employee Expenses
Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Salary Expenses 7,086,723.41 5,455,265.94
Dashain Allowance 591,104.00 157,550.00
Social Security Fund 947,066.15 999,490.16
Employee Insurance 91,118.32 107,979.50
Force Leave Salary Expenses 565,715.00 353,155.00
Total 9,281,726.88 7.073,440.60

Schdule 14: Administrative and Office Expenses

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Board Meeting Fees 502,000.00 362,000.00
Board meeting Expenses 75,485.00 19,378.00
Consultancy Expenses 611,426.42 221,910.26
Fuel Expenses 325,180.74 290,998.00
Printing and Stationery Expenses 50,064.35 61,351.10
Telephone and mobile expenses 49,620.00 21,673.00
Audit Fees Expenses 113,000.00 113,000.00
Repair and maintenance 10,681.00 71,519.48
Bank & BG Charge Expenses 244,704.14 391,413.00
Annual General Meeting Expenses 82,425.00 50,397.00
Company Opening Ceremony Expenses 244,441.55
Electricity Expenses 118,480.00 104,939.20
House Rent Expenses - 1,930,500.00
Internet Expenses 296,896.20 296,105.20
Miscelleneous Expenses 200,211.24 6,685.00
Office Expenses 138,999.01 166,276.99
Parking Expenses 140,140.00 107,895.00
Annual Maintenance Expesnes 391,428.34 17,138.32
Transportation Expenses 5,017.00
Cleaning Expenses 10,215.00 12,810.00
Water Expenses 43,470.00 30,475.00
Festival Expenses 39,590.00 21,250.00
Wastage Expenses 3,000.00 3,000.00
Bussiness Promotion Expenses 72,503.00 98,569.90
Insurance Expesnes 22,849.49 6,167.20
Overdraft Interest Expenses 1,662,768.34 4,005,983.99
Website Design & Hosting Expenses 71,755.00
Training Expenses 5,000.00 5,650.00
TADA Expenses 12,400.00 49,995.00
Guest & Entertainment Expenses 10,631.39
Loss on Assets 140,203.61
Lease - Finance Cost 234,730.25

Outsource services 1,066,706.44 938,325.88

Total

6,523,973.96

9,877,455.07

2<% wwwmachbank.com
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Machhapuchchhre Securities Limited
Kathmandu, Nepal

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Period ended 32nd Ashad 2082 (16th July 2025)

1. Corporate Information

Machhapuchchhre Securities Ltd., (hereinafter referred to as MSL or as a Licensed Institution, or as a Company) is a
Financial Institution incorporated under Companies Act, 2063 (first Amendment 2074) on Shrawan 2076 as a public
limited company. MSL has obtained an operating license from the Security Board of Nepal (SEBON) on 23rd Jestha,
2080 with and has also obtained licenses from Nepal Stock Exchange Limited on 19th Shrawan 2080 and CDS Limited
on 24th Ashwin 2080 as required under Securities Act, 2073. The Company is also registered with Inland Revenue
Department (IRD) with PAN No. 609579561. The Registered office of MSL is situated at Kathmandu Metropolitan -
Ward No. 11, Jamal, Kathmandu.

MSL, as a licensed Security Broker, has been acting as an intermediary between investors and financial markets,
along with purchasing and selling the securities on behalf of clients effectively and has been providing Portfolio
Management Services, Depository Participants Services.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

2.1 Basis of Preparation

The Financial Statements are prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The accounting Policies are applied
consistently to all the period presented in the financial statements including the preparation of the Nepal Financial
Reporting Standards (NFRS) Statement of Financial Position.

2.1.1 Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS).
The Financial Statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 12 Bhadra 2082. These financial
statements are also prepared in accordance with the relevant presentation requirements of the Companies Act 2063
of Nepal.

2.1.2 Basis of Measurement

The Financial Statements have been prepared under historical cost convention basis except for the items that are
measured and presented at fair value as required by relevant NFRS as explained in respective notes. These financial
statements cover the reporting period from 1st Shrawan 2081 to 32nd Ashadh 2082.

2.1.3 Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards, except as stated,
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates and judgments. It also requires management to exercise
judgment in the process of applying the company's accounting policies. The company makes certain estimates and
assumptions regarding the future events. Estimates and judgments are continuously evaluated based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. In the future, actual result may differ from these estimates and assumptions. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are disclosed.

2.1.4 Functional and Presentation Currency

These financial statements are prepared in Nepalese Rupees which is the functional currency of the company. For
presentation purpose, all amounts have been rounded to the nearest rupee, unless otherwise indicated. Functional
currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the company is operated and company's all
transactions including income.
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2.1.5 Accounting Policies

Preparation of financial statements in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) requires the
management to make use of significant accounting policies, judgments and estimates that affect the reported amount
of assets and liabilities, income and expenses, and disclosures of contingent items during the reporting period. These
accounting policies adopted are used on consistent basis. Estimates are reviewed on continuous basis. Revision
to accounting estimates is recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised. The significant accounting
policies adopted, judgments and estimates while preparing these financial statements in accordance with NFRS,
except as stated, are set out in corresponding notes.

2.1.6 Impairment of Non-financial assets (excluding inventories, investment properties
and deferred tax assets)

Impairment tests on goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite useful economic lives are undertaken
annually at the financial year end. Other non-financial assets are subject to impairment tests whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amount may not be recoverable. Where the carrying value of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount (i.e., the higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell), the asset is
written down accordingly.

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the impairment test is carried
out on the smallest parts of assets to which it belongs for which there are separately identifiable cash flows and its
cash generating units. Impairment charges are included in profit or loss, except to the extent they reverse gains
previously recognized in other comprehensive income.

2.1.7 Property, Plant and Equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment are initially recognized at cost. Cost includes the purchase price and other
directly attributable costs as well as the estimated present value of any future unavoidable costs of dismantling and
removing items. The corresponding liability is recognized within provisions.

2.1.8 Depreciation
Depreciation is provided on all items of property, plant, and equipment so as to write-off their carrying value over
the expected useful economic lives.

Depreciation has been computed on diminishing balance method as perincome Tax Act 2058. The rate of depreciation
for property, plant and equipment for intangible assets are as follow:

Assets ‘ Rate
Office equipment 25%
Furniture and Fixtures 25%
Vehicles 20%
Plant and Machinery 15%
Intangible and Leasehold 20%

2.1.9 Leased Assets

When all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of a leased asset are transferred to the Company (a Finance
Lease), the asset is treated as if it had been purchased outright. The amount initially recognized as an asset is the
lower of the fair value of the leased property and the present value of the minimum lease payments payable over
the term of the lease. The corresponding lease commitment is shown as a liability. Lease payments are analyzed
between principal and interest. The interest element is charged to the statement of comprehensive income over the
period of the lease so that it represents a constant proportion of the lease liability. The principal element reduces the
balance owed to the lesser.

4%  www.machbank.com
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When all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership are not transferred to the company (an Operating Lease), the
total rentals payable under the lease are charged to the statement of comprehensive income over the lease term.
The aggregate benefit of lease incentives is recognized as a reduction of the rental expenses over the lease term.

2.1.10 Intangible Assets

Computer Software

Purchased computer software licenses are capitalized based on the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
software. These costs are amortized over the estimated lives of 5 years.

2.1.11 Investments

Investments in debt and equity securities

Investments held for trading (FVTPL) are classified as current assets and are stated at Fair Value and government
bonds held to maturity are stated at amortized cost less impairment losses.

2.1.12 Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are stated at their cost less provision for impairment. The amount of the provision is
recognized in the income statement.

2.1.13 Inventories

Inventories are initially recognized at cost, and subsequently at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Net
realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the variable selling expenses.
The cost is determined on first-in first-out (FIFO) method and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the
inventories and bringing them to their present location and condition.

2.1.14 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash equivalents, cash balances, call and current deposits at Bank.

2.1.15 Impairment

The carrying amounts of the company's assets, other than biological assets, investment property, inventories
and deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. Intangible assets that are
not yet available for use, the recoverable amount is estimated at each balance sheet date. An impairment loss is
recognised when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are in the
income statement.

2.1.16 Share capital
Financial instruments issued by the company are classified as equity only to the extent that they do not meet the
definition of financial liability or financial asset. The company's equity shares are classified as equity instruments.

2.1.17 Taxation (including deferred taxes)

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current taxes and deferred taxes. Income tax is recognized
in the income statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly to equity. Current tax is
the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year using tax rate 30% at the balance sheet date and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years as specified by the Income Tax Act 2058.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation
purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected-on realization or settlement of the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities using tax rate 30% at the balance sheet date.

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilized.
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Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are recognized at the same time as the liability
to pay the related dividend.

2.1.18 Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are stated at their cost.

2.1.19 Revenue

Revenue is recognized on accrual basis and is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.
The management of the company determines the amount of revenue based on the applicable service agreement.
Fees and commission arising from transactions are recognized on the basis of completion of underlying transaction
as stated in the service agreement. Accounting policies, estimates and judgments used by management for each item
of revenue is detailed below:

a. Commission Income

A brokerage company earns its primary income through commissions, which are fees charged for facilitating
transactions between buyers and sellers of securities. This commission is typically a percentage of the trade value or
a flat fee per transaction, depending on the agreement and market practices.

b. Interest Income
Interest income is recognized using effective interest rate method.

c. Other Income
Other income is recognized when it is probable that consideration associated with the relevant event is confirmed
or realized.

2.1.20 Expenses
All Expenses except specially mentioned are accounted on accrual basis.

All expenses incurred in running of the business and in maintaining the property, plant and equipment in a state of
efficiency has been charged to revenue in arriving at the profit for the year and presented in statement of profit or
loss.

Expenditure incurred for the purpose of acquiring, expanding, or improving assets of a permanent nature by means
of which to carry on the business or for the purpose of increasing the earning capacity of the business has been
treated as capital expenditure.

Repairs and renewals are charged to the income statement in the year in which the expenditure is incurred. The
profit earned by the company is before income tax expense and after making provision for all known liabilities and
for the depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

3. Notes of Accounts

During the year, the company has written off certain trade receivables amounting to NPR 1,360,440, which were
considered uncollectible. These amounts were outstanding for a long time, and despite repeated efforts, no recovery
could be made. Therefore, they have been treated as bad debts and written off from the books.

3.1.1. Paid up Share Capital

Promoted of the Company has injected NPR 200,000,000.00 (Rupees twenty crores only) as paid-up Share capital.
Machhapuchchhre Bank Limited is the sole promoter of the Company or as holding Company of this Company.
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3.1.2. Provision for Corporate Tax
The Company has made loss of Rs. 4,483,195.29 during FY 2081/82

3.1.3. Interest Income and Its’s Tax

During this financial year fixed deposit amount has been matured and the Company has earned Rs. 1,883,180.00 as
interest income from fixed deposit and saving account and tax on interest amount is Rs. 282,477.00.

3.1.4. Transaction with Related Parties
Business transactions were conducted with related parties at arm'’s length. Details of related party transaction were
as follows:

Nature of Related

Name of Related Party Amount (in NPR) Party Remarks
MBL- Current Account 6,169,725.35 Holding Company Balance at current Account
MBL - Interest 1,883,180.02 Holding Company Interest in MBL FD Account
MBL OD Interest 1,662,768.34 Holding Company Interest on OD
MBL Bank Guarantee 2,00,00,000.00 Holding Company | Off balance sheet BG fee 2,40,000/00 paid
Total 2,97,15,673.71 Including off balance sheet items

OD loan amount of Rs. 148,931,484.24 has been settled after adjusting against fixed deposit and Fixed Deposit
amount has been matured during this financial year.

3.1.5. Re-classification and Re-grouping

Previous year's Figures have been recast/ restated wherever necessary.
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